
 

 

 
 

 

 

Planning Committee 
 

Tuesday 22 May 2012 at 7.00 pm 
Committee Rooms 1, 2 and 3, Brent Town Hall, Forty 
Lane, Wembley, HA9 9HD 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Members first alternates second alternates 
Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
   
Ketan Sheth (Chair) Thomas R Moher 
Daly (Vice-Chair) Long Naheerathan 
Aden 
Baker 

J Moher 
Kansagra 

Moloney 
HB Patel 

Cummins Shaw Allie 
Hashmi Cheese    Beck  
John Van Kalwala Butt 
CJ Patel Hopkins Lorber  
RS Patel Gladbaum Harrison 
Krupa Sheth Oladapo Powney 
Singh Hossain Mashari 
 
 
For further information contact: Joe Kwateng, Democratic Services Officer 
020 8937 1354, joe.kwateng@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

www.brent.gov.uk/committees 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 
Members’ briefing will take place at 5.30pm in Committee Room 4 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

ITEM  WARD PAGE 
 

1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests    

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, 
any relevant financial or other interest in the items on this 
agenda. 

  

2. Minutes of the previous meeting   1 - 8 

 Extract of Planning Code of Practice 

 APPLICATIONS DEFERRED FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

3. Green Man, High Street, London, NW10 4TS (Ref. 11/0876)  Kensal Green 13 - 22 

4. Green Man, High Street, London, NW10 4TS (Ref. 11/0877)  Kensal Green 23 - 30 

5. 16B & 16C Callcott Road, London, NW6 7EA (Ref.12/0065)  Kilburn 31 - 36 

 SOUTHERN AREA 

6. 24 Creighton Road, London, London NW6 6ED 
(Ref.12/0372)  

Queens Park 37 - 44 

 SPECIAL ITEMS 

7. Regal Court, Malvern Road, London, NW6  Kilburn 45 - 54 

8. Planning and Enforcement Appeal Monitoring  All Wards 55 - 60 

 PLANNING APPEALS 

9. Planning Appeals 1 - 30 April 2012   61 - 78 

10. Any Other Urgent Business    

 Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be 
given in writing to the Democratic Services Manager or his 
representative before the meeting in accordance with 
Standing Order 64. 
 

  

Site Visit 

SITE VISITS – SATURDAY 19 MAY 2012 
 

Members are reminded that the coach leaves Brent House at 9.30am 
 
 
REF. ADDRESS ITEM

  
WARD TIME PAGE 

 



 

 

11/0876 Green Man, High Street, London, 
NW10 4TS 

3 Kensal Green 9:45 13 - 22 

11/0877 Green Man, High Street, London, 
NW10 4TS 

4 Kensal Green 9:45 23 - 20 

12/0065 16B & 16C Callcott Road, London, 
NW6 7EA 

5 Kilburn 10:30 37 - 44 

 
 
 
 
Date of the next meeting:  20 June 2012 
The site visits for that meeting will take place the preceding Saturday 16 June 2012 at 
9.30am when the coach leaves Brent House. 
 

� Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
• Toilets are available on the second floor. 
• Catering facilities can be found on the first floor near The Paul Daisley 

Hall. 
• A public telephone is located in the foyer on the ground floor, opposite the 

Porters’ Lodge 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 

 
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Tuesday 17 April 2012 at 7.00 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors Ketan Sheth (Chair), Daly (Vice-Chair), Cummins, Hashmi, 
McLennan, Mitchell Murray, CJ Patel and RS Patel 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Alison Hopkins  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Baker, Kabir and Singh. 
 
1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests 

 
4. Garages rear of 27-34 Oxgate Court, Coles Green Road, London NW2 
 
Councillor Cummins declared that he had been involved with the applicant, 
Genesis Housing Group.  He therefore indicated that he would withdraw from the 
meeting room during consideration of the application. 
 
10 Storage land next to 75, St Pauls avenue, London NW2  
 
Councillor Cummins declared that he had been involved with the applicant, 
Genesis Housing Group.  He therefore indicated that he would withdraw from the 
meeting room during consideration of the application. 
 
 

2. Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 March 2012 be approved as 
an accurate record of the meeting. 
 
 

3. Hay Lane Special School & Grove Park School, Grove Park, London, NW9 
(Ref. 12/0654) 
 
PROPOSAL: Variation of condition 2 (development to be carried out in 
accordance with all plans and supporting documents) of full planning permission 
10/2996 for part demolition of the existing special educational needs schools 
and erection of a replacement special educational needs school, comprising a 
two-storey main building (Use Class D1) and ancillary two-storey short-break 
centre (Use Class C2), including a sports hall, swimming pool, multi-use games 
area, external play space and associated landscaping as amended by plans 
received 20/01/10 to allow minor material amendments consisting of: (1) 
relocation of the sub-station compound to north-west corner of the site, on 
corner of Stag Lane and Grove Park.   

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
 

 

 
 
 

2 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Delegate authority to the Head of Area Planning to 
approve the application subject to consideration of any new substantive 
objections received. 
 
DECISION: Granted delegated authority to the Head of Area Planning to 
approve the application subject to consideration of any new substantive 
objections received. 
 
 

4. Garages rear of 27-34, Oxgate Court, Coles Green Road, London, NW2 (Ref. 
12/0275) 
 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of 14 no. existing garages and erection of a residential 
development of 14 units comprising six no. three-bed dwellinghouses and eight 
no. two-bed flats and associated means of enclosure and hard and soft 
landscape to provide 14 car parking spaces, secure cycle storage for 20 
bicycles and refuse storage. 
   
RECOMMENDATION:  
(a) Grant planning permission, subject to conditions, informatives and an 

appropriate form of Agreement in order to secure the measures set out in 
the Section 106 Details section of this report, or 

(b) If within a reasonable period the applicant fails to enter into an 
appropriate agreement in order to meet the policies of the Unitary 
Development Plan, Core Strategy and Section 106 Planning Obligations 
Supplementary Planning Document, to delegate authority to the Head of 
Area Planning, or other duly authorised person, to refuse planning 
permission. 

 
With reference to the tabled supplementary report, Rachel McConnell, Area 
Planning Manager responded to a number of issues raised by local residents and 
Councillor Hopkins, ward member.  In respect of concerns about highway safety 
and visibility of access, she informed the Committee that since a turning head 
would be provided within the site and all vehicles would be able to exit the site in 
forward gear, officers were satisfied that the development would not result a 
material change to highway and pedestrian safety.  She continued that the 
provision of one parking space for each house and two visitors’ spaces would be 
sufficient to meet the expected demand for parking generated by the development. 
 
Rachel McConnell advised members that whilst there was a problem with anti-
social behaviour, it was not related to the site and that there was no evidence that 
the residential development would lead to an increase in such behaviour.  She 
continued that following consultations with the Metropolitan Police Crime 
Prevention Design Adviser, the applicants had made minor amendments to the 
scheme including revised bin store position for which condition 2 had been 
amended and boundaries with Crest Road for which a further condition was 
proposed to secure the provision of further details.  She updated members that the 
applicant had confirmed that the rear and side wall would be retained and that 

Page 2



 
 

 

 
 
 

3 

further details on low level lighting would be secured by condition.  Members heard 
that the revised Sustainability Checklist score of 48% was marginally below the 
usual 50% sought for schemes of this nature, however, officers were satisfied that 
it represented an improvement sought by policy 5.2 of the London Plan 2011.  
 
Mr Neil Walsh, an objector, expressed concerns about pedestrian safety, access 
to and from the estate and traffic congestion.  He added that the situation would be 
exacerbated with two bus stops closely nearby to the estate, a situation which led 
to a fatality some three years ago. 
 
In accordance with the Planning Code of Practice, Councillor Hopkins, ward 
member stated that she had been approached by objectors and residents.  
Councillor Hopkins stated that although she supported the principle of the 
development for affordable housing on the site, she expressed concerns about the 
density of the development which she considered to be excessive due to lack of a 
play area and smaller private gardens.  She continued that access into and out of 
the estate would cause problems due to impaired visibility for motorists and with 
two bus stops closely nearby, the likelihood of serious accidents would be greater 
as motorists drove past parked buses.  Councillor Hopkins requested that the 
arrangement for the road layout be revisited and that building work during 
construction should be properly controlled.  With that in mind, Councillor Hopkins 
requested members to require the applicant to submit further details prior to 
commencement of construction. 
 
Mr Stephen Davy, the applicant’s architect stated that the density of the proposed 
development was within the London Plan with each dwelling unit having its own 
private garden in addition to the communal space.  He added that traffic calming 
measures would be introduced to make the development safe for both residents 
and visitors.  Mr Davy continued that as a registered social landlord, his client 
would carry out the development to specifications and conditions, adding that the 
client would also welcome additional conditions if they were felt necessary for the 
development. 
 
In response to the Chair’s enquiry about privacy and outlook, Mr Davy stated that 
privacy would be maintained throughout the development and as an added 
measure the high brick wall of the garages would be retained.  He continued that 
by increasing the boundaries with properties in Crest Road to 2.4metres, the 
development would not result in overlooking, loss of outlook and loss of privacy.  
He advised members that access would not be a problem and that the Council’s 
Transportation unit were satisfied with the access arrangements. 
 
During question time, Councillor Mitchell-Murray enquired as to whether officers 
had consulted with Transport for London (TfL) about relocating the bus stops 
nearby.  The Chair also invited officers to comment on measures to control 
construction work.  Rachel McConnell stated that as no alterations were proposed 
to the bus stops and Coles Green Road not classified as a distributor road, there 
was no statutory requirement to consult with TfL.  She advised members that 
condition 12 had been recommended to address concerns about construction 
work.  Steve Weeks, Head of Area Planning, suggested that condition 15 could be 

Page 3



 
 

 

 
 
 

4 

amended to require further consideration to the design and surface treatment of 
the access, with advice from the Head of Transportation. He acknowledged 
concerns regarding the safety of Coles Green Road and as a separate matter 
would request that Brent’s Transportation liaise with TfL regarding safety concerns 
and mitigation. 
 
DECISION: 
(a) Granted planning permission, subject to conditions, amendment to 

Condition 15 to require further consideration to the design and surface 
treatment of the access, informatives and an appropriate form of Agreement 
in order to secure the measures set out in the Section 106 Details section of 
this report, or 

(b) If within a reasonable period the applicant fails to enter into an appropriate 
agreement in order to meet the policies of the Unitary Development Plan, 
Core Strategy and Section 106 Planning Obligations Supplementary 
Planning Document, to delegate authority to the Head of Area Planning, or 
other duly authorised person, to refuse planning permission. 

 
 

5. 227 All Souls Avenue, London, NW10 3AE (Ref. 11/2719) 
 
PROPOSAL: Change of use of the premises to hot food takeaway (Use Class 
A5)   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Defer for site visit. 
 
Steve Weeks, Head of Area Planning informed members that subsequent to the 
request by the three ward members for a site visit, the applicant had withdrawn the 
application. 
 
DECISION: Application withdrawn by the applicant. 
 
 

6. Green Man, High Street, London, NW10 4TS (Ref. 11/0876) 
 
PROPOSAL: Erection of glazed extension to the rear to replace existing 
unauthorised rear extension; creation of 5 flats at upper floors to replace existing 
unauthorised 10 bedsits; external stair replacement at the rear and refuse 
storage, reinstatement of the front and rear windows at 1st and 2nd floor level 
and replacement of side entrance doors on both side elevations and new gate to 
the front elevation, external lighting at residential entrance on Rucklidge 
Passage and provision of new CCTV camera at the junction of Rucklidge 
Passage and Rucklidge Avenue ("car-free" scheme).   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Defer for a site visit. 
 
Steve Weeks, Head of Area Planning informed members that the three ward 
members had formally requested a site visit.  He therefore amended the 
recommendation adding that all interested parties would be notified in due course 

Page 4



 
 

 

 
 
 

5 

about the arrangement for the site visit which would take place on Saturday 19 
May 2012. 
 
DECISION: Deferred for a site visit. 
 
 

7. Green Man, High Street, London, NW10 4TS (Ref. 11/0877) 
 
PROPOSAL: Listed building consent for removal of unauthorised works to the 
ground and first/second floors, erection of glazed extension to the rear to 
replace existing unauthorised rear extension; creation of 5 flats at upper floors to 
replace existing unauthorised 10 bedsits; external stair replacement at the rear 
and refuse storage, reinstatement of the front and rear windows at 1st and 2nd 
floor level and replacement of side entrance doors on both side elevations and 
new gate to the front elevation, external lighting at residential entrance on 
Rucklidge Passage and provision of new CCTV camera at the junction of 
Rucklidge Passage and Rucklidge Avenue.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Defer for a site visit. 
 
Steve Weeks, Head of Area Planning informed members that the three ward 
members had formally requested a site visit.  He therefore amended the 
recommendation adding that all interested parties would be notified in due course 
about the arrangement for the site visit which would take place on Saturday 19 
May 2012. 
 
DECISION: Deferred for a site visit. 
 
 

8. Argo Business Centre, Kilburn Park Road, London, NW6 5LF (Ref. 11/2403) 
 
PROPOSAL: Demolition and redevelopment of the site to provide a part 5-, 4-, 
(at southern end only) and 3- storey mixed use development comprising 93 
residential flats; new replacement B1 office space (1,406sq.m) including one 
commercial unit for flexible B1/A1 business use; 51 car parking spaces; cycle 
spaces, hard and soft landscaping and revised access.     
 
RECOMMENDATION: Grant planning permission subject to conditions as 
amended in conditions 3 and 5, informatives and the completion of a satisfactory 
Section 106 or other legal agreement as amended in the Heads of Terms and 
delegate authority to the Head of Area Planning to agree the exact terms thereof 
on advice from the Director of Legal and Procurement. 
 
Andy Bates, Area Planning Manager referred to an e-mail received from Councillor 
Arnold, a ward member in which she expressed her support for the development 
but added that the S106 financial contribution should be carefully targeted to 
address the additional school places that would be generated by the development.  
In addition, a letter of support had also been received after the supplementary 
report had been prepared from a South Kilburn resident. With reference to the 

Page 5



 
 

 

 
 
 

6 

supplementary report, Andy Bates informed the Committee that whilst there would 
be loss of employment floor space, the proposal would result in a more efficient 
use of floor space with an amendment made in the Heads of Terms to ensure that 
existing tenants were included in any future plans.  He added that the Heads of 
Terms would also be revised to reflect the discussions on affordable housing and 
highways works.  
 
The Chair invited the officer to comment on impact on Stuart Road residents and 
comments made by Westminster Council on the application.  Andy Bates stated 
that the scheme was amended following comments by Westminster Council and 
that any impact on Stuart Road residents would be within acceptable limits.  In 
reiterating the recommendation for approval he drew members’ attention to 
revisions to conditions 3 and 6 as set out in the tabled supplementary report, on 
the advice of the Director of Legal and Procurement.  
 
DECISION: Planning permission granted subject to conditions as amended in 
conditions 3 and 6, informatives and the completion of a satisfactory Section 
106 or other legal agreement as amended in the Heads of Terms and delegate 
authority to the Head of Area Planning to agree the exact terms thereof on 
advice from the Director of Legal and Procurement. 
 
 

9. Thames Water Depot , 225 Harlesden Road, London, NW10 3SD (Ref. 
12/0144) 
 
PROPOSAL: Residential development of 41 dwellings, consisting of a row of 2-
storey terrace houses, a 2 to 3-storey block and a 4 to 5-storey block, with 
associated parking, infrastructure and landscaping. 
   
RECOMMENDATION: Refuse planning permission with amendments to 
reasons 2 and 4. 
 
Andy Bates, Area Planning Manager advised the Committee that the density of the 
proposed development exceeded recommended limits.  He drew members’ 
attention to amendments to reasons 2 and 4 as set out in the tabled 
supplementary report. 
 
Mr Roger Arkell the applicant stated that the designs of the proposed development 
had been extensively consulted on and revised accordingly to comply with the 
council’s objectives including affordable housing and shared ownership.  He 
continued that the proposal would provide four disabled parking spaces and to 
maintain privacy, there would be no communal roof terrace.  Mr Arkell noted that 
the Council’s Highways officers had not expressed concerns about the scheme 
and added that he would be prepared to enter into a Section 106 legal agreement. 
 
During members’ question time, Councillor RS Patel asked the applicant to 
comment on the officer’s view that the scheme would constitute an over-
development of the site.  The Chair also asked the applicant to comment on 
outlook and privacy for the development.  Mr Arkell stated that by complying with 

Page 6



 
 

 

 
 
 

7 

amenity space requirements, the scheme would not constitute an over-
development and that no harm would result from the development.   He continued 
that by reducing the height from 3 to 2 storey and with a set back and orientation 
towards the reservoir, the development would not give rise to issues of privacy and 
outlook. 
 
DECISION: Planning permission refused with amended reasons 2 and 4. 
 
 

10. Storage Land next to 75, St Pauls Avenue, London, NW2 5TG (Ref. 12/0247) 
 
PROPOSAL: Variation of condition number 2 (plan numbers) to allow the 
following minor material amendment: 
The inclusion of 8 parking spaces (for the use of the garage business or in 
association with the servicing and management of the proposed residential 
building only) within the proposed landscaped area at the southwest corner of 
the development site to the scheme granted by full planning permission 11/0051 
dated 11/04/01. 
   
RECOMMENDATION: Grant planning permission subject to conditions as 
amended in conditions 5, 6 and 13, an additional condition, informatives and the 
completion of a satisfactory Section 106 or other legal agreement and delegate 
authority to the Head of Area Planning and Development to agree the exact 
terms thereof on advice from the Director of Legal Services and Procurement. 
 
Andy Bates, Area Planning Manager clarified that all references to the “southeast 
corner” should read “southwest corner”.  He drew members’ attention to the 
revised and additional conditions as set out in the tabled supplementary report and 
clarified that the application only related to the introduction of parking spaces into 
the south west corner of the site, and all other aspects were as for the approval 
from last April.  
 
Ms Ann Marie-Glynn in objecting to the proposal stated that any congestion in the 
garage forecourt would impact on to Park Avenue North, causing traffic to block 
the entire Park Avenue North entrance, with a greater risk of accident.  She added 
that as the application failed to show the other seven parking spaces granted by 
the Court Order, it conflicted with the Court Order.  In her view the layout was 
unsatisfactory and would infringe on her rights and requested that the forecourt 
should be used in the way they had been for the past 20 years 
 
Mr Ben Thomas the applicant’s agent stated that his client had worked closely with 
the Council to arrive at a scheme that would generate affordable housing with 
added benefits to the area and in particular, its street scene.  He informed the 
Committee that all residents consulted about the application responded except the 
objector whose objections raised civil issues rather than relevant planning issues.  
In respect of the layout, he stated that it was not uncommon to incorporate parking 
spaces in such applications.  
 

Page 7



 
 

 

 
 
 

8 

Andy Bates advised the Committee that the proposal had been revised and 
carefully considered and, with associated conditions as amended and the 
additional financial contribution to off-site landscaping, would result in a different 
but nevertheless, on balance, an acceptable arrangement.   
 
DECISION: Planning permission granted subject to conditions as amended in 
conditions 5, 6 and 13, an additional condition, informatives and the completion 
of a satisfactory Section 106 or other legal agreement and delegate authority to 
the Head of Area Planning and Development to agree the exact terms thereof 
on advice from the Director of Legal Services and Procurement. 
 
 

11. Land surrounding Wembley Stadium, Royal Route, Wembley, HA9 (Ref. 
12/0138) 
 
PROPOSAL: Erection of an 8-storey car park for 734 cars with parking on roof 
and associated hard and soft landscaping and access and egress both from 
Royal Route and South Way.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Grant planning consent for the reserved matters relating 
to part of Plot W10 subject to conditions and informatives. 
 
DECISION: Planning consent granted for the reserved matters relating to part of 
Plot W10 subject to conditions and informatives. 
 
 

12. Planning Appeals - 1 February to 31 March 2012 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the planning and enforcement appeals for the period 1 February to 31 March 
2012  be noted. 
 
 

13. Date of next meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting will be announced after the Annual meeting of the 
Council on 16 May 2012.  
 

14. Any Other Urgent Business 
 
None raised at the meeting. 
 
 
The meeting ended at 8:10pm 
 
 
COUNCILLOR KETAN SHETH 
Chair 

Page 8



EXTRACT OF THE PLANNING CODE OF PRACTICE 

 
Purpose of this Code 
 
 The Planning Code of Practice has been adopted by Brent Council to regulate 

the performance of its planning function.  Its major objectives are to guide 
Members and officers of the Council in dealing with planning related matters 
and to inform potential developers and the public generally of the standards 
adopted by the Council in the exercise of its planning powers.  The Planning 
Code of Practice is in addition to the Brent Members Code of Conduct 
adopted by the Council under the provisions of the Local Government Act 
2000. The provisions of this code are designed to ensure that planning 
decisions are taken on proper planning grounds, are applied in a consistent 
and open manner and that Members making such decisions are, and are 
perceived as being, accountable for those decisions.  Extracts from the Code 
and the Standing Orders are reproduced below as a reminder of their content.  

 
Accountability and Interests 
 
4. If an approach is made to a Member of the Planning Committee from an 

applicant or agent or other interested party in relation to a particular planning 
application or any matter which may give rise to a planning application, the 
Member shall: 

 
 a) inform the person making such an approach that such matters should be 

addressed to officers or to Members who are not Members of the 
Planning Committee; 

 
b) disclose the fact and nature of such an approach at any meeting of the 

Planning Committee where the planning application or matter in question 
is considered. 

 
7. If the Chair decides to allow a non-member of the Committee to speak, the non-

member shall state the reason for wishing to speak.  Such a Member shall 
disclose the fact he/she has been in contact with the applicant, agent or 
interested party if this be the case. 

 
8.  When the circumstances of any elected Member are such that they have 
  

(i)  a personal interest in any planning application or other matter, then the 
Member, if present, shall declare a personal interest at any meeting 
where the particular application or other matter is considered, and if the 
interest is also a prejudicial interest shall withdraw from the room 
where the meeting is being held and not take part in the discussion or 
vote on the application or other matter. 

 
11. If any Member of the Council requests a Site Visit, prior to the debate at 

Planning Committee, their name shall be recorded. They shall provide and a 

Agenda Annex

Page 9



record kept of, their reason for the request and whether or not they have been 
approached concerning the application or other matter and if so, by whom. 

 
Meetings of the Planning Committee 

 
24. If the Planning Committee wishes to grant planning permission contrary to 

officers' recommendation the application shall be deferred to the next meeting 
of the Committee for further consideration. Following a resolution of “minded to 
grant contrary to the officers’ recommendation”, the Chair shall put to the 
meeting for approval a statement of why the officers recommendation for 
refusal should be overturned, which, when approved, shall then be formally 
recorded in the minutes. When a planning application has been deferred, 
following a resolution of "minded to grant contrary to the officers' 
recommendation", then at the subsequent meeting the responsible officer shall 
have the opportunity to respond both in a further written report and orally to the 
reasons formulated by the Committee for granting permission. If the Planning 
Committee is still of the same view, then it shall again consider its reasons for 
granting permission, and a summary of the planning reasons for that decision 
shall be given, which reasons shall then be formally recorded in the Minutes of 
the meeting. 

 
25. When the Planning Committee vote to refuse an application contrary to the 

recommendation of officers, the Chair shall put to the meeting for approval a 
statement of the planning reasons for refusal of the application, which if 
approved shall be entered into the Minutes of that meeting.  Where the reason 
for refusal proposed by the Chair is not approved by the meeting, or where in 
the Chair’s view it is not then possible to formulate planning reasons for refusal, 
the application shall be deferred for further consideration at the next meeting of 
the Committee.  At the next meeting of the Committee the application shall be 
accompanied by a further written report from officers, in which the officers shall 
advise on possible planning reasons for refusal and the evidence that would be 
available to substantiate those reasons.  If the Committee is still of the same 
view then it shall again consider its reasons for refusing permission which shall 
be recorded in the Minutes of the Meeting.  

 
29. The Minutes of the Planning Committee shall record the names of those voting 

in favour, against or abstaining: 
 

(i) on any resolution of "Minded to Grant or minded to refuse contrary to 
Officers Recommendation"; 

 
(ii) on any approval or refusal of an application referred to a subsequent 

meeting following such a resolution.  
 
STANDING ORDER  62  SPEAKING RIGHTS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
(a) At meetings of the Planning Committee when reports are being considered on 

applications for planning permission any member of the public other than the 
applicant or his agent or representative who wishes to object to or support the 
grant of permission or support or oppose the imposition of conditions may do 

Page 10



so for a maximum of 2 minutes.  Where more than one person wishes to 
speak on the same application the Chair shall have the discretion to limit the 
number of speakers to no more than 2 people and in so doing will seek to give 
priority to occupiers nearest to the application site or representing a group of 
people or to one objector and one supporter if there are both.  In addition (and 
after hearing any members of the public who wish to speak) the applicant (or 
one person on the applicant’s behalf) may speak to the Committee for a 
maximum of 3 minutes.  In respect of both members of the public and 
applicants the Chair and members of the sub-committee may ask them 
questions after they have spoken. 

(b) Persons wishing to speak to the Committee shall give notice to the 
Democratic Services Manager or his representatives prior to the 
commencement of the meeting.  Normally such notice shall be given 24 hours 
before the commencement of the meeting.  At the meeting the Chair shall call 
out the address of the application when it is reached and only if the applicant 
(or representative) and/or members of the public are present and then signify 
a desire to speak shall such persons be called to speak. 

(c) In the event that all persons present at the meeting who have indicated that 
they wish to speak on any matter under consideration indicate that they agree 
with the officers recommendations and if the members then indicate that they 
are minded to agree the officers recommendation in full without further debate 
the Chair may dispense with the calling member of the public to speak on that 
matter. 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3345678 9+,& 3 "1 :

!"##$%%&&'(&)"*% +%&#',"- './

01233$34'!"##$%%&&'"3 55'6278'5.95 !2:&',"- !!"#$%&

01233$34'!"##$%%&&'62)

'()*+,--.*//0 1.**2+3,24+5(67+').**)4+892-924+:;!#+<='

!"#$%&'"(%)*$+,-."/'0"0/./1/23"$+,-.2"4566"7$0'/'(3"89$:3*"65554;4<5

=7(/+>,?+(/+(2-(@,)(A*+92BCD

Agenda Item 3

Page 13



(;!;+<;=> %+E?.(B4+F#!!

?@(=> G*2/,B+1.**2

0A@,,+,B'@(;@> 5,.B*/-*2+H92/IB),)(A*+J9.I>

AC!@D+C,> 1.**2+3,24+5(67+').**)4+892-924+:;!#+<='

0(C0CE@A> K.*@)(92+9L+6B,M*-+*N)*2/(92+)9+)7*+.*,.+)9+.*?B,@*+*N(/)(26+I2,I)79.(/*-+.*,.
*N)*2/(92O+@.*,)(92+9L+P+LB,)/+,)+I??*.+LB99./+)9+.*?B,@*+*N(/)(26+I2,I)79.(/*-
!#+Q*-/()/O+*N)*.2,B+/),(.+.*?B,@*>*2)+,)+)7*+.*,.+,2-+.*LI/*+/)9.,6*4
.*(2/),)*>*2)+9L+)7*+L.92)+,2-+.*,.+R(2-9R/+,)+!/)+,2-+F2-+LB99.+B*A*B+,2-
.*?B,@*>*2)+9L+/(-*+*2).,2@*+-99./+92+Q9)7+/(-*+*B*A,)(92/+,2-+2*R+6,)*+)9
)7*+L.92)+*B*A,)(924+*N)*.2,B+B(67)(26+,)+.*/(-*2)(,B+*2).,2@*+92+SI@TB(-6*
U,//,6*+,2-+?.9A(/(92+9L+2*R+HH=V+@,>*.,+,)+)7*+WI2@)(92+9L+SI@TB(-6*
U,//,6*+,2-+SI@TB(-6*+EA*2I*+XY@,.ZL.**Y+/@7*>*[D

@00A+!@,D> 3.+ET,/7+\.,7,

!C,D@!D> 5*.(),6*+E.@7()*@)I.*+8)-

0A@,',CFE>
'**+@92-()(92+F

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG
=7(/+,??B(@,)(92+R,/+/@7*-IB*-+L9.+UB,22(26+H9>>())**+92+!%)7+E?.(B+X,B926+R()7+B(/)*-+QI(B-(26+,??B(@,)(92
!!"#$%&+*B/*R7*.*+92+)7(/+,6*2-,[+QI)+R,/+-*L*..*-+,/;,.-+H9I2@(BB9./+HBB.+5*@)9.4+HBB.+U9R2*C+,2-+HBB.
=79>,/+.*]I*/)*-+,+/()*+A(/()D

'(62(L(@,2)+(2?I)+L.9>+H9I2@(BB9./+,2-+2*(67Q9I./+,/+R*BB+,/+LI.)7*.+-(/@I//(92+R()7+/).**)@,.*+9LL(@*./+,2-
)7*+HH=V+@92).9B+.99>+>,2,6*.+7,/+.*/IB)*-+(2+,2+(2@.*,/*+(2+)7*+/(M*+9L+)7*+?.9?9/*-+Q(2+/)9.*+)9+(>?.9A*
)7*+>,29*IA.,Q(B()C+9L+Q(2/+R()7(2+)7*+/?,@*+,2-+,2+(2@.*,/*+(2+)7*+@92).(QI)(92+L.9>+)7*+,??B(@,2)+)9+@9A*.
)7*+@9/)+9L+)7*+?I.@7,/*+,2-+(2/),BB,)(92+9L+)7*+?.9?9/*-+HH=V+@,>*.,+,)+)7*+SI@TB(-6*+EA*2I*+*2-+9L
SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*D++=7(/+(/+-(/@I//*-+Q*B9R+(2+)7*+>,(2+.*?9.)D

(;!C66;,=@D+C,
1.,2)+?B,22(26+?*.>(//(92+/IQW*@)+)9+)7*+@9>?B*)(92+9L+,+/,)(/L,@)9.C+'*@)(92+!#&+9.+9)7*.+B*6,B+,6.**>*2)
,2-+-*B*6,)*+,I)79.()C+)9+)7*+5*,-+9L+E.*,+UB,22(26+)9+,6.**+)7*+*N,@)+)*.>/+)7*.*9L+92+,-A(@*+L.9>+)7*
^(.*@)9.+9L+8*6,B+'*.A(@*/+,2-+U.9@I.*>*2)

E;!D+C,'9.H'=;D@+AE
=7*+,??B(@,)(92+.*]I(.*/+,+'*@)(92+!#&+E6.**>*2)4+(2+9.-*.+)9+/*@I.*+)7*+L9BB9R(26+Q*2*L()/0Z

! H92).(QI)(92+9L+_`4### -I*+92+>,)*.(,B+/),.)+,2-+(2-*NZB(2T*-+L.9>+)7*+-,)*+9L+@9>>())**+L9.+K-I@,)(924
'I/),(2,QB*+=.,2/?9.),)(92+,2-+\?*2+'?,@*+a+'?9.)/+(2+)7*+B9@,B+,.*,D

! H92).(QI)(92+9L+_!<4###+)9+?I.@7,/*+,2-+(2/),BB+,+HH=V+@,>*.,+,)+)7*+WI2@)(92+9L+SI@TB(-6*+EA*2I*+,2-
SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*D

! H,.ZL.**+,6.**>*2)
! U,C>*2)+9L+)7*+H9I2@(Bb/+B*6,B+,2-+9)7*.+?.9L*//(92,B+@9/)/+(2+X,[+?.*?,.(26+,2-+@9>?B*)(26+)7*

,6.**>*2)+,2-+XQ[+>92()9.(26+,2-+*2L9.@(26+()/+?*.L9.>,2@*

E2-4+)9+,I)79.(/*+)7*+5*,-+9L+E.*,+UB,22(264+9.+9)7*.+-IBC+,I)79.(/*-+?*./924+)9+.*LI/*+?B,22(26+?*.>(//(92+(L
)7*+,??B(@,2)+7,/+L,(B*-+)9+-*>92/).,)*+)7*+,Q(B()C+)9+?.9A(-*+L9.+)7*+,Q9A*+)*.>/+,2-+>**)+)7*+?9B(@(*/+9L+)7*
c2(),.C+^*A*B9?>*2)+UB,2+,2-+'*@)(92+!#&+UB,22(26+\QB(6,)(92/+'I??B*>*2),.C+UB,22(26+^9@I>*2)+QC
@92@BI-(26+,2+,??.9?.(,)*+,6.**>*2)D

;I+ED+,B
=7*+/IQW*@)+/()*+(/+)7*+1.**2+3,2+UIQB(@+59I/*+,2-+(/+,+1.,-*+dd+8(/)*-+eI(B-(264+B(/)*-+(2+!f%fD+ =7*+1.**2
3,2+,2-+,-W9(2(26+)*..,@*+R*.*+.*QI(B)+92+)7*+/()*+(2+!f#&Z!f#%+X,.@7()*@)/+5,..(/92+,2-+;,.-[+(2+JB*>(/7
/)CB*+R()7+R(-*+LB,)+,.@7*/+,)+6.9I2-+LB99.D++=7*+1.**2+3,2+?IQB(@+79I/*+*N(/)*-+92+)7*+/()*+(2+,+-(LL*.*2)+L9.>

Page 14



,/+*,.BC+,/+!%<&D

=7*+/()*4+92+5(67+').**)+5,.B*/-*24+,B/9+L,BB/+R()7(2+5,.B*/-*2+H92/*.A,)(92+E.*,D

=7*+@I..*2)+,..,26*>*2)+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26+(/+,+.*/),I.,2)+,)+6.9I2-+LB99.4+>,2C+9L+)7*+9.(6(2,B+L*,)I.*/
(2)*.2,BBC4+>9/)+29),QBC+)7*+Q,.4+7,A*+Q**2+.*>9A*-D++=7*+I??*.+LB99./+7,A*+Q**2+/IQ-(A(-*-+(2)9+!#+/>,BB
/)I-(9+I2()/+,@@*//*-+QC+,+/),(.@,/*+)9+)7*+.*,.+,@@*//*-+)7.9I67+,+6,)*+92+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*D++\LL(@*./
@92/(-*.+)7,)+)7*+9.(6(2,B"B,RLIB+I/*+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26+R9IB-+Q*+,+Q,.".*/),I.,2)+,)+6.9I2-+LB99.+R()7+,//9@(,)*-
.*/(-*2)(,B+?.*>(/*/+,Q9A*4+(2@BI-(26+/)9.,6*+,2-+LI2@)(92+.99>/D

0(C0CE@A
'**+-*/@.(?)(92+,Q9A*D

J+EDC(K
!!"#$%%+ =7*+,//9@(,)*-+8(/)*-+eI(B-(26+,??B(@,)(92+(/+*B/*R7*.*+92+)7(/+,6*2-,

K"#&"#F$F+ E??*,B+^(/>(//*-
;()79I)+?B,22(26+?*.>(//(924+)7*+*.*@)(92+9L+,+?,.)+/(26B*Z/)9.*C4+?,.)+)R9Z/)9.*C+.*,.+*N)*2/(92+,2-+)7*
@7,26*+9L+I/*+9L+)7*+L(./)+,2-+/*@92-+LB99./+(2)9+!#+/*BLZ@92),(2*-+LB,)/D

#<"#<$#+ H*.)(L(@,)*+9L+8,RLIB2*//+S*LI/*-
H*.)(L(@,)*+9L+B,RLIB2*//+L9.+*N(/)(26+I/*+9L+L(./)+,2-+/*@92-+LB99./+,/+!#+/*BLZ@92),(2*-+I2()/

#F"FF<#+ ;()7-.,R2
H92/).I@)(92+9L+?,.)+/(26B*Z/)9.*C+.*,.+*N)*2/(92+4+?,.)+L(./)ZLB99.+,2-+/*@92-ZLB99.+*N)*2/(92+,2-+@92A*./(92
)9+P+/*BLZ@92),(2*-+LB,)/+X<+ND+!+Q*-4+!+ND+FZQ*-[+8(/)*-+QI(B-(26+@92/*2)+,//9@(,)*-+R()7+?B,22(26+,??B(@,)(92
#F"F%$

#F"#F%$+ ;()7-.,R2
H92A*./(92+9L+L(./)+,2-+/*@92-+LB99./+)9+P+/*BLZ@92),(2*-+LB,)/+(2@BI-(26+.99L+*N)*2/(924+?,.)+L(./)ZLB99.+,2-+?,.)
/*@92-ZLB99.+*N)*2/(92+,2-+/(26B*Z/)9.*C+.*,.+*N)*2/(92+)9+?IQB(@+79I/*

0CA+!K'!C,E+=;(@D+C,E
,2%$"321'01233$34'0"1$L7'M*2#&N"*O
=7*+:UUJ+R,/+?IQB(/7*-+92+F%)7+3,.@7+,2-+.*?B,@*/+UB,22(26+U9B(@C+1I(-,2@*+,2-+UB,22(26+U9B(@C
'),)*>*2)/+R()7+(>>*-(,)*+*LL*@)D++d)+(/+(2)*2-*-+)9+>,T*+)7*+?B,22(26+/C/)*>+B*//+@9>?B*N+,2-+>9.*
,@@*//(QB*4+)9+?.9)*@)+)7*+*2A(.92>*2)+,2-+)9+?.9>9)*+/I/),(2,QB*+6.9R)7D+d)+(2@BI-*/ ,+?.*/I>?)(92+(2+L,A9I.
9L+/I/),(2,QB*+-*A*B9?>*2)+(2+Q9)7+?B,2+>,T(26+,2-+-*@(/(92+>,T(26+,2-+()/+?IQB(@,)(92+(/+9L+/(62(L(@,2)
R*(67)D

',A*-+?9B(@(*/+L.9>+)7*+,-9?)*-+c^U+R(BB+7,A*+(2@.*,/(26BC+B*//+R*(67)+I2B*//+)7*C+,.*+(2+@92L9.>()C+R()7+)7*
:UUJ+,2-+@,2+Q*+-*>92/).,)*-+)9+Q*+/)(BB+.*B*A,2)D++H9.*+').,)*6C+?9B(@(*/+R(BB+,B/9+2**-+)9+Q*+(2+@92L9.>()C
R()7+Q9)7+)7*+892-92+UB,2+,2-+)7*+:UUJ+,2-+7,A*+@92/(-*.,QB*+R*(67)D

;7*.*+UU1g/4+UU'g/4+8^J+H9.*+').,)*6C+,2-+c^U+/,A*-+?9B(@(*/+,.*+.*L*..*-+)9+(2+)7*+.*?9.)+Q*B9R+)7*C
7,A*+Q**2+@92/(-*.,)(92/+(2+)7*+,//*//>*2)+9L+)7*+,??B(@,)(92D++59R*A*.4+)7*+.*@9>>*2-,)(92+(/+@92/(-*.*-
)9+@9>?BC+R()7+)7*+:UUJD

A"3P"3'0123'5.99'23P'627"*F:'!"##Q3$%7'+3R*2:%*QL%Q*&'A&S7'T!+AU
=7(/+,??B(*/+)9+.*B*A,2)+-*A*B9?>*2)/+L.9>+#!"#<"F#!F

V=0'5..W

eKF+=9R2/@,?*0+89@,B+H92)*@)+a+H7,.,@)*.
eK`+c.Q,2+').I@)I.*0+'?,@*+a+39A*>*2)/
eKP+c.Q,2+HB,.()C+a+',L*)C
eK&+UIQB(@+S*,B>0+8,2-/@,?*+^*/(62
eK%+UIQB(@+S*,B>0+').**)/@,?*
eKf+E.@7()*@)I.,B+hI,B()C
eKFP+^*A*B9?>*2)+(2+H92/*.A,)(92+E.*,/
eKF&+EB)*.,)(92/+a+KN)*2/(92/+)9+eI(B-(26/+(2+H92/*.A,)(92+E.*,/

Page 15



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3345678 9+,& ; "1 :

5!F+S*/(-*2)(,B+hI,B()C+Z+8,C9I)+H92/(-*.,)(92/
5F#+JB,)/+9A*.+,2-+E-W9(2(26+eI(B-(26/+(2+'79??(26+H*2).*/
U'!<+S*/(-*2)(,B+^*A*B9?>*2)+XH,.+U,.T(26+'),2-,.-/[
=S:!!++892-92+HC@B*+:*)R9.T
=S:F<+\2Z').**)+U,.T(26
=S:`<+'*.A(@(26+(2+:*R+^*A*B9?>*2)

<9=372)!&>?,')=$?-&)1"@)A&B)!&C&D"/%&'(
<9!2)<358

!C,EVAD@D+C,
:*(67Q9I./+R*.*+@92/IB)*-+92+F!/)+E?.(B+F#!!+,2-+,6,(2+92+F#)7+i,2I,.C+F#!F+L9BB9R(26+2*69)(,)(92+R()7+)7*
,??B(@,2)+,2-+,.@7()*@)+B*,-(26+)9+/9>*+,>*2->*2)/D++EB)79I67+2*(67Q9I./+@9>>*2)/+R*.*+>,-*+,6,(2/)
)7*+8(/)*-+eI(B-(26+,??B(@,)(92+.*L*.*2@*+,BB+)7*+.*/?92/*/+.*@*(A*-+,.*+/*)+-9R2+7*.*+,/+R*BBD

! =7*+?.9?9/*-+LB,)/+/79IB-+29)+Q*+,@@*//*-+L.9>+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*+,/+)7(/+(/+,+UIQB(@+=79.9I67L,.*+j
^9+29)+Q*B(*A*+)7(/+-99.+*N(/)*-+?.(9.+)9+I2,I)79.(/*-+R9.T/+,2-+()+(/+29)+/,L*+9.+/I(),QB*D

! =7*.*+(/+29R7*.*+L9.+)7*+/)9.,6*+9L+R,/)*+L.9>+)7*+.*/),I.,2)+9.+LB,)/+j+=7*+?,//,6*+7,/+Q*@9>*+,
-I>?(26+6.9I2-+>,T(26+()+I27*,B)7C+,2-+I2/(67)BCD

! =7*/*+(//I*/+,LL*@)+)7*+-,(BC+B(A*/+9L+.*/(-*2)/+R79+B(A*+@B9/*+)9+)7(/+QI(B-(26D
! =7*+*2).,2@*+/79IB-+Q*+>9A*-+)9+)7*+@9I.)C,.-+92+)7*+9)7*.+/(-*+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26+R7*.*+)7*.*+(/+,B/9

/?,@*+L9.+.IQQ(/7+/)9.,6*D
! =7*+2I>Q*.+9L+LB,)/+92+)7*+?.9?9/*-+/()*+(/+>9.*+)7,2+)7*+/()*+/79IB-+,@@9>>9-,)*D
! =7*+LB,)/+7,A*+29+,>*2()C+/?,@*+92+/()*+j+=7*+6,.-*2+/?,@*+)9+)7*+.*,.+R7(@7+7,/+Q**2+QI(B)+92+R()7

I2,I)79.(/*-+R9.T/+/79IB-+Q*+.*)I.2*-D

:*(67Q9I./+R*.*+.*@92/IB)*-+92+,>*2->*2)/+)9+)7*+?.9?9/*-+X-(/@I//*-+Q*B9R[+,2-+>,2C+.*()*.,)*-+)7*(.
@9>>*2)/D+++J9BB9R(26+,+>**)(26+R()7+,+>*>Q*.+9L+)7*+SI@TB(-6*+EA*2I*+S*/(-*2)/+E//9@(,)(92+()+R,/
,??,.*2)+)7,)+)7*+,B)*.,)(92/+)9+)7*+?B,2/+7,-+29)+Q**2+LIBBC+29)*-+X?9//(QBC+-I*+)9+)7*+/>,BB+/@,B*+9L+)7*+?B,2
A(*R,QB*+92+)7*+R*Q/()*[D++'IQ/*]I*2)+)9+)7(/+>**)(26+)7*+L9BB9R(26+@9>>*2)/+R*.*+.*@*(A*-0

! ;7,)+?.96.*//+7,/+Q**2+>,-*+,Q9I)+)7*+9.(6(2,B+HH=V+@,>*.,+R7(@7+-(/,??*,.*-k
! '**T+@92L(.>,)(92+)7,)+)7*+.*LI/*+/)9.,6*+/?,@*+(/+B,.6*+*29I67+L9.+)7*+LB,)/+,2-+)7,)+)7*+@9BB*@)(92

@9>?,2C+R(BB+7,A*+,@@*//+)9+,2-+@9BB*@)+L.9>+)7(/+B9@,)(92D
! '**T+@92L(.>,)(92+)7,)+)7*+@9>>*.@(,B+R,/)*+R(BB+Q*+@9BB*@)*-+L.9>+)7*+/)9.,6*+/?,@*+/79R2D
! S*>,(2+9??9/*-+)9+)7*+*N)*.2,B+>*),B+/),(.@,/*D

HBB.+5*@)9.+7,/+@9>>*2)*-+.,(/(26+@92@*.2+,Q9I)+)7*+*N(/)(26+?99.+?.9A(/(92+L9.+.*LI/*+/)9.,6*+,2-+)7*+2**-
L9.+)7(/+)9+Q*+(>?.9A*-D

+3%&*321
H92/*.A,)(92+a+^*/(620++U.9?9/,B+(/+,@@*?),QB*+/IQW*@)+)9+.*]I(.*>*2)+L9.+/?*@(L(@+-*),(B/+QC+@92-()(92
HH=V+@92).9B+.99>+>,2,6*.0++H92L(.>*-+/?*@(L(@,)(92+9L+HH=V+@,>*.,+/9I67)+,2-+?I.@7,/*+,2-+(2/),BB,)(92
@9/)+X-(/@I//*-+LI.)7*.+Q*B9R[D
'*@I.*+eC+^*/(62+9LL(@*.0++:9+9QW*@)(92+)9+B9@,)(92+9L+.*/(-*2)(,B+*2).,2@*4+(>?.9A*>*2)/+-(/@I//*-+Q*B9RD

(;6@(XE
0*")":21
E/+-*/@.(Q*-+(2+)7*+l7(/)9.Cg+)7*+1.**2+3,2+QI(B-(26+7,/+Q**2+/IQW*@)+)9+2I>*.9I/+I2/C>?,)7*)(@+,B)*.,)(92/4
)7*+@I..*2)+,..,26*>*2)+@92/(/)(26+9L+!#+I2()/+(/+I2B,RLIB+,/+,.*+,B)*.,)(92/+,2-+*N)*2/(92/+)9+)7*+6.9I2-
LB99.+@9>>*.@(,B+?.*>(/*/D++=7*+@I..*2)+,??B(@,)(92+@92/(/)/+9L+LI.)7*.+,B)*.,)(92/+,2-+,2+*N)*2/(92+R7(@7+R(BB
,BB9R+)7*+@7,.,@)*.+9L+)7*+1.,-*+dd+8(/)*-+eI(B-(26+)9+Q*+.*(2/),)*-+,2-+R(BB+,B/9+.*-I@*+)7*+,>9I2)+9L
,@@9>>9-,)(92+,Q9A*+)9+P+/*BLZ@92),(2*-+LB,)/D

=7*+9.(6(2,B+B,C9I)+9L+)7*+I??*.+LB99./+9L+)7*+?.9?*.)C4+?.9A(-(26+,2@(BB,.C+/?,@*+L9.+)7*+@9>>*.@(,B+I/*+,2-
,@@9>>9-,)(92+L9.+,+/(26B*+9@@I?,2)"L,>(BC+(/+29)+,2+,..,26*>*2)+R7(@7+(/+A(,QB*+,/+,+I/*+(2+)7(/+B9@,)(92+(2
)7*+?.*/*2)+-,CD++\LL(@*./+7,A*+29+9QW*@)(92+)9+)7*+?.(2@(?B*+9L+)7*+,??B(@,)(924+)7*+/@7*>*+7,/+Q**2+-.,R2+I?
QC+,2+,.@7()*@)I.,B+L(.>+R7(@7+/?*@(,B(/*/+(2+7(/)9.(@+,.@7()*@)I.*D++=7*+/IQ>(//(924+(2@BI-(26+,+l/(62(L(@,2@*
,??.,(/,Bg+(/+9L+699-+]I,B()C+(2+)*.>/+9L+)7*+,))*2)(92+6(A*2+)9+)7*+@7,.,@)*.+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26+,2-+)7*+I2()/
?.9A(-*-+,2-+(/+@92/(-*.*-+)9+>**)+)7*+6I(-,2@*+9L+)7*+:UUJD++\LL(@*./+7,A*+R9.T*-+)9+,--.*//+,+L*R
9I)/),2-(26+?9(2)/+-(/@I//*-+Q*B9R+,2-+,.*+9L+)7*+9?(2(92+)7,)+)7*+?.9?9/*-+/@7*>*4+/IQW*@)+)9+,+B*6,B

Page 16



,6.**>*2)+,2-+@92-()(92/4+/79IB-+Q*+/I??9.)*-D

0*")":&P'21%&*2%$"3:'$3'%Y&'L"3%&Z%'"R'%Y&'A$:%&P'[Q$1P$34
=7*+I2,I)79.(/*-+,B)*.,)(92/+)9+)7*+QI(B-(26+X)79/*+R7(@7+7,A*+),T*2+?B,@*+/(2@*+()/+B(/)(26[4+,.*+/),)*-
@9>?.*7*2/(A*BC+92+?,6*/+!`+,2-+!<+9L+)7*+l5(/)9.(@,B+e,@T6.9I2-+S*?9.)gD

=7*+,??B(@,)(92+/IQ>(//(92+(2@BI-*/+,+l/(62(L(@,2@*+,??.,(/,Bg+R7(@74+92+LB99.+?B,2/4+(-*2)(L(*/+)7*+?,.)/+9L+)7*
/).I@)I.*+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26+R7(@7+,.*+9L+5(67+'(62(L(@,2@*4+'9>*+'(62(L(@,2@*+9.+9L+:9+'(62(L(@,2@*"^*).(>*2),BD

=@"$'-)1D""@
E)+6.9I2-+LB99.+)7*.*+(/+,+/(62(L(@,2)+B9//+9L+)7*+7(/)9.(@+L,Q.(@D++=7*+?.9?9/,B+(2)*2-/+)9+?,.)BC+.*(2/),)*+B9/)
L*,)I.*/+,2-+L())(26/+(2@BI-(26+)7*+.*>9A,B+9L+)7*+/I/?*2-*-+@*(B(26+)9+.*A*,B+)7*+9.(6(2,B+,2-+.*>9A*+)7*
>9-*.2+LB99.+)(B*/+,2-+.*?B,@*+R()7+,??.9?.(,)*+)(>Q*.D++=7*+.*(2/),)*>*2)+9L+?,2*BB(264+/T(.)(26+,2-+@9.2(@(26
,/+R*BB+,/+,+Q,.+XI/(26+9.(6(2,B+?,.)/+R7*.*+?.*/*.A*-[D++=7*+L99-+7,)@7+L.9>+)7*+T()@7*2+R(BB+Q*+@B9/*-4+,+2*R
L(.*+*/@,?*+-99.+R(BB+.*?B,@*+)7*+*N(/)(26D

=7*+I2,I)79.(/*-+.*,.+*N)*2/(92+R7(@7+7,/+Q**2+*.*@)*-+,@.9//+)7*+R79B*+9L+)7*+C,.-+Q*7(2-+)7*+QI(B-(26+(/
?.9?9/*-+)9+Q*+.*>9A*-+,2-+.*?B,@*-+R()7+,+B(67)R*(67)+6B,M*-+*N)*2/(924+9L+,+@92)*>?9.,.C+QI)+/IQ)B*
,??*,.,2@*D++H9>?,.*-+)9+)7*+*N(/)(26+/).I@)I.*+R7(@7+-*).,@)/+L.9>+)7*+QI(B-(26+)7*+.*?B,@*>*2)+R(BB+7,A*+,
>(29.+(>?,@)+,2-+.*/IB)+(2+,2+*27,2@*>*2)D+

=7*+*N(/)(26+XI2,I)79.(/*-[+.*,.+/),(.@,/*+)9+)7*+I??*.+LB99./+R(BB+Q*+.*?B,@*-+R()7+,+2*R+/),(.@,/*
@92/).I@)*-+9L+/)**B+,2-+@B,-+(2+,.)(L(@(,B+/)92*+R()7+,+2*R+6B,M*-+@,29?C+9A*.+)7*+)9?+B,2-(26D++=7*+SI@TB(-6*
EA*2I*+S*/(-*2)/+E//9@(,)(92+9QW*@)+)9+)7*+*N)*.2,B+/),(.@,/*+)9+)7*+.*,.+,/+)7*+,@@*//+)9+)7*+I??*.+LB99./4
?.(9.+)9+I2,I)79.(/*-+R9.T/+R*.*+9.(6(2,BBC+(2)*.2,BD++=7(/+7,/+Q**2+@92/(-*.*-+(2+-*),(B+,2-+-(/@I//*-+R()7
)7*+,.@7()*@)+QI)+,B)*.2,)(A*+R9.T,QB*+/9BI)(92+(/+29)+L9.)7@9>(26D++=7*+/*?,.,)(92+9L+)7*+I/*/+,)+6.9I2-+,2-
I??*.+LB99./+>,T*/+()+A*.C+-(LL(@IB)+)9+(-*2)(LC+,+?.,@)(@,B+,..,26*>*2)+L9.+,2+(2)*.2,B+/),(.@,/*4+/*?,.,)*+)9+)7*
6.9I2-+LB99.+I/*+R7(@7+-9*/+29)+.*]I(.*+LI.)7*.+/(62(L(@,2)+,B)*.,)(92/+)9+)7*+9.(6(2,B+/).I@)I.*+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26+Z
(2+8(/)*-+eI(B-(26+)*.>/+)7(/+2**-/+)9+Q*+,A9(-*-D++=7*+*N(/)(26+/),(.@,/*+(/+9L+?99.+]I,B()C+QI)+,+>I@7
(>?.9A*-+.*?B,@*>*2)+(/+?.9?9/*-4+,/+-*/@.(Q*-+,Q9A*D++'?*@(L(@+-*),(B+9L+)7*+-*/(62+,2-+>,)*.(,B/+9L+)7(/
R(BB+Q*+@92-()(92*-+)9+*2/I.*+()+(/+9L+7(67+]I,B()C+,2-+,??.9?.(,)*+)9+)7*+QI(B-(26D++E+2*R+6,)*+R(BB+.*?B,@*+)7*
*2).,2@*+-99.+92)9+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*D

E//&@)1D""@>
=7*+*N(/)(26+?,.)()(92/+(2/*.)*-+)9+@.*,)*+A*.C+/>,BB+(2-(A(-I,B+T()@7*2*))*/+,2-+Q,)7.99>/+(2+*,@7+/)I-(9
.99>+,.*+7(67B(67)*-+,/+9L+29+/(62(L(@,2@*+9.+-*).(>*2),B+)9+)7*+@7,.,@)*.+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26D++=7*+?.9?9/,B
.,)(92,B(/*/+)7*+B,C9I)+,2-+?.9?9/*/+>(2(>I>+?,.)()(92(26+)9+L,@(B(),)*+)7*+@.*,)(92+9L+)7*+P+2*R+I2()/D++\.(6(2,B
L*,)I.*/+9L+@9.2(@*/4+/T(.)(26+,2-+-,-9+.,(B(26+R(BB+Q*+.*A*,B*-4+.*?,(.*-+,2-+.*Z(2/),)*-+,/+,??.9?.(,)*D
U,.]I*)+LB99.(26+(/+?.9?9/*-+(2+T()@7*2+,.*,/+,2-+@,.?*)+9.+)(B(26+*B/*R7*.*D

EBB+-99./+R(BB+Q*+.*?B,@*-+R()7+)(>Q*.+?,2*BB*-+-99./+,2-+I?A@+R(2-9R/+R()7+)(>Q*.+@,/*>*2)+R(2-9R/+R()7
B*,-*-+6B,//+?,2*/+)9+)7*+L.92)D++=9+)7*+.*,.+R(2-9R/+R(BB+,B/9+Q*+.*?B,@*-+R()7+)(>Q*.+L.,>*/+,2-+)7*+-99.+)9
)7*+LB,)+.99L+R(BB+Q*+.*?B,@*-+R()7+,+R(2-9RD

\.(6(2,B+W9(2*.C+R(BB+Q*+.*?,(.*-+,2-+.*Z-*@9.,)*-+R()7+*66Z/7*BB+9(B+?,(2)4+R7(B*+/B,)*+.99L/+R(BB+Q*+.*?,(.*-+R()7
/B,)*/+.*?B,@*-+R7*.*+2*@*//,.C+,2-+,2C+?B,/)(@+?(?*/+,2-+6I))*.+R(BB+Q*+.*?B,@*-+R()7+@,/)+(.92+92*/D

=7*+?.(2@(?B*+9L+,BB+9L+)7(/+R9.T+(/+,@@*?),QB*+79R*A*.+)9+*2/I.*+)7*+]I,B()C4+@92-()(92/+,.*+.*@9>>*2-*-+)9
/*@I.*+)7*+/IQ>(//(92+9L+LI.)7*.+-*),(B/D++=7(/+(2@BI-*/+B,.6*+/@,B*+-.,R(26/+9L+)7*+?.9?9/*-+R(2-9R/4+-*),(B
9L+)7*+>,)*.(,B+9L+)7*+6B,M*-+*N)*2/(924+-*),(B+9L+)7*+).*,)>*2)+9L+)7*+.*>,(2(26+.*,.+C,.-+/?,@*+Z+/9L)
B,2-/@,?(26+.*@9>>*2-*-D++d2L9.>,)(92+R(BB+,B/9+2**-+)9+Q*+,??.9A*-+L9.+,BB+>,)*.(,B/+R7(@7+R(BB+Q*+I/*-+)9
.*?,(.".*?B,@*+)7*+L*,)I.*/+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26+(2)*.2,BBCD

=7*+I/*+9L+)7*+/?,@*+)9+)7*+B*L)+9L+)7*+1.**2+3,2+QI(B-(26+7,/+Q**2+]I*.(*-+,2-+)7*+,??B(@,2)+7,/+,-A(/*-
)7,)+()+(/+I/*-+QC+7(>/*BL+92BC+L9.+/)9.,6*D++E+@92-()(92+(/+.*@9>>*2-*-+)7,)+)7*+/?,@*+/7,BB+92BC+Q*+I/*-+(2
,//9@(,)(92+R()7+)7*+/IQW*@)+QI(B-(26+/9+(L+)7*+/)9.,6*+I/*+(/+)9+@92)(2I*+()+/79IB-+Q*+I/*-+92BC+(2+,//9@(,)(92
R()7+)7*+QI(B-(26+,2-+29)+9L+/)9.,6*+L.9>+9)7*.+/()*/+,2-+)7,)+/)9.,6*+/79IB-+Q*+I2-*.+)7*+.99L*-+,.*,/+92BCD
EB)*.2,)(A*BC+)7*+/?,@*+@9IB-+Q*+(-*2)(L(*-+,/+,>*2()C+/?,@*+L9.+.*/(-*2)/D++=7*+,??B(@,2)+>,C+R,2)+)9
@92/(-*.+9)7*.+,??.9?.(,)*+LI)I.*+I/*/+R7(@7+@9IB-+>,C+29)+Q*+,2@(BB,.C+)9+)7*+>,(2+QI(B-(26+*D6D+,2+9LL(@*
Xe![+I/*+QI)+,2C+/I@7+I/*+R9IB-+.*]I(.*+,+/*?,.,)*+,??B(@,)(92D

\Q21$%7'"R'2LL"##"P2%$"3
=7*+*N(/)(26+!#+I2()/+,.*+A*.C+/>,BB4+L,(B(26+)9+,@7(*A*+)7*+/),2-,.-/+/*)+(2+)7*+892-92+UB,2+,2-+'U1!%+,2-

Page 17



?.9A(-*+,+?99.+/),2-,.-+9L+,@@9>>9-,)(92D++=7*+?.9?9/*-+,..,26*>*2)+.*/IB)/+(2+)7*+@.*,)(92+9L+`+N+!ZQ*-
LB,)/+,2-+F+N+/)I-(9+I2()D++E/+-*>92/).,)*-+(2+)7*+),QB*+Q*B9R+)7*+?.9?9/*-+I2()/+@9>*+@B9/*+)9+9.+*N@**-+)7*
892-92+UB,2/+>(2(>I>+/?,@*+/),2-,.-/+L9.+2*R+-*A*B9?>*2)/+,2-+R(BB+?.9A(-*+,+699-+]I,B()C+9L
,@@9>>9-,)(92D

c2() JB99.+,.*, 892-92+UB,2
/),2-,.-

!+X!ZQ*-[ <%D`/]> P#/]>
F+X!ZQ*-[ P!/]> P#/]>
`+X!ZQ*-[ P`/]> P#/]>
<+X/)I-(9[ `$/]> `%/]>
P+X/)I-(9[ `$/]> `%/]>

=7*+/()*4+(2+,+@92/).,(2*-+I.Q,2+B9@,)(924+(/+29)+,QB*+)9+?.9A(-*+,>*2()C+/?,@*+L9.+.*/(-*2)/4+79R*A*.+)7*
(2)*.2,B+/(M*+9L+I2()/+(/+699-+,2-+,2+,@@*?),QB*+B*A*B+9L+.*/(-*2)(,B+,>*2()C+R(BB+Q*+,@7(*A*-D++=7*+*N)*2/(92
R(BB+L(BB+>I@7+9L+)7*+C,.-+)9+)7*+.*,.4+(L+,2+*N)*2/(92+R,/+29)+?.9?9/*-+)7*+I/*+9L+)7*+C,.-+QC+.*/(-*2)/+R9IB-
Q*+I2B(T*BC+)9+Q*+?9//(QB*+R()79I)+,+@92LB(@)+Q*)R**2+)7*+6.9I2-+LB99.+,2-+.*/(-*2)(,B+9@@I?(*./D

=7*+]I,B()C+9L+)7*+.*/(-*2)(,B+,@@*//+,..,26*>*2)/+L9.+)7*+LI)I.*+9@@I?,2)/+9L+)7*+LB,)/+7,/+Q**2+7(67B(67)*-
,/+,+/79.)@9>(26+9L+)7*+/@7*>*+QC+2*(67Q9I./+,2-+,+H9I2@(BB9.D++=7*+?.9?9/*-+,@@*//+(/+(2+)7*+/,>*
B9@,)(924+92+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*4+,/+(2+)7*+*N(/)(26+I2,I)79.(/*-+/()I,)(92D++e*C92-+)7*+9@@I..*2@*+9L+LBC
)(??(26+)7*+?,//,6*R,C+(/+(-*2)(L(*-+,/+,2+,.*,+R7*.*+,2)(Z/9@(,B+Q*7,A(9I.+7,/+9@@I.*-+,2-+()+)7*.*L9.*+-9*/
29)+9LL*.+,+699-+]I,B()C+.*/(-*2)(,B+*2A(.92>*2)+L9.+,2+*2).,2@*D++E/+29)*-+(2+)7*+b@92/IB),)(92b+/*@)(92+,Q9A*4
9LL(@*./+/?9T*+)9+)7*+/*@I.*+QC+-*/(62+?9B(@*+9LL(@*.+.*6,.-(26+)7(/+,..,26*>*2)4+)7*+?.(2@(?B*+9L+.*/(-*2)(,B
,@@*//+L.9>+)7*+?,//,6*+R,C+R,/+29)+9QW*@)*-+)9+QI)+)7*+L9BB9R(26+>*,/I.*/+L9.+(>?.9A*>*2)+R*.*
-(/@I//*-+,2-+,.*+29R+?.9?9/*-D

F?,G(?',
SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*+7,/+,+/).**)+B(67)+,)+*()7*.+*2-+,2-+92*+(2+)7*+>(--B*+?.9A(-(26+,+/),2-,.-+B*A*B+9L
(BBI>(2,)(92D++E--()(92,B+B(67)(26+(/+?.9?9/*-+)9+Q*+,)),@7*-+)9+)7*+/(-*+9L+)7*+*B*A,)(92+,.9I2-+)7*+.*/(-*2)(,B
*2).,2@*+6,)*4+-*),(B/+9L+)7*+/?*@(L(@+B9@,)(924+-*/(62+,2-+B*A*B+9L+(BBI>(2,)(92+R(BB+Q*+.*]I(.*-+QC+@92-()(92+QI)
R(BB+Q*+.*]I(.*-+)9+Q*+9L+,+.*/(-*2)(,B+/@,B*+.,)7*.+,??.9?.(,)*+)9+)7*+QI(B-(26D++=7*+(2).9-I@)(92+9L+2*R+B(67)(26
R(BB+>,T*+)7*+*2).,2@*+>9.*+R*B@9>(26+)9+.*/(-*2)/+,2-+,/+,+Q*))*.+(BBI>(2,)*-+,2-+)7*.*L9.*+A(/(QB*+/?,@*+()
R(BB+Q*+,+B*//+,)).,@)(A*+?B,@*+L9.+,2)(/9@(,B+,@)(A()(*/+,2-+R(BB+(>?.9A*+)7*+.*/(-*2)(,B+@7,.,@)*.D

HHIJ
\LL(@*./+7,A*+-(/@I//*-+)7*+*N(/)(26+,..,26*>*2)+R()7+)7*+>,2,6*.+9L+)7*+HH=V+@92).9B+.99>4+()+R,/+,-A(/*-
)7,)+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*+-9*/+29)+@I..*2)BC+7,A*+,+-*-(@,)*-+@,>*.,+,2-+,+@,>*.,+?9/()(92*-+,)+)7*+5(67
').**)+*2-+9L+)7*+?,//,6*+R,/+A,2-,B(/*-+/9+7,/+29)+Q**2+,A,(B,QB*+.*@*2)BC+?*2-(26+(2/I.,2@*+L9.+.*?,(./D
\)7*.+@,>*.,/+?.9A(-*+@9A*.,6*+9L+)7*+6*2*.,B+5(67+').**)+,.*,D

=7*+/@9?*+L9.+)7*+(2).9-I@)(92+9L+,+2*R+HH=V+@,>*.,+,)+)7*+SI@TB(-6*+EA*2I*+*2-+9L+)7*+?,//,6*4+R7(@7+(/
29)+@I..*2)BC+@9A*.*-4+7,/+Q**2+-(/@I//*-+,2-+,6.**-+R()7+)7*+/*@I.*+QC+-*/(62+9LL(@*.4+)7*+@92).9B+.99>
>,2,6*.+,2-+)7*+,??B(@,2)D++J.9>+)7*+?9(2)+9L+A(*R+9L+)7*+/*@I.*+QC+-*/(62+9LL(@*.4+)7*+HH=V+@,>*.,+R9IB-
-(/@9I.,6*+,2)(/9@(,B+,@)(A()C+(2+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*+,2-+,.9I2-+)7*+]I(*)*.+SI@TB(-6*+EA*2I*+*2-+,2-+R9IB-
>,T*+)7*+?,//,6*+,+/,L*.+?B,@*+L9.+LI)I.*+.*/(-*2)/D++=7*+@92).9B+.99>+9?*.,)9.+(/+7,??C+R()7+)7*+?.9?9/*-
@,>*.,+,2-+)7*+?.(2@(?B*+9L+B(2T(26+()+)9+)7*+H9I2@(Bb/+*N(/)(26+HH=V+2*)R9.T+,2-+@92L(.>/+)7,)+,+@92).(QI)(92
L.9>+)7*+,??B(@,2)+9L+_!<4###+R(BB+@9A*.+)7*+?I.@7,/*+,2-+(2/),BB,)(92+@9/)+]I9)*-+QC+)7*+H9I2@(Bb/+@92).,@)9.
=C@9D

=7*/*+?.9?9/*-+>*,/I.*/+R(BB+29),QBC+(>?.9A*+)7*+]I,B()C+,2-+L**B(26+9L+/,L*)C+L9.+LI)I.*+9@@I?,2)/+R7*2
,@@*//(26+)7*(.+LB,)/+L.9>+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*+,2-+92+)7(/+Q,/(/+9LL(@*./+,.*+9L+)7*+9?(2(92+)7,)+)7*
,..,26*>*2)+(/+,@@*?),QB*D++;7(B*+)7*/*+?.9?9/,B/+,.*+)9+*2/I.*+)7,)+,@@*//+,..,26*>*2)/+L9.+LI)I.*
9@@I?,2)/+,.*+,@@*?),QB*+)7*C+R(BB+,B/9+Q*+9L+Q*2*L()+)9+.*/(-*2)/+(2+)7*+R(-*.+,.*,+R79+I/*+SI@TB(-6*
U,//,6*D++SI@TB(-6*+EA*2I*4+R7(@7+)7*+@,>*.,+R9IB-+,B/9+Q*+,QB*+)9+A(*R4+(/+(-*2)(L(*-+QC+)7*+HH=V+@92).9B
9LL(@*./+,2-+)7*+?9B(@*+,/+,+QB(2-+/?9)+(2+)7*+HH=V+2*)R9.T+,2-+()/+(2).9-I@)(92+R9IB-+Q*+A*.C+I/*LIB+L9.+)7*(.
.9B*/D++=7*+,??B(@,2)+R(BB+?.9A(-*+)7*+/(62(L(@,2)+BI>?+/I>+)9+*2,QB*+()/+?I.@7,/*+,2-+(2/),BB,)(924+)7*
>,(2)*2,2@*+9L+)7*+@,>*.,+R(BB+Q*+@9A*.*-+QC+R,..,2)C+L9.+)7*+L(./)+C*,.+,2-+,L)*.+)7(/+>,(2)*2,2@*+R(BB+Q*
@9A*.*-+QC+)7*+H9I2@(BD

(&RQ:&':%"*24&
=7*+-I>?(26+9L+R,/)*+(2+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*+7,/+Q**2+,2+(//I*+R7(@7+7,/+@,I/*-+@92/(-*.,QB*+-(/).*//+)9
2*(67Q9I.(26+.*/(-*2)/D++=7*+I2,I)79.(/*-+I2()/4+,/+@9>>92+L9.+LB,)/+,Q9A*+/79?/4+7,A*+7,-+)7*(.+.IQQ(/7

Page 18



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3345678 9+,& K "1 :

@9BB*@)*-+-(.*@)BC+L.9>+)7*+/).**)D++59R*A*.4+6(A*2+)7*+2I>Q*.+9L+I2()/+,2-+B9@,)(92+,-W,@*2)+)9+SI@TB(-6*
U,//,6*+)7(/+,..,26*>*2)+7,/+).(66*.*-+,+?.9QB*>+9L+LBC+)(??(26+,B/9+*N,@*.Q,)*-+QC+.IQQ(/7+L.9>+)7*
@9>>*.@(,B+I2()D

.&>?-&'(?+D)+@@+',&%&'(
E+-*/(62,)*-+/)9.,6*+/?,@*+(/+?.9?9/*-+-(.*@)BC+2*N)+)9+)7*+.*/(-*2)(,B+*2).,2@*+92+SI@TB(-6*+U,//,6*D
H9BB*@)(92+/*.A(@*/+,A,(B,QB*+L9.+5(67+').**)+?.9?*.)(*/+,)+?.*/*2)+-9*/+29)+(2@BI-*+.*@C@B(26+,2-+bQ.(26+/()*/b
X)7*+?IQB(@+T*.Q/(-*+.*@C@B(26+L,@(B()(*/[+>I/)+Q*+I/*-+L9.+.*@C@B,QB*+R,/)*D++59R*A*.+)7(/+,..,26*>*2)+(/
@I..*2)BC+Q*(26+.*A(*R*-+,2-+()+(/+*N?*@)*-+)7,)+@9BB*@)(92+/*.A(@*/+L9.+.*@C@B(26+R(BB+Q*+(2).9-I@*-D

=7*+R,/)*+/)9.,6*+@,?,@()C+.*]I(.*-+L9.+*,@7+I2()+(/+!F#B4+)7*+?.9?9/,B+,BB9R/+L9.+<NF<#B+Q(2/+R7(@7+(/
,@@*?),QB*D++=7*+Q(2/+R(BB+>9/)+B(T*BC+Q*+/?B()+Q*)R**2+.*LI/*+,2-+.*@C@B(26+X*()7*.+`0!+9.+F0F[+-*?*2-*2)+92
)7*+L(2,B+9I)@9>*+9L+)7*+,..,26*>*2)/+Q*(26+-.,R2+I?+@I..*2)BC+QC+').**)@,.*4+)7*+.*]I(.*-+@,?,@()C+R(BB+29)
,B)*.D++H9BB*@)(92+>,C+Q*+)R(@*+,+R**T4+,6,(2+)7(/+(/+?*2-(26+L(2,B+,..,26*>*2)/+Q*(26+-.,R2+I?+QC+').**)@,.*
R79+R(BB+Q*+@92/(-*.(26+)7*+B*A*B+9L+/*.A(@*+2*@*//,.CD

d)+7,/+Q**2+@92L(.>*-+R()7+').**)@,.*+9LL(@*./+)7,)+)7*+/)9.,6*+/?,@*+?.9A(-*-+(/+,@@*?),QB*4+()+7,/+Q**2
-*/(62*-+/9+)7,)+Q(2/+,.*+(2-*?*2-*2)BC+>,29IA.,QB*+/9+)7(/+(/+29+@92LB(@)+Q*)R**2+.*LI/*+,2-+.*@C@B(26
@9BB*@)(92/D++d)+7,/+,B/9+Q**2+@92L(.>*-+)7,)+V*9B(,+X)7*+@9BB*@)(92+@92).,@)9.[+R(BB+Q*+,QB*+)9+@9BB*@)+L.9>+)7*
-*/(62,)*-+/?,@*+L.99>+A*7(@B*/+92+5(67+').**)+,2-+,2+,..,26*>*2)+R(BB+Q*+>,-*+)9+?.9A(-*+)7*>+R()7
,@@*//+)9+)7*+/*@I.*-+/)9.,6*+/?,@*+R7(@7+R(BB+Q*+/)*?+L.**D

\QW*@)9./+,2-+HBB.+5*@)9.+7,A*+(L+]I*.(*-+)7*+B9@,)(92+9L+)7*+?.9?9/*-+Q(2+/)9.*+R(BB+Q*+,@@*?),QB*+)9+.*LI/*
@9BB*@)9./D++J9.+@B,.()C4+9LL(@*./+7,A*+@92L(.>*-+R()7+').**)@,.*+@9BB*,6I*/+)7,)+/(M*+,2-+B9@,)(92+9L+)7*+.*LI/*
/)9.*+,.*+,@@*?),QB*+)9+)7*>D

H"%%&@#?+D)+@@+',&%&'(
H9>>*.@(,B+QI/(2*//*/+7,A*+,+B*6,B+.*/?92/(Q(B()C4+Q*C92-+)7*+.*>()+9L+?B,22(26+B*6(/B,)(92+X'*@)(92+`<+9L+)7*
K2A(.92>*2),B+U.9)*@)(92+E@)+!ff#[4+)9+*2/I.*+R,/)*+(/+/*@I.*BC+/)9.*-+,2-+B*6,BBC+-(/?9/*-+9LD++e(2/+L9.
@9>>*.@(,B+R,/)*+,.*+-*/(62,)*-+)9+)7*+9)7*.+/(-*+9L+)7*+QI(B-(26+Q*7(2-+,+6,)*+,2-+)7*+/?*@(L(@+@9BB*@)(92
,..,26*>*2)/+L9.+)7(/+,.*+)7*+?.(A,)*+.*/?92/(Q(B()C+9L+)7*+)*2,2)D++=7*+,??B(@,2)+7,/+@92L(.>*-+A*.Q,BBC+)7,)
)7*+)*2,2)+7,/+,+@9BB*@)(92+,..,26*>*2)+(2+?B,@*+,2-+)7,)+@9BB*@)(92+(/+@I..*2)BC+,6.**-+)9+),T*+?B,@*+)R(@*+,
R**TD

E9.H
=7*+9.(6(2,B+B,C9I)+,2-+2I>Q*.+9L+Q*-.99>/+(2+)7*+QI(B-(26+(/+29)+@B*,.+QI)+9LL(@*./+,.*+9L+)7*+9?(2(92+)7,)
)7*.*+@9IB-+*,/(BC+7,A*+Q**2+<D++\2+)7(/+Q,/(/+)7*+?.9?9/,B+.*/IB)/+(2+)7*+(2).9-I@)(92+9L+92*+LI.)7*.+Q*-.99>
(2+)7*+QI(B-(26+,2-+)7*+/),2-,.-+@7,.6*+9L+_`###+L9.+92*+Q*-.99>+R(BB+Q*+.*]I(.*-D

E+@,.ZL.**+,6.**>*2)+R(BB+Q*+,??B(*-+)9+,BB+I2()/+,/+5(67+').**)+@,229)+,@@9>>9-,)*+(2@.*,/*-+.*/(-*2)(,B
?,.T(26D

!"3L1Q:$"3
c2,@@*?),QB*+,2-+7,.>LIB+,B)*.,)(92/+R(BB+Q*+.*>9A*-+,2-+)7*+@92-()(92+9L+)7*+B(/)*-+QI(B-(26+R(BB+Q*
/(62(L(@,2)BC+(>?.9A*-D++=7*+-*A*B9?>*2)+R(BB+?.9A(-*+P+699-+]I,B()C+.*/(-*2)(,B+I2()/+,2-+,+@9>>*.@(,B+I2()+,)
6.9I2-+LB99.4+.*/9BA(26+R,/)*+/)9.,6*+?.9QB*>/4+(>?.9A(26+/,L*)C+,2-+/*@I.(26+)7*+LI)I.*+@92/*.A,)(92+9L+,
7*.(),6*+,//*)D

(;!C66;,=@D+C,> 1.,2)+H92/*2)+/IQW*@)+)9+8*6,B+,6.**>*2)

X![ =7*+?.9?9/*-+-*A*B9?>*2)+(/+(2+6*2*.,B+,@@9.-,2@*+R()7+?9B(@(*/+@92),(2*-+(2+)7*0Z

e.*2)+c2(),.C+^*A*B9?>*2)+UB,2+F##<
H9I2@(Bb/+'I??B*>*2),.C+UB,22(26+1I(-,2@*+!%

S*B*A,2)+?9B(@(*/+(2+)7*+E-9?)*-+c2(),.C+^*A*B9?>*2)+UB,2+,.*+)79/*+(2+)7*+L9BB9R(26
@7,?)*./0Z

eI(B)+K2A(.92>*2)0+(2+)*.>/+9L+)7*+?.9)*@)(92+,2-+*27,2@*>*2)+9L+)7*+*2A(.92>*2)

Page 19



59I/(260+(2+)*.>/+9L+?.9)*@)(26+.*/(-*2)(,B+,>*2()(*/+,2-+6I(-(26+2*R+-*A*B9?>*2)
=9R2+H*2).*/+,2-+'79??(260+(2+)*.>/+9L+)7*+.,26*+,2-+,@@*//(Q(B()C+9L+/*.A(@*/+,2-+)7*(.
,)).,@)(A*2*//
=.,2/?9.)0+(2+)*.>/+9L+/I/),(2,Q(B()C4+/,L*)C+,2-+/*.A(@(26+2**-/

:,)(92,B+UB,22(26+U9B(@C+J.,>*R9.T

!C,=+D+C,E](;@EC,E>

X![ =7*+-*A*B9?>*2)+)9+R7(@7+)7(/+?*.>(//(92+.*B,)*/+>I/)+Q*+Q*6I2+29)+B,)*.+)7,2+)7*+*N?(.,)(92
9L+)7.**+C*,./+Q*6(22(26+92+)7*+-,)*+9L+)7(/+?*.>(//(92D

S*,/920++=9+@92L9.>+R()7+)7*+.*]I(.*>*2)/+9L+'*@)(92+f!+9L+)7*+=9R2+,2-+H9I2).C+UB,22(26
E@)+!ff#D

XF[ =7*+-*A*B9?>*2)+7*.*QC+?*.>())*-+/7,BB+Q*+@,..(*-+9I)+(2+,@@9.-,2@*+R()7+)7*+L9BB9R(26
,??.9A*-+-.,R(26X/[+,2-"9.+-9@I>*2)X/[0

UZeZ##!+H+SKVd'K^
UZ1JZ##F+H+SKVd'K^
UZJJZ##`+H+SKVd'K^
UZ'JZ##<+K+SKVd'K^
UZSJZ##P
UZJ+K8KVZ##&
UZ'+K8KVZ##%
UZS+K8KVZ##$+H+SKVd'K^
UZ'KHZ^^Z##f
UZK8"'HZHHZ#!#+H+SKVd'K^

^*/(62+,2-+,@@*//+/),)*>*2)+X3,.@7+F#!![
5(/)9.(@,B+Q,@T6.9I2-+.*?9.)+XJ*Q.I,.C+F#!![

S*,/920++J9.+)7*+,A9(-,2@*+9L+-9IQ)+,2-+(2+)7*+(2)*.*/)/+9L+?.9?*.+?B,22(26D

X`[ =7*+ .*,.+ @I.)(B,6*+ 9L+ )7*+ /()*+ )9+ )7*+ .*,.+ 9L+ )7*+ ?.9?9/*-+ *N)*2/(92+ /7,BB+ Q*+ B,2-/@,?*-+ (2
,@@9.-,2@*+R()7+,+/@7*>*+)9+Q*+/IQ>())*-+)9+,2-+,??.9A*-+(2+R.()(26+QC+)7*+89@,B+UB,22(26
EI)79.()C+Q*L9.*+,2C+R9.T/+@9>>*2@*+92+/()*4+)7*+B,2-/@,?*+R9.T+)9+Q*+@9>?B*)*-+-I.(26+)7*
L(./)+,A,(B,QB*+?B,2)(26+/*,/92+L9BB9R(26+@9>?B*)(92+9L+)7*+-*A*B9?>*2)+7*.*QC+,??.9A*-D+ E2C
?B,2)(26+)7,)+(/+?,.)+9L+)7*+,??.9A*-+/@7*>*+)7,)+R()7(2+,+?*.(9-+9L 1?C& C*,./+,L)*.+?B,2)(26+(/
.*>9A*-4+ -(*/+ 9.+ Q*@9>*/+ /*.(9I/BC+ -,>,6*-+ 9.+ -(/*,/*-4+ /7,BB+ Q*+ .*?B,@*-+ (2+ )7*+ 2*N)
?B,2)(26+/*,/92+,2-+,BB+?B,2)(26+/7,BB+Q*+.*?B,@*-+(2+)7*+/,>*+?9/()(92/+R()7+9)7*./+9L+,+/(>(B,.
/(M*+ ,2-+ /?*@(*/4+ I2B*//+ )7*+ 89@,B+ UB,22(26+ EI)79.()C+ L(./)+ 6(A*/+ R.())*2+ @92/*2)+ )9+ ,2C
A,.(,)(92D++^*),(B+/7,BB,B/9+(2@BI-*+,BB+7,.-/),2-(26D

S*,/920++=9+*2/I.*+,+/,)(/L,@)9.C+/),2-,.-+9L+,??*,.,2@*+,2-+/*))(26+L9.+)7*+-*A*B9?>*2)
,2-+)9+*2/I.*+)7,)+)7*+?.9?9/*-+-*A*B9?>*2)+*27,2@*/+)7*+A(/I,B+,>*2()C+9L+)7*+B9@,B()C4+(2
)7*+(2)*.*/)/+9L+)7*+,>*2()(*/+9L+)7*+9@@I?,2)/+9L+)7*+-*A*B9?>*2)+,2-+)9+?.9A(-*+).**+?B,2)(26
(2+?I./I,2@*+9L+/*@)(92+!f%+9L+)7*+=9R2+,2-+H9I2).C+UB,22(26+E@)+!ff#D

X<[ =7*+/?,@*+)9+)7*+B*L)+9L+)7*+/IQW*@)+QI(B-(26+/7,BB+Q*+I/*-+92BC+(2+,//9@(,)(92+R()7+)7*+I/*/+9L
)7*+QI(B-(26+(2@BI-(26+,//9@(,)*-+/)9.,6*+9.+,>*2()C+/?,@*+L9.+.*/(-*2)/4+,2C+/)9.,6*+/7,BB+Q*
T*?)+(2+)7*+@9A*.*-+,.*,/D++E2C+9)7*.+I/*+R9IB-+.*]I(.*+,+/*?,.,)*+?B,22(26+,??B(@,)(92D

S*,/920+=9+*2/I.*+)7*+I/*+-9*/+29)+7,.>+)7*+(2)*6.()C+9L+)7*+8(/)*-+eI(B-(26+9.+@92LB(@)+R()7
.*/(-*2)(,B+,>*2()CD

XP[ ^*),(B/+9L+?.9?9/*-+/(62,6*4+,-A*.)(/*>*2)/+,2-+/(62,6*+(BBI>(2,)(92+L9.+)7*+,.*,+(-*2)(L(*-+92
)7*+L.92)+*B*A,)(924+/7,BB+Q*+/IQ>())*-+)9+,2-+,??.9A*-+(2+R.()(26+QC+)7*+8UE+?.(9.+)9
(2/),BB,)(92D

S*,/920+=9+?.9)*@)+)7*+@7,.,@)*.+9L+5,.B*/-*2+H92/*.A,)(92+E.*,+,2-+)7*+8(/)*-+eI(B-(26

Page 20



X&[ ^*),(B/+ 9L+ >,)*.(,B/+ L9.+ ,BB+ *N)*.2,B+ R9.T4+ (2@BI-(26+ /,>?B*/4+ /7,BB+ Q*+ /IQ>())*-+ )9+ ,2-
,??.9A*-+(2+R.()(26+QC+)7*+89@,B+UB,22(26+EI)79.()C+Q*L9.*+,2C+R9.T+(/+@9>>*2@*-D++=7*+R9.T
/7,BB+Q*+@,..(*-+9I)+(2+,@@9.-,2@*+R()7+)7*+,??.9A*-+-*),(B/D

S*,/920+=9+*2/I.*+,+/,)(/L,@)9.C+-*A*B9?>*2)+R7(@7+-9*/+29)+?.*WI-(@*+)7*+,>*2()C+9L+)7*
B9@,B()CD

X%[ ^*),(B/+ 9L+ ?.9?9/*-+ B(67)(26+ 92+ )7*+ SI@TB(-6*+ U,//,6*+ *B*A,)(92+ 9L+ )7*+ QI(B-(264+ /7,BB+ Q*
/IQ>())*-+)9+,2-+,??.9A*-+(2+R.()(26+QC+)7*+89@,B+UB,22(26+EI)79.()C+?.(9.+)9+@9>>*2@*>*2)
9L+)7*+-*A*B9?>*2)D++=7*+,??.9A*-+-*),(B/+/7,BB+Q*+LIBBC+(>?B*>*2)*-D

^*),(B/+/7,BB+(2@BI-*0
X,[+^*/(62
XQ[+KN,@)+?9/()(92
X@[+8*A*B+9L+BI>(2*2@*

S*,/920++d2+)7*+(2)*.*/)/+9L+/,L*)C4+,>*2()C+,2-+@92A*2(*2@*D

+,MC(6@D+<;E>

X![ =7*+,??B(@,2)+(/+,-A(/*-+)7,)+,..,26*>*2)/+>I/)+Q*+>,-*+-(.*@)BC+R()7+)7*+.*LI/*+@9BB*@)(92
@9>?,2(*/+L9.+Q9)7+)7*+.*/(-*2)(,B+,2-+@9>>*.@(,B+Q(2/+)9+?.9A(-*+,+T*C"L9Q+/C/)*>+L9.
,@@*//+)9+)7*+/*@I.*+/)9.,6*+,.*,/D

XF[ =7*+,??B(@,2)+(/+(2L9.>*-+)7,)+K2L9.@*>*2)+:9)(@*+K"#&"#F$F+-,)*-+!f+i,2I,.C+F##%+.*]I(.(26
I2,I)79.(/*-+R9.T/+)9+Q*+.*>9A*-+,2-+)7*+QI(B-(26+>,-*+699-+.*>,(2/+A,B(-+,2-+>I/)+Q*
LIBBC+@9>?B(*-+R()7+,/+,+>,))*.+9L+I.6*2@CD

E2C+?*./92+R(/7(26+)9+(2/?*@)+)7*+,Q9A*+?,?*./+/79IB-+@92),@)+8(M+'IBB(A,24+=7*+UB,22(26+'*.A(@*4+e.*2)
59I/*4+`<f+5(67+S9,-4+;*>QB*C4+3(--B*/*N4+5Ef+&em4+=*BD+:9D+#F#+$f`% P`%%

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3345677 8+,& 3 "1 6

!"##$%%&&'(&)"*% +%&#',"- './

01233$34'!"##$%%&&'"3 55'6278'5.95 !2:&',"- !!"#$%%

01233$34'!"##$%%&&'62)

&'()*+,,-)../ 0-))1*2+13*4'56*&(-))(3*781,813*9:!#*;<&

!"#$%&'"(%)*$+,-."/'0"0/./1/23"$+,-.2"4566"7$0'/'(3"89$:3*"65554;4<5

<6'.*=+>*'.*'1,'?+('@)*81ABC

Agenda Item 4

Page 23



(;!;+<;=> %*D>-'A3*E#!!

?@(=> F)1.+A*0-))1

0A@,,+,B'@(;@> 4+-A).,)1*G81.HA(+('@)*I8-H=

AC!@D+C,> 0-))1*2+13*4'56*&(-))(3*781,813*9:!#*;<&

0(C0CE@A> 7'.(),*JH'A,'15*?81.)1(*K8-*-)=8@+A*8K*H1+H(68-'.),*L8-M.*(8*(6)*5-8H1,*+1,
K'-.(".)?81,*KA88-.3*)-)?('81*8K*5A+N),*)O()1.'81*(8*(6)*-)+-*(8*-)>A+?)*)O'.('15
H1+H(68-'.),*-)+-*)O()1.'81P*?-)+('81*8K*Q*KA+(.*+(*H>>)-*KA88-.*(8*-)>A+?)
)O'.('15*H1+H(68-'.),*!#*J),.'(.P*)O()-1+A*.(+'-*-)>A+?)=)1(*+(*(6)*-)+-*+1,
-)KH.)*.(8-+5)3*-)'1.(+()=)1(*8K*(6)*K-81(*+1,*-)+-*L'1,8L.*+(*!.(*+1,*E1,
KA88-*A)@)A*+1,*-)>A+?)=)1(*8K*.',)*)1(-+1?)*,88-.*81*J8(6*.',)*)A)@+('81.*+1,
1)L*5+()*(8*(6)*K-81(*)A)@+('813*)O()-1+A*A'56('15*+(*-).',)1('+A*)1(-+1?)*81
RH?MA',5)*S+..+5)*+1,*>-8@'.'81*8K*1)L*GG<T*?+=)-+*+(*(6)*UH1?('81*8K
RH?MA',5)*S+..+5)*+1,*RH?MA',5)*D@)1H)C

@00A+!@,D> 2-*DM+.6*V-+6+

!C,D@!D> 4)-'(+5)*D-?6'()?(H-)*7(,

0A@,',CFE>
&))*?81,'('81*E

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG
<6'.*+>>A'?+('81*L+.*.?6),HA),*K8-*SA+11'15*G8=='(())*81*!%(6*D>-'A*JH(*L+.*,)K)--),*+.*G8H1?'AA8-.
-)WH).(),*+*.'()*@'.'(3*(6'.*'.*,'.?H..),*'1*=8-)*,)(+'A*'1*(6)*+..8?'+(),*KHAA*>A+11'15*+>>A'?+('81*!!"#$%%C*

(;!C66;,=@D+C,
D>>-8@+A

;H+ED+,B
<6)*.HJU)?(*.'()*'.*(6)*0-))1*2+1*SHJA'?*48H.)*+1,*'.*+*0-+,)*XX*7'.(),*YH'A,'153*A'.(),*'1*!Z%ZC* <6)*0-))1
2+1*+1,*+,U8'1'15*()--+?)*L)-)*-)JH'A(*81*(6)*.'()*'1*!Z#[\!Z#%*]+-?6'()?(.*4+--'.81*+1,*:+-,^*'1*IA)='.6
.(BA)*L'(6*L',)*KA+(*+-?6).*+(*5-8H1,*KA88-C**<6)*0-))1*2+1*>HJA'?*68H.)*)O'.(),*81*(6)*.'()*'1*+*,'KK)-)1(*K8-=
+.*)+-AB*+.*!%;[C

<6)*.'()3*81*4'56*&(-))(*4+-A).,)13*+A.8*K+AA.*L'(6'1*4+-A).,)1*G81.)-@+('81*D-)+C

<6)*?H--)1(*+--+15)=)1(*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*'.*+*-).(+H-+1(*+(*5-8H1,*KA88-3*=+1B*8K*(6)*8-'5'1+A*K)+(H-).
'1()-1+AAB3*=8.(*18(+JAB*(6)*J+-3*6+@)*J))1*-)=8@),C**<6)*H>>)-*KA88-.*6+@)*J))1*.HJ,'@',),*'1(8*!#*.=+AA
.(H,'8*H1'(.*+??)..),*JB*+*.(+'-?+.)*(8*(6)*-)+-*+??)..),*(6-8H56*+*5+()*81*RH?MA',5)*S+..+5)C**VKK'?)-.
?81.',)-*(6+(*(6)*8-'5'1+A"A+LKHA*H.)*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*L8HA,*J)*+*J+-"-).(+H-+1(*+(*5-8H1,*KA88-*L'(6*+..8?'+(),
-).',)1('+A*>-)='.).*+J8@)3*'1?AH,'15*.(8-+5)*+1,*KH1?('81*-88=.C

0(C0CE@A
&))*,).?-'>('81*+J8@)

I+EDC(J
!!"#$%[* <6'.*'.*(6)*+..8?'+(),*IHAA*SA+11'15*D>>A'?+('81*L6'?6*'.*)A.)L6)-)*81*(6'.*+5)1,+C

_"#["#E$E* D>>)+A*`'.='..),
:'(68H(*>A+11'15*>)-='..'813*(6)*)-)?('81*8K*+*>+-(*.'15A)\.(8-)B3*>+-(*(L8\.(8-)B*-)+-*)O()1.'81*+1,*(6)
?6+15)*8K*H.)*8K*(6)*K'-.(*+1,*.)?81,*KA88-.*'1(8*!#*.)AK\?81(+'1),*KA+(.C

#;"#;$#* G)-('K'?+()*8K*7+LKHA1)..*R)KH.),
G)-('K'?+()*8K*A+LKHA1)..*K8-*)O'.('15*H.)*8K*K'-.(*+1,*.)?81,*KA88-.*+.*!#*.)AK\?81(+'1),*H1'(.

#E"EE;#* :'(6,-+L1

Page 24



G81.(-H?('81*8K*>+-(*.'15A)\.(8-)B*-)+-*)O()1.'81*3*>+-(*K'-.(\KA88-*+1,*.)?81,\KA88-*)O()1.'81*+1,*?81@)-.'81
(8*Q*.)AK\?81(+'1),*KA+(.*];*OC*!*J),3*!*OC*E\J),^*7'.(),*JH'A,'15*?81.)1(*+..8?'+(),*L'(6*>A+11'15*+>>A'?+('81
#E"E%$

#E"#E%$* :'(6,-+L1
G81@)-.'81*8K*K'-.(*+1,*.)?81,*KA88-.*(8*Q*.)AK\?81(+'1),*KA+(.*'1?AH,'15*-88K*)O()1.'813*>+-(*K'-.(\KA88-*+1,*>+-(
.)?81,\KA88-*)O()1.'81*+1,*.'15A)\.(8-)B*-)+-*)O()1.'81*(8*>HJA'?*68H.)

0CA+!J'!C,E+=;(@D+C,E
,2%$"321'01233$34'0"1$K7'L*2#&M"*N
<6)*9SSI*L+.*>HJA'.6),*81*E%(6*2+-?6*+1,*-)>A+?).*SA+11'15*S8A'?B*0H',+1?)*+1,*SA+11'15*S8A'?B
&(+()=)1(.*L'(6*'==),'+()*)KK)?(C**X(*'.*'1()1,),*(8*=+M)*(6)*>A+11'15*.B.()=*A)..*?8=>A)O*+1,*=8-)
+??)..'JA)3*(8*>-8()?(*(6)*)1@'-81=)1(*+1,*(8*>-8=8()*.H.(+'1+JA)*5-8L(6C*X(*'1?AH,). +*>-).H=>('81*'1*K+@8H-
8K*.H.(+'1+JA)*,)@)A8>=)1(*'1*J8(6*>A+1*=+M'15*+1,*,)?'.'81*=+M'15*+1,*'(.*>HJA'?+('81*'.*8K*.'51'K'?+1(
L)'56(C

&+@),*>8A'?').*K-8=*(6)*+,8>(),*a`S*L'AA*6+@)*'1?-)+.'15AB*A)..*L)'56(*H1A)..*(6)B*+-)*'1*?81K8-='(B*L'(6*(6)
9SSI*+1,*?+1*J)*,)=81.(-+(),*(8*J)*.('AA*-)A)@+1(C**G8-)*&(-+()5B*>8A'?').*L'AA*+A.8*1)),*(8*J)*'1*?81K8-='(B
L'(6*J8(6*(6)*781,81*SA+1*+1,*(6)*9SSI*+1,*6+@)*?81.',)-+JA)*L)'56(C

:6)-)*SS0b.3*SS&b.3*7`I*G8-)*&(-+()5B*+1,*a`S*.+@),*>8A'?').*+-)*-)K)--),*(8*'1*(6)*-)>8-(*J)A8L*(6)B
6+@)*J))1*?81.',)-+('81.*'1*(6)*+..)..=)1(*8K*(6)*+>>A'?+('81C**48L)@)-3*(6)*-)?8==)1,+('81*'.*?81.',)-),
(8*?8=>AB*L'(6*(6)*9SSIC

A"3O"3'0123'5.99'23O'627"*F:'!"##P3$%7'+3Q*2:%*PK%P*&'A&R7'S!+AT
<6'.*+>>A').*(8*-)A)@+1(*,)@)A8>=)1(.*K-8=*#!"#;"E#!E

U=0'5../

Y_E*<8L1.?+>)/*78?+A*G81()?(*c*G6+-+?()-
Y_Z*D-?6'()?(H-+A*dH+A'(B
Y_EQ*`)@)A8>=)1(*'1*G81.)-@+('81*D-)+.
Y_E[*DA()-+('81.*c*_O()1.'81.*(8*YH'A,'15.*'1*G81.)-@+('81*D-)+.

98:372)!&;<,'):$<-&)1"=)>&?)!&@&A"/%&'(

>+(<"'+A)8A+''<',)8"A<#B)0=+%&?"=C

!C,EUAD@D+C,
9)'56J8H-.*L)-)*?81.HA(),*81*E!.(*D>-'A*E#!!*+1,*+5+'1*81*E#(6*e+1H+-B*K8AA8L'15*1)58('+('81*L'(6*(6)
+>>A'?+1(*+1,*+-?6'()?(*A)+,'15*(8*.8=)*+=)1,=)1(.C**DA(68H56*(6'.*'.*+*7'.(),*YH'A,'15*+>>A'?+('81*+AA*(6)
-).>81.).*-)?)'@),*+-)*.)(*,8L1*6)-)*+1,*'1*(6)*>A+11'15*+>>A'?+('81*-)>8-(C

! <6)*>-8>8.),*KA+(.*.68HA,*18(*J)*+??)..),*K-8=*RH?MA',5)*S+..+5)*+.*(6'.*'.*+*SHJA'?*<68-8H56K+-)*f
`8*18(*J)A')@)*(6'.*,88-*)O'.(),*>-'8-*(8*H1+H(68-'.),*L8-M.*+1,*'(*'.*18(*.+K)*8-*.H'(+JA)C

! <6)-)*'.*18L6)-)*K8-*(6)*.(8-+5)*8K*L+.()*K-8=*(6)*-).(+H-+1(*8-*KA+(.*f*<6)*>+..+5)*6+.*J)?8=)*+
,H=>'15*5-8H1,*=+M'15*'(*H16)+A(6B*+1,*H1.'56(ABC

! <6).)*'..H).*+KK)?(*(6)*,+'AB*A'@).*8K*-).',)1(.*L68*A'@)*?A8.)*(8*(6'.*JH'A,'15C
! <6)*)1(-+1?)*.68HA,*J)*=8@),*(8*(6)*?8H-(B+-,*81*(6)*8(6)-*.',)*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*L6)-)*(6)-)*'.*+A.8

.>+?)*K8-*-HJJ'.6*.(8-+5)C
! <6)*1H=J)-*8K*KA+(.*81*(6)*>-8>8.),*.'()*'.*=8-)*(6+1*(6)*.'()*.68HA,*+??8==8,+()C
! <6)*KA+(.*6+@)*18*+=)1'(B*.>+?)*81*.'()*f*<6)*5+-,)1*.>+?)*(8*(6)*-)+-*L6'?6*6+.*J))1*JH'A(*81*L'(6

H1+H(68-'.),*L8-M.*.68HA,*J)*-)(H-1),C

9)'56J8H-.*L)-)*-)?81.HA(),*81*+=)1,=)1(.*(8*(6)*>-8>8.),*],'.?H..),*J)A8L^*+1,*=+1B*-)'()-+(),*(6)'-
?8==)1(.C***I8AA8L'15*+*=))('15*L'(6*+*=)=J)-*8K*(6)*RH?MA',5)*D@)1H)*R).',)1(.*D..8?'+('81*'(*L+.
+>>+-)1(*(6+(*(6)*+A()-+('81.*(8*(6)*>A+1.*6+,*18(*J))1*KHAAB*18(),*]>8..'JAB*,H)*(8*(6)*.=+AA*.?+A)*8K*(6)*>A+1
@')L+JA)*81*(6)*L)J.'()^C**&HJ.)WH)1(*(8*(6'.*=))('15*(6)*K8AA8L'15*?8==)1(.*L)-)*-)?)'@),/

Page 25



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3345677 8+,& D "1 6

! :6+(*>-85-)..*6+.*J))1*=+,)*+J8H(*(6)*8-'5'1+A*GG<T*?+=)-+*L6'?6*,'.+>>)+-),g
! &))M*?81K'-=+('81*(6+(*(6)*-)KH.)*.(8-+5)*.>+?)*'.*A+-5)*)18H56*K8-*(6)*KA+(.*+1,*(6+(*(6)*?8AA)?('81

?8=>+1B*L'AA*6+@)*+??)..*(8*+1,*?8AA)?(*K-8=*(6'.*A8?+('81C
! &))M*?81K'-=+('81*(6+(*(6)*?8==)-?'+A*L+.()*L'AA*J)*?8AA)?(),*K-8=*(6)*.(8-+5)*.>+?)*.68L1C
! R)=+'1*8>>8.),*(8*(6)*)O()-1+A*=)(+A*.(+'-?+.)C

GAA-*4)?(8-*6+.*?8==)1(),*-+'.'15*?81?)-1*+J8H(*(6)*)O'.('15*>88-*>-8@'.'81*K8-*-)KH.)*.(8-+5)*+1,*(6)*1)),
K8-*(6'.*(8*J)*'=>-8@),C

+3%&*321
G81.)-@+('81*c*`).'51/**S-8>8.+A*'.*+??)>(+JA)*.HJU)?(*(8*-)WH'-)=)1(*K8-*.>)?'K'?*,)(+'A.*JB*?81,'('81

(;6@(VE
S8A'?B*G81.',)-+('81.
<6)*9+('81+A*SA+11'15*S8A'?B*I-+=)L8-M*.(+().*(6+(*L6)1*?81.',)-'15*(6)*'=>+?(*8K*+*>-8>8.),*,)@)A8>=)1(
81*(6)*.'51'K'?+1?)*8K*+*,).'51+(),*6)-'(+5)*+..)(3*5-)+(*L)'56(*.68HA,*J)*5'@)1*(8*(6)*+..)(b.*?81.)-@+('81C
&'51'K'?+1(*,+=+5)*6+.*J))1*,81)*(8*(6)*JH'A,'15*JH(*(6)*.(-H?(H-)*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*+1,*)18H56*M)B*K)+(H-).
-)=+'1*'1(+?(*K8-*'(*(8*J)*>8..'JA)*K8-*+*.)1.'('@)*.?6)=)*(8*-)?8@)-*(6)*?6+-+?()-*+1,*WH+A'(B*8K*(6)*A'.(),
JH'A,'15*)O()-1+AAB*+1,*'1()-1+AABC

X=>+?(*81*7'.(),*YH'A,'15
<6)*H1+H(68-'.),*+A()-+('81.*(8*(6)*JH'A,'15*](68.)*L6'?6*6+@)*(+M)1*>A+?)*.'1?)*'(.*A'.('15^3*+-)*.(+(),
?8=>-)6)1.'@)AB*81*>+5).*!h*+1,*!;*8K*(6)*i4'.(8-'?+A*Y+?M5-8H1,*R)>8-(bC

<6)*+>>A'?+('81*.HJ='..'81*'1?AH,).*+*i.'51'K'?+1?)*+>>-+'.+Ab*L6'?63*81*KA88-*>A+1.3*',)1('K').*(6)*>+-(.*8K*(6)
.(-H?(H-)*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*L6'?6*+-)*8K*4'56*&'51'K'?+1?)3*&8=)*&'51'K'?+1?)*8-*8K*98*&'51'K'?+1?)"`)(-'=)1(+AC

:="$'-)1A""=
D(*5-8H1,*KA88-*(6)-)*'.*+*.'51'K'?+1(*A8..*8K*(6)*6'.(8-'?*K+J-'?C**<6)*>-8>8.+A*'1()1,.*(8*>+-(AB*-)'1.(+()*A8.(
K)+(H-).*+1,*K'(('15.*'1?AH,'15*(6)*-)=8@+A*8K*(6)*.H.>)1,),*?)'A'15*(8*-)@)+A*(6)*8-'5'1+A*+1,*-)=8@)*(6)
=8,)-1*KA88-*('A).*+1,*-)>A+?)*L'(6*+>>-8>-'+()*('=J)-C**<6)*-)'1.(+()=)1(*8K*>+1)AA'153*.M'-('15*+1,*?8-1'?'15
+.*L)AA*+.*+*J+-*]H.'15*8-'5'1+A*>+-(.*L6)-)*>-).)-@),^C**<6)*K88,*6+(?6*K-8=*(6)*M'(?6)1*L'AA*J)*?A8.),3*+*1)L
K'-)*).?+>)*,88-*L'AA*-)>A+?)*(6)*)O'.('15C

<6)*H1+H(68-'.),*-)+-*)O()1.'81*L6'?6*6+.*J))1*)-)?(),*+?-8..*(6)*L68A)*8K*(6)*B+-,*J)6'1,*(6)*JH'A,'15*'.
>-8>8.),*(8*J)*-)=8@),*+1,*-)>A+?),*L'(6*+*A'56(L)'56(*5A+N),*)O()1.'813*8K*+*?81()=>8-+-B*JH(*.HJ(A)
+>>)+-+1?)C**G8=>+-),*(8*(6)*)O'.('15*.(-H?(H-)*L6'?6*,)(-+?(.*K-8=*(6)*JH'A,'15*(6)*-)>A+?)=)1(*L'AA*6+@)*+
='18-*'=>+?(*+1,*-).HA(*'1*+1*)16+1?)=)1(C*

<6)*)O'.('15*]H1+H(68-'.),^*-)+-*.(+'-?+.)*(8*(6)*H>>)-*KA88-.*L'AA*J)*-)>A+?),*L'(6*+*1)L*.(+'-?+.)
?81.(-H?(),*8K*.())A*+1,*?A+,*'1*+-('K'?'+A*.(81)*L'(6*+*1)L*5A+N),*?+18>B*8@)-*(6)*(8>*A+1,'15C**<6)*RH?MA',5)
D@)1H)*R).',)1(.*D..8?'+('81*8JU)?(*(8*(6)*)O()-1+A*.(+'-?+.)*(8*(6)*-)+-*+.*(6)*+??)..*(8*(6)*H>>)-*KA88-.3
>-'8-*(8*H1+H(68-'.),*L8-M.*L)-)*8-'5'1+AAB*'1()-1+AC**<6'.*6+.*J))1*?81.',)-),*'1*,)(+'A*+1,*,'.?H..),*L'(6
(6)*+-?6'()?(*JH(*+A()-1+('@)*L8-M+JA)*.8AH('81*'.*18(*K8-(6?8='15C**<6)*.)>+-+('81*8K*(6)*H.).*+(*5-8H1,*+1,
H>>)-*KA88-.*=+M).*'(*@)-B*,'KK'?HA(*(8*',)1('KB*+*>-+?('?+A*+--+15)=)1(*K8-*+1*'1()-1+A*.(+'-?+.)3*.)>+-+()*(8*(6)
5-8H1,*KA88-*H.)*L6'?6*,8).*18(*-)WH'-)*KH-(6)-*.'51'K'?+1(*+A()-+('81.*(8*(6)*8-'5'1+A*.(-H?(H-)*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*\
'1*7'.(),*YH'A,'15*()-=.*(6'.*1)),.*(8*J)*+@8',),C**<6)*)O'.('15*.(+'-?+.)*'.*8K*>88-*WH+A'(B*JH(*+*=H?6
'=>-8@),*-)>A+?)=)1(*'.*>-8>8.),3*+.*,).?-'J),*+J8@)C**&>)?'K'?*,)(+'A*8K*(6)*,).'51*+1,*=+()-'+A.*8K*(6'.
L'AA*J)*?81,'('81),*(8*)1.H-)*'(*'.*8K*6'56*WH+A'(B*+1,*+>>-8>-'+()*(8*(6)*JH'A,'15C**D*1)L*5+()*L'AA*-)>A+?)*(6)
)1(-+1?)*,88-*81(8*RH?MA',5)*S+..+5)C

E//&=)1A""=;
<6)*)O'.('15*>+-('('81.*'1.)-(),*(8*?-)+()*@)-B*.=+AA*'1,'@',H+A*M'(?6)1)(().*+1,*J+(6-88=.*'1*)+?6*.(H,'8
-88=*+-)*6'56A'56(),*+.*8K*18*.'51'K'?+1?)*8-*,)(-'=)1(+A*(8*(6)*?6+-+?()-*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15C**<6)*>-8>8.+A
-+('81+A'.).*(6)*A+B8H(*+1,*>-8>8.).*='1'=H=*>+-('('81'15*(8*K+?'A'(+()*(6)*?-)+('81*8K*(6)*Q*1)L*H1'(.C**V-'5'1+A
K)+(H-).*8K*?8-1'?).3*.M'-('15*+1,*,+,8*-+'A'15*L'AA*J)*-)@)+A),3*-)>+'-),*+1,*-)\'1.(+(),*+.*+>>-8>-'+()C
S+-WH)(*KA88-'15*'.*>-8>8.),*'1*M'(?6)1*+-)+.*+1,*?+->)(*8-*('A'15*)A.)L6)-)C

DAA*,88-.*L'AA*J)*-)>A+?),*L'(6*('=J)-*>+1)AA),*,88-.*+1,*H>@?*L'1,8L.*L'(6*('=J)-*?+.)=)1(*L'1,8L.*L'(6
A)+,),*5A+..*>+1).*(8*(6)*K-81(C**<8*(6)*-)+-*L'1,8L.*L'AA*+A.8*J)*-)>A+?),*L'(6*('=J)-*K-+=).*+1,*(6)*,88-*(8
(6)*KA+(*-88K*L'AA*J)*-)>A+?),*L'(6*+*L'1,8LC

Page 26



V-'5'1+A*U8'1)-B*L'AA*J)*-)>+'-),*+1,*-)\,)?8-+(),*L'(6*)55\.6)AA*8'A*>+'1(3*L6'A)*.A+()*-88K.*L'AA*J)*-)>+'-),*L'(6
.A+().*-)>A+?),*L6)-)*1)?)..+-B*+1,*+1B*>A+.('?*>'>).*+1,*5H(()-*L'AA*J)*-)>A+?),*L'(6*?+.(*'-81*81).C

<6)*>-'1?'>A)*8K*+AA*8K*(6'.*L8-M*'.*+??)>(+JA)*68L)@)-*(8*)1.H-)*(6)*WH+A'(B3*?81,'('81.*+-)*-)?8==)1,),*(8
.)?H-)*(6)*.HJ='..'81*8K*KH-(6)-*,)(+'A.C**<6'.*'1?AH,).*A+-5)*.?+A)*,-+L'15.*8K*(6)*>-8>8.),*L'1,8L.3*,)(+'A
8K*(6)*=+()-'+A*8K*(6)*5A+N),*)O()1.'813*,)(+'A*8K*(6)*(-)+(=)1(*8K*(6)*-)=+'1'15*-)+-*B+-,*.>+?)*\*.8K(
A+1,.?+>'15*-)?8==)1,),C**X1K8-=+('81*L'AA*+A.8*1)),*(8*J)*+>>-8@),*K8-*+AA*=+()-'+A.*L6'?6*L'AA*J)*H.),*(8
-)>+'-"-)>A+?)*(6)*K)+(H-).*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*'1()-1+AABC

G81?AH.'81
I8-*(6)*+J8@)*-)+.81.3*(6)*?81()=>8-+-B*)O()1.'81*+1,*8(6)-*'1()-1+A*+1,*)O()-1+A*+A()-+('81.*(8*(6)*K+J-'?*8K
(6)*JH'A,'15.*+-)*?81.',)-),*(8*J)*?81.'.()1(*L'(6*(6)*>8A'?B*>-).H=>('81*'1*K+@8H-*8K*>-).)-@'15*8-*)16+1?'15
(6)*.>)?'+A*+-?6'()?(H-+A*8-*6'.(8-'?*'1()-).(*8K*(6)*A'.(),*JH'A,'15*+1,*'(.*.)(('15C*<6'.*?8=>A').*L'(6*>8A'?').
Y_E3*Y_%3*Y_Z*8K*(6)*a1'(+-B*`)@)A8>=)1(*SA+1*+1,*5H',)A'1).*L'(6'1*(6)*9SSIC

(;!C66;,=@D+C,> 0-+1(*G81.)1(

(;@EC,'LC('B(@,D+,B

]!^ <6)*>-8>8.),*,)@)A8>=)1(*'.*'1*5)1)-+A*+??8-,+1?)*L'(6*>8A'?').*?81(+'1),*'1*(6)/\

Y-)1(*a1'(+-B*`)@)A8>=)1(*SA+1*E##;
R)A)@+1(*>8A'?').*'1*(6)*D,8>(),*a1'(+-B*`)@)A8>=)1(*SA+1*+-)*(68.)*'1*(6)*K8AA8L'15
?6+>()-./\
YH'A(*_1@'-81=)1(/*'1*()-=.*8K*(6)*>-8()?('81*+1,*)16+1?)=)1(*8K*(6)*)1@'-81=)1(

9+('81+A*SA+11'15*S8A'?B*I-+=)L8-M

!C,=+D+C,EW(;@EC,E>

]!^ <6)*L8-M.*(8*L6'?6*(6'.*?81.)1(*-)A+().*=H.(*J)*J)5H1*18(*A+()-*(6+1*(6)*)O>'-+('81*8K*(6-))
B)+-.*J)5'11'15*L'(6*(6)*,+()*8K*(6'.*?81.)1(C

R)+.81/*<8*?81K8-=*L'(6*(6)*-)WH'-)=)1(.*8K*&)?('81*!$*8K*(6)*SA+11'15*]7'.(),*YH'A,'15.*+1,
G81.)-@+('81*D-)+.^*D?(*!ZZ#C

]E^ <6)*,)@)A8>=)1(*6)-)JB*>)-='((),*.6+AA*J)*?+--'),*8H(*'1*+??8-,+1?)*L'(6*(6)*K8AA8L'15
+>>-8@),*,-+L'15].^*+1,"8-*,8?H=)1(].^/

S\Y\##!*G*R_TX&_`
S\0I\##E*G*R_TX&_`
S\II\##h*G*R_TX&_`
S\&I\##;*_*R_TX&_`
S\RI\##Q
S\I*_7_T\##[
S\&*_7_T\##%
S\R*_7_T\##$*G*R_TX&_`
S\&_G\``\##Z
S\_7"&G\GG\#!#*G*R_TX&_`

`).'51*+1,*+??)..*.(+()=)1(*]2+-?6*E#!!^
4'.(8-'?+A*J+?M5-8H1,*-)>8-(*]I)J-H+-B*E#!!^

R)+.81/**I8-*(6)*+@8',+1?)*8K*,8HJ(*+1,*'1*(6)*'1()-).(.*8K*>-8>)-*>A+11'15C

]h^ DAA*1)L*L8-M.*8K*=+M'15*588,*(8*(6)*-)(+'1),*K+J-'?3*L6)(6)-*'1()-1+A*8-*)O()-1+A3*.6+AA*J)
K'1'.6),*(8*=+(?6*(6)*)O'.('15*L8-M*L'(6*-)5+-,*(8*(6)*=)(68,.*H.),*+1,*(8*?8A8H-3*=+()-'+A3
()O(H-)*+1,*>-8K'A)*H1A)..*8(6)-L'.)*+5-)),*'1*L-'('15*JB*(6)*7SD

Page 27



R)+.81/*X1*8-,)-*(8*.+K)5H+-,*(6)*.>)?'+A*+-?6'()?(H-+A*8-*6'.(8-'?*'1()-).(*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15C

];^ <6)*,)@)A8>=)1(*+.*6)-)JB*>)-='((),*.6+AA*81AB*?8==)1?)*L6)1*.H'(+JA)*>-)?+H('81.*6+@)
J))1*(+M)1*(8*.)?H-)*+1,*>-8()?(*(6)*'1()-'8-*)A)=)1(.*+5+'1.(*+??',)1(+A*A8..*8-*,+=+5)
,H-'15*JH'A,'15*L8-M3*+1,*18*.H?6*)A)=)1(.*=+B*J)*,'.(H-J),*8-*-)=8@),*()=>8-+-'AB*8-
>)-=+1)1(AB*H1A)..*L'(6*>-'8-*L-'(()1*+>>-8@+A*8K*(6)*7SDC

R)+.81/*X1*8-,)-*(8*.+K)5H+-,*(6)*.>)?'+A*+-?6'()?(H-+A*8-*6'.(8-'?*'1()-).(*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15C

]Q^ &)@)1*L8-M'15*,+B.*>-'8-*(8*(6)*?8==)1?)=)1(*8K*(6)*L8-M.*+.*6)-)JB*>)-='((),*L-'(()1
18('K'?+('81*8K*(6)*'1()1,),*.(+-(*,+()*8K*L8-M.*.6+AA*J)*.)1(*(8*(6)*78?+A*SA+11'15*DH(68-'(BC

R)+.81/**X1*8-,)-*(6+(*_15A'.6*4)-'(+5)*+1,*(6)*78?+A*SA+11'15*DH(68-'(B*=+B*J)*5'@)1*(6)
8>>8-(H1'(B*(8*=81'(8-*(6)*>-85-)..*8K*L8-M.*81*.'()*(8*)1.H-)*(6)*>-).)-@+('81*8K*(6)*.>)?'+A
'1()-).(*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*+KK)?(),*JB*(6)*L8-M.*6)-)JB*+>>-8@),C

][^ D1B*6',,)1*6'.(8-'?*K)+(H-).*L6'?6*+-)*-)@)+A),*,H-'15*(6)*?8H-.)*8K*(6)*L8-M.*.6+AA*J)
-)(+'1),*'1*.'(H3*L8-M*.H.>)1,),*'1*(6)*-)A)@+1(*+-)+*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*+1,*(6)*7SD*18('K'),
'==),'+()ABC

R)+.81/*<8*)1.H-)*(6+(*(6)*6'.(8-'?*?6+-+?()-'.('?.*8K*(6)*JH'A,'15*+-)*18(*A8.(*+1,*(8*>-).)-@)
+1,*)16+1?)*(6)*0-+,)*XX*7'.(),*YH'A,'15C

]%^ <6)*K8AA8L'15*=)(68,*.(+()=)1(.3*'1?AH,'15*,)(+'A),*>A+1.*+1,*.+=>A).*8K*L8-M3*K8-*(6)
K8AA8L'15*)A)=)1(.*8K*(6)*,)@)A8>=)1(*.6+AA*J)*.HJ='((),*(8*+1,*+5-)),*'1*L-'('15*JB*(6)*78?+A
SA+11'15*DH(68-'(B*>-'8-*(8*?8==)1?)=)1(*8K*L8-M.*81*.'()3*8-*'1*+??8-,+1?)*L'(6*+*.?6),HA)
(8*J)*+5-)),*'1*L-'('15*L'(6*(6)*78?+A*SA+11'15*DH(68-'(B/\

]+^*<6)*'1.)-('81*8K3*8-*+A()-+('81*(83*+1B*1)L*8-*)O'.('15*.(-H?(H-+A*8>)1'15.C
]J^*R)>+'-*+1,*-).(8-+('81*8K*,)?8-+('@)*?)'A'15.3*L+AA.*+1,*8(6)-*,)?8-+('@)*)A)=)1(.C
]?^*R)>+'-*+1,"8-*-).(8-+('81*8K*)O()-1+A*)A)@+('81+A*(-)+(=)1(.3*'1?AH,'15*-88K'15*+1,
-)>8'1('15*8K*J-'?ML8-MC
],^*<6)*+A()-+('81*8-*'1.(+AA+('81*8K*+1B*1)L*.(-H?(H-+A*8-*.)-@'?)*?+JA'15C
])^*IA88-'15

<6)*,)@)A8>=)1(*.6+AA*J)*?+--'),*8H(*'1*?8=>A'+1?)*L'(6*(6)*+>>-8@),*,)(+'A.C

R)+.81/*<8*)1.H-)*+*.+('.K+?(8-B*,)@)A8>=)1(*+1,*'1*(6)*'1()-).(.*8K*(6)*6'.(8-'?*)1@'-81=)1(
+1,*0-+,)*XX*6'.(8-'?*+..)(C

]$^ 98*e8'1)-B*?81.(-H?('81*L8-M*8K*+1B*K8-=*.68HA,*?8==)1?)*81*.'()*H1('A*+AA*,)(+'A*,-+L'15.
]A'.(),*J)A8L^*6+@)*J))1*.HJ='((),*+1,*+>>-8@),*'1*L-'('15*JB*(6)*78?+A*SA+11'15*DH(68-'(BC
V1?)*+5-)),*(6)*,)@)A8>=)1(*=H.(*J)*'=>A)=)1(),*'1*.(-'?(*+??8-,+1?)*L'(6*(6)*.HJ='((),
+1,*+>>-8@),*,-+L'15.C**DAA*,-+L'15.*L'AA*J)*-)WH'-),*(8*.68L*(6)*,)(+'A.*8K*(6)*)A)=)1(*(8*J)
'AAH.(-+(),*'1*>A+13*>A+1*.)?('813*)A)@+('81*+1,*@)-('?+A*.)?('81C*<6)*,-+L'15.*.68HA,*J)
.H>>A'),*+(*+*.?+A)*+>>-8>-'+()*(8*(6)*.'N)*8K*(6)*)A)=)1(*!/E#3*!/!#3*!/Q*+1,*'1*.8=)*?+.).
!/!C

`)(+'A),*,-+L'15.*L'AA*J)*-)WH'-),*K8-*'1()-1+A*-)>+'-*+1,*-)>A+?)=)1(*(8*'1?AH,)/
]+^*R)>A+?)=)1(*-)>+'-*+1,*8-*1)L*L'1,8L*,)(+'A*,-+L'15.*\*'1?AH,'15*,)(+'A.*8K*(6)*.'AA3*U+=J3
6)+,3*=HAA'81*(-+1.8=*+1,*5A+N'15*J+-*=8HA,'15.C*`-+L'15.*.68HA,*'AAH.(-+()*(6)*>8.'('81*8K
(6)*L'1,8L*K-+=)*L'(6'1*(6)*-)@)+AC
]J^*D*.+=>A)*8K*(6)*-)>A+?)=)1(*L'1,8L.*L'AA*J)*-)WH'-),

Page 28



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3345677 8+,& F "1 6

]?^*R)>A+?)=)1(*)O()-1+A*+1,*'1()-1+A*-)>A+?)=)1(*-)>+'-*+1,*8-*1)L*,88-*,)(+'A*,-+L'15.*\
'1?AH,'15*,)(+'A.*8K*(6)*.'AA3*U+=J3*6)+,3*-+'A.3*+1,*=H1('1*+1,*5A+N'15*J+-*=8HA,'15.C
],^*X1()-1+A*>+1)AA'15*'1?AH,'15*=8HA,'15.*(8*>+1)A*K')A,.*'1?AH,'15*@)-('?+A*+1,*68-'N81(+A
K-+='15*.M'-('153*>A'1(6*+1,*?+>>'15*=8HA,'15.C
])^*`)(+'A*,-+L'15.*(8*.68L*+AA*-)>A+?)=)1(3**-)>+'-*+1,*8-*1)L**,88-*?+.'15*(8*'1?AH,)*-)@)+A
6)+,*+1,*+-?6'(-+@)*=8HA,'15.
]K^*`)(+'A*,-+L'15.*K8-*(6)*-)>A+?)=)1(3*-)>+'-*8-*1)L*>A+.()-*?6+'-3*,+,8*+1,*?8-1'?)C*<8
'1?AH,)*?)'A'15*-8.).*+1,*8(6)-*J-+?M)(*?+.('15.C
]5^*`)(+'A*,-+L'15.*8K*+AA*'1,)>)1,)1(*-)>A+?)=)1(*-)>+'-*8-*1)L*L88,)1*.M'-('153**?6+'-3*,+,8
+1,*?8-1'?)*=8HA,'15.C
]6^*`)(+'A*,-+L'15.*8K*(6)*1)L*J+-*(8*'1?AH,)*.)?('81.*(6-8H56*(6)*J+-*'AAH.(-+('15*.'AA3*>A'1(6*+1,
(8>*-+'A.3*'1K'AA*K')A,3*?8-1'?)*+1,*J+-*(8>C
]'^*`)(+'A.*,-+L'15.*K8-*-)>+'-3*-)>A+?)=)1(*+1,*8-*1)L*.(+'-.*(8*'1?AH,)*.)?('81.*'AAH.(-+('15
=8HA,'15.*K8-*(6)*.(-'15)-3*-'.)-.3*(-)+,.3*J+AH.()-.*+1,*6+1,-+'A.C

R)+.81/*<8*>-8()?(*(6)*?6+-+?()-*+1,*6'.(8-'?*'1()5-'(B*8K*(6)*5-))1*=+1*+1,*(8*)1.H-)*+1
+??H-+()AB*,)(+'A),*-).(8-+('81*8K*6'.(8-'?*D-(.*+1,*G-+K(*,)(+'A'15C

]Z^ 98*5)1)-+A*?81.(-H?('81*L8-M*8K*+1B*K8-=*.68HA,*?8==)1?)*81*.'()*H1('A*+AA*,)(+'A*,-+L'15.
]A'.(),*J)A8L^*6+@)*J))1*.HJ='((),*+1,*+>>-8@),*'1*L-'('15*JB*(6)*78?+A*SA+11'15*DH(68-'(BC
V1?)*+5-)),*(6)*,)@)A8>=)1(*=H.(*J)*'=>A)=)1(),*'1*.(-'?(*+??8-,+1?)*L'(6*(6)*.HJ='((),
+1,*+>>-8@),*=+()-'+A.*+1,*,-+L'15.C
`)(+'A),*,-+L'15.*L'AA*J)*-)WH'-),*K8-*'1()-1+A*-)>+'-*+1,*-)>A+?)=)1(*(8*'1?AH,)/

]+^*9)L*L+AA*?81.(-H?('81*.68L'15*,)(+'A.*8K*J81,'15*+1,*U8'1('15*+(*UH1?('81.*8K*)O'.('15*+1,
1)L*?81.(-H?('81C DAA*J-'?M.*+-)*(8*=+(?6*(6)*8-'5'1+A.*)O+?(AB*'1*.'N)*?8A8H-*()O(H-)C
]J^*`)(+'A.*8K*-88K*)+@).*'1?AH,'15*=8HA,'15.*(8*.8KK'(3*J+-5)J8+-,*+1,*@)-5).3*L6)-)
+>>-8>-'+()*.68L'15*UH1?('81*J)(L))1*)O'.('15*+1,*1)LC

R)+.81/**<8*>-8()?(*(6)*?6+-+?()-*+1,*6'.(8-'?*'1()5-'(B*8K*(6)*5-))1*=+1*+1,*(8*)1.H-)*+1
+??H-+()AB*,)(+'A),*-).(8-+('81*8K*6'.(8-'?*D-(.*+1,*G-+K(*(-+,'('81+A*?81.(-H?('81C

]!#^ 98*5)1)-+A*?81.(-H?('81*L8-M*8K*+1B*K8-=*.68HA,*?8==)1?)*81*.'()*H1('A*+*,)=81.(-+('81
>+1)A*8K*J-'?ML8-M*6+.*J))1*+>>-8@),*'1*L-'('15*JB*(6)*78?+A*SA+11'15*DH(68-'(BC*<6)*>+1)A
.68HA,*J)*+*='1'=H=*8K*!C#=*L',)*JB*!C#=*(+AAC*<6)*>+1)A*.68HA,*.68L*+??H-+()AB*(6)
?8H-.'15*+1,*J81,'15*+1,*=8-(+-*='O*+1,*?8A8H-*]28-(+-*.68HA,*=+(?6*)O'.('15*)O+?(AB*'1
?8A8H-*()O(H-)*+1,*='O^C

R)+.81/**<8*>-8()?(*(6)*?6+-+?()-*+1,*6'.(8-'?*'1()5-'(B*8K*(6)*5-))1*=+1*+1,*(8*)1.H-)
.B=>+(6)('?*-)>+'-*-)>A+?)=)1(*+1,*1)L*J-'?M*?81.(-H?('81C

]!!^ 98*5)1)-+A*?81.(-H?('81*L8-M*8K*+1B*K8-=*.68HA,*?8==)1?)*81*.'()*H1('A*.+=>A).*8K*+AA*1)L
'1()-1+A*:'1,8L*+1,*,88-*K'(('15.*6+@)*J))1*.HJ='((),*+1,*+>>-8@),*JB*(6)*78?+A*SA+11'15
DH(68-'(BC**&+=>A).*L'AA*J)*-)WH'-),*8K*-)>A+?)=)1(*+1,*8-*1)L/
!C* `88-*6+1,A).
EC* :'1,8L*A+(?6).*+1,*.(+B.

R)+.81/**<8*>-8()?(*(6)*?6+-+?()-*+1,*6'.(8-'?*'1()5-'(B*8K*(6)*5-))1*=+1*+1,*(8*)1.H-)
.B=>+(6)('?*-)>+'-*-)>A+?)=)1(*8K*6'.(8-'?*+-?6'()?(H-+A*K)+(H-).C

+,LC(6@D+<;E>

Page 29



]!^ <6)*+>>A'?+1(*'.*'1K8-=),*(6+(*_1K8-?)=)1(*98('?)*_"#["#E$E*,+(),*!Z*e+1H+-B*E##%*-)WH'-'15
H1+H(68-'.),*L8-M.*(8*J)*-)=8@),*+1,*(6)*JH'A,'15*=+,)*588,*-)=+'1.*@+A',*+1,*=H.(*J)
KHAAB*?8=>A'),*L'(6*+.*+*=+(()-*8K*H-5)1?BC

D1B*>)-.81*L'.6'15*(8*'1.>)?(*(6)*+J8@)*>+>)-.*.68HA,*?81(+?(*7'N*&HAA'@+13*<6)*SA+11'15*&)-@'?)3*Y-)1(
48H.)3*h;Z*4'56*R8+,3*:)=JA)B3*2',,A).)O3*4DZ*[Yj3*<)AC*98C*#E#*$Zh% Qh%%

Page 30



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3456678 9+,& 3 "1 7

!"##$%%&&'(&)"*% +%&#',"- './

01233$34'!"##$%%&&'"3 55'6278'5.95 !2:&',"- !"#$$%&

01233$34'!"##$%%&&'62)

'()*+,--.*//0 !%1+2+!%3+3,4456))+76,-8+96:-6:8+;<%+=>?

!"#$%&'"(%)*$+,-."/'0"0/./1/23"$+,-.2"4566"7$0'/'(3"89$:3*"65554;4<5

@A(/+B,C+(/+(:-(5,)(D*+6:4EF

Agenda Item 5

Page 31



(;!;+<;=> "%+G,:H,.E8+"$!"

?@(=> I(4JH.:

0A@,,+,B'@(;@> I(4JH.:+2+I*:/,4+36:/H4),)(D*+K6.HB

AC!@D+C,> !%1+2+!%3+3,4456))+76,-8+96:-6:8+;<%+=>?

0(C0CE@A> L:/),44,)(6:+6M+NH4(*)+J,456:E+)6+M(./)+M466.+.*,.+O(:-6O+,:-+C.6C6/*-+O(:-6O+)6
.*C4,5*+*P(/)(:Q+-66.+,)+)A*+/*56:-M466.+4*D*4+6M+)*..,5*-+C.6C*.)E+(:+H/*+,/
)A.**+/*4MR56:),(:*-+M4,)/F

@00A+!@,D> S.+L,:+T*..,.-

!C,D@!D> @A*+T(44*))+S,59*6-+U,.):*./A(C

0A@,',CFE>
'**+36:-()(6:+"

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG
6;6H;(E'!@AAI+,'0(C!;=J(;

L:+,556.-,:5*+O()A+U,.)+&+6M+)A*+36:/)()H)(6:+,:-+'*5)(6:+!$+6M+)A*+U4,::(:Q+36-*+6M+U.,5)(5*8+)A*+M6446O(:Q
(:M6.B,)(6:+A,/+J**:+-(/546/*-+(:+.*4,)(6:+)6+.*VH*/)/+B,-*+JE+36H:5(446./+M6.+,CC4(5,)(6:/+)6+J*+56:/(-*.*-
JE+)A*+U4,::(:Q+36BB())**+.,)A*.+)A,:+H:-*.+W*4*Q,)*-+U6O*./

,2#&'"K'!"L3M$11"*
344.+?.:64-
344.+G6:*/
344.+@*B(),E6

=2%&'23N'(&2:"3'K"*'(&OL&:%
"%+S,.5A+"$!"
@A*+C.6C6/*-+-*D*46CB*:)+O(44+A,D*+,:+H:,55*C),J4*+(BC,5)+6:+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+.*/(-*:)/F
F

(;!C66;,=@D+C,
?CC.6D,4

;P+ED+,B
@A*+/HJN*5)+C.6C*.)E+(/+,+HCC*.+M466.+M4,)+O()A(:+,+56:D*.)*-+)A.**+/)6.*E+)*..,5*-+C.6C*.)E+O()A+,:+*P(/)(:Q
)O6R/)6.*E+.*,.+C.6N*5)(6:F+@A*+/()*+(/+:6)+,+4(/)*-+JH(4-(:Q+JH)+()+(/+O()A(:+)A*+;6.)A+I(4JH.:+36:/*.D,)(6:+?.*,F

0(C0CE@A
'**+?J6D*

Q+EDC(R
>#!$#$$=XF+>:M6.5*B*:)+(:D*/)(Q,)(6:+(:+)A*+(:/),44,)(6:+6M+-*5Y(:Q+,:-+B*),4+.,(4(:Q/+6:+)A*+M4,)+.66M/+6M+)A*
C.*B(/*/+)6+5.*,)*+.66M+)*..,5*/+)6+)A*+M(./)+M466.+,:-+/*56:-+M466.+M4,)/F+>:M6.5*B*:)+:6)(5*+/*.D*-++M6446O(:Q
)A*+-(/B(//,4+6M+,:+,CC*,4+6:+"!#$Z#"$!!F+@A*+*:M6.5*B*:)+:6)(5*+/*)+6H)+)A*+M6446O(:Q+/)*C/+)6+.*B*-E+)A*
J.*,5A0

! 7*B6D*+)A*+-*5Y(:Q+,:-+B*),4+.,(4(:Q/+6:+)A*+M4,)+.66M/+,:-+J465Y+HC+)A*+,55*//+O,E/+)6+)A*+M4,)
.66M/+/6+)A,)+)A*+.66M+)*..,5*/+,.*+.*B6D*-+M.6B+)A*+C.*B(/*/F

>:M6.5*B*:)+,5)(6:+O,/+),Y(:Q+)6+.*B6D*+)A*+-*5Y(:Q+,:-+B*),4+.,(4(:Q/+A6O*D*.+)A*+,55*//+O,E/+)6+)A*+M4,)
.66M/+A,-+,+/(:Q4*+)(BJ*.+J6,.-+C4,5*-+6D*.+)A*B+)6+.*/).(5)+,55*//F+

!$#"[""F+7*).6/C*5)(D*+,CC4(5,)(6:+M6.+.*)*:)(6:+6M+-*5Y(:Q+,:-+B*),4+.,(4(:Q/+6:+)A*+M4,)+.66M+\6M+M(./)+M466.]+6M

Page 32



)A*+C.*B(/*/+)6+5.*,)*+.66M+)*..,5*+)6+M(./)+M466.+M4,)F+7*MH/*-+$^#$"#"$!!+M6.+)A*+M6446O(:Q+.*,/6:/0

3: ;<&)&=>?(>',)@""1)(&@@+#&)A"$B-)@&?$B()>')$'@&+?"'+CB&)"D&@B""E>',)"1)'&+@CF)/@"/&@(>&?)+'-),+@-&'?G
A<>#<)A"$B-)C&)<+@%1$B)(")(<&)+%&'>(F)+'-)/@>D+#F)"1)'&>,<C"$@>',)"##$/>&@?G)#"'(@+@F)(")?+D&-)/"B>#F
HIJ)"1)(<&)K"'-"')H"@"$,<)"1)H@&'()L'>(+@F)!&D&B"/%&'()9B+')466M)+'-)N$//B&%&'(+@F)9B+''>',
O$>-+'#&)82)PQB(&@>',)R)I=(&'->',)S"$@)T"%&P:

4:) ;<&)&=>?(>',)@""1)(&@@+#&G)CF)@&+?"')"1)>(?)?>(>',G)A"$B-)@&?$B()>')+)B"??)"1)"$(B""E)1@"%)'&>,<C"$@>',
/@"/&@(F)U")3V)#"'(@+@F)(")?+D&-)/"B>#F)HIJ)"1)(<&)K"'-"')H"@"$,<)"1)H@&'()L'>(+@F)!&D&B"/%&'()9B+'
466M:

W:) ;<&)&=>?(>',)@""1)(&@@+#&?G)-&#E&-)@""1)+'-)+??"#>+(&-)@+>B>',?)CF)@&+?"')"1)>(?)?>(>',)+'-)>'#"',@$"$?
-&?>,')+'-)+???"#>+(&-)/""@)%+(&@>+B?)A"$B-)<+D&)+)-&(@>%&'(+B)>%/+#()"')(<&)#<+@+#(&@)+'-
+//&+@+'#&)"1)(<&)<"?()C$>B->',)A<>#<)A"$B-)1+>B)(")/@&?&@D&)"@)&'<+'#&)(<&)#<+@+#(&@)"1)(<&)?$@@"$'->',
U"@(<)X>BC$@')Y"'?&@D+(>"')Q@&+)#"'(@+@F)(")?+D&-)/"B>#>&?)HI4G)HIJG)HI48)+'-)HI47)"1)(<&)K"'-"'
H"@"$,<)"1)H@&'()L'>(+@F)!&D&B"/%&'()9B+')466M)+'-)(<&)Z$&&'[?)9+@E)Y"'?&@D+(>"')Q@&+)!&?>,'
O$>-&:

!$#"="&= 7*).6/C*5)(D*+,CC4(5,)(6:+M6.+.*)*:)(6:+6M+-*5Y(:Q+,:-+B*),4+.,(4(:Q/+6:+)A*+/*56:-+M466.+M4,)+.66M+6M
)A*+C.*B(/*/+)6+5.*,)*+.66M+)*..,5*+)6+/*56:-+M466.+M4,)F+7*MH/*-+6:+$^#$"#"$!!F

! ;<&)&=>?(>',)@""1)(&@@+#&)A"$B-)@&?$B()>')$'@&+?"'+CB&)"D&@B""E>',)"1)'&+@CF)/@"/&@(>&?)+'-),+@-&'?G
A<>#<)A"$B-)C&)<+@%1$B)(")(<&)+%&'>(F)+'-)/@>D+#F)"1)'&>,<C"$@>',)"##$/>&@?G)#"'(@+@F)(")?+D&-)/"B>#F
HIJ)"1)(<&)K"'-"')H"@"$,<)"1)H@&'()L'>(+@F)!&D&B"/%&'()9B+')466M)+'-)N$//B&%&'(+@F)9B+''>',
O$>-+'#&)82)PQB(&@>',)R)I=(&'->',)S"$@)T"%&P:

! ;<&)&=>?(>',)@""1)(&@@+#&G)CF)@&+?"')"1)>(?)?>(>',G)A"$B-)@&?$B()>')+)B"??)"1)"$(B""E)1@"%)'&>,<C"$@>',
/@"/&@(F)U")3V)#"'(@+@F)(")?+D&-)/"B>#F)HIJ)"1)(<&)K"'-"')H"@"$,<)"1)H@&'()L'>(+@F)!&D&B"/%&'()9B+'
466M:

! ;<&)&=>?(>',)@""1)(&@@+#&?G)-&#E&-)@""1)+'-)+??"#>+(&-)@+>B>',?)CF)@&+?"')"1)>(?)?>(>',)+'-)>'#"',@$"$?
-&?>,')+'-)+???"#>+(&-)/""@)%+(&@>+B?)A"$B-)<+D&)+)-&(@>%&'(+B)>%/+#()"')(<&)#<+@+#(&@)+'-
+//&+@+'#&)"1)(<&)<"?()C$>B->',)A<>#<)A"$B-)1+>B)(")/@&?&@D&)"@)&'<+'#&)(<&)#<+@+#(&@)"1)(<&)?$@@"$'->',
U"@(<)X>BC$@')Y"'?&@D+(>"')Q@&+)#"'(@+@F)(")?+D&-)/"B>#>&?)HI4G)HIJG)HI48)+'-)HI47)"1)(<&)K"'-"'
H"@"$,<)"1)H@&'()L'>(+@F)!&D&B"/%&'()9B+')466M)+'-)(<&)Z$&&'[?)9+@E)Y"'?&@D+(>"')Q@&+)!&?>,'
O$>-&:

0CA+!R'!C,E+=;(@D+C,E
,2%$"321'01233$34'0"1$M7'S*2#&T"*U
@A*+;UUK+O,/+CHJ4(/A*-+6:+"=)A+S,.5A+,:-+.*C4,5*/+U4,::(:Q+U64(5E+TH(-,:5*+,:-+U4,::(:Q+U64(5E
'),)*B*:)/+O()A+(BB*-(,)*+*MM*5)F++L)+(/+(:)*:-*-+)6+B,Y*+)A*+C4,::(:Q+/E/)*B+4*//+56BC4*P+,:-+B6.*
,55*//(J4*8+)6+C.6)*5)+)A*+*:D(.6:B*:)+,:-+)6+C.6B6)*+/H/),(:,J4*+Q.6O)AF+L)+(:54H-*/ ,+C.*/HBC)(6:+(:+M,D6H.
6M+/H/),(:,J4*+-*D*46CB*:)+(:+J6)A+C4,:+B,Y(:Q+,:-+-*5(/(6:+B,Y(:Q+,:-+()/+CHJ4(5,)(6:+(/+6M+/(Q:(M(5,:)
O*(QA)F

',D*-+C64(5(*/+M.6B+)A*+,-6C)*-+_WU+O(44+A,D*+(:5.*,/(:Q4E+4*//+O*(QA)+H:4*//+)A*E+,.*+(:+56:M6.B()E+O()A+)A*
;UUK+,:-+5,:+J*+-*B6:/).,)*-+)6+J*+/)(44+.*4*D,:)F++36.*+').,)*QE+C64(5(*/+O(44+,4/6+:**-+)6+J*+(:+56:M6.B()E
O()A+J6)A+)A*+96:-6:+U4,:+,:-+)A*+;UUK+,:-+A,D*+56:/(-*.,J4*+O*(QA)F

<A*.*+UUT`/8+UU'`/8+9WK+36.*+').,)*QE+,:-+_WU+/,D*-+C64(5(*/+,.*+.*M*..*-+)6+(:+)A*+.*C6.)+J*46O+)A*E
A,D*+J**:+56:/(-*.,)(6:/+(:+)A*+,//*//B*:)+6M+)A*+,CC4(5,)(6:F++a6O*D*.8+)A*+.*56BB*:-,)(6:+(/+56:/(-*.*-
)6+56BC4E+O()A+)A*+;UUK
F

J=0'5..V
H;5>'D"T3:M2)&>'A"M21'!"3%&W%'X'!Y2*2M%&*
H;Z>'@*MY$%&M%L*21'[L21$%7

E0B'/>'F@1%&*$34'23N';W%&3N$34'R"L*'Q"#&F

,2%$"321'01233$34'0"1$M7'S*2#&T"*U
@A*+;UUK+O,/+CHJ4(/A*-+6:+"=)A+S,.5A+,:-+.*C4,5*/+U4,::(:Q+U64(5E+TH(-,:5*+,:-+U4,::(:Q+U64(5E
'),)*B*:)/+O()A+(BB*-(,)*+*MM*5)F++L)+(/+(:)*:-*-+)6+B,Y*+)A*+C4,::(:Q+/E/)*B+4*//+56BC4*P+,:-+B6.*
,55*//(J4*8+)6+C.6)*5)+)A*+*:D(.6:B*:)+,:-+)6+C.6B6)*+/H/),(:,J4*+Q.6O)AF+L)+(:54H-*/ ,+C.*/HBC)(6:+(:+M,D6H.

Page 33



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3456678 9+,& 4 "1 7

6M+/H/),(:,J4*+-*D*46CB*:)+(:+J6)A+C4,:+B,Y(:Q+,:-+-*5(/(6:+B,Y(:Q+,:-+()/+CHJ4(5,)(6:+(/+6M+/(Q:(M(5,:)
O*(QA)F

',D*-+C64(5(*/+M.6B+)A*+,-6C)*-+_WU+O(44+A,D*+(:5.*,/(:Q4E+4*//+O*(QA)+H:4*//+)A*E+,.*+(:+56:M6.B()E+O()A+)A*
;UUK+,:-+5,:+J*+-*B6:/).,)*-+)6+J*+/)(44+.*4*D,:)F++36.*+').,)*QE+C64(5(*/+O(44+,4/6+:**-+)6+J*+(:+56:M6.B()E
O()A+J6)A+)A*+96:-6:+U4,:+,:-+)A*+;UUK+,:-+A,D*+56:/(-*.,J4*+O*(QA)F

<A*.*+UUT`/8+UU'`/8+9WK+36.*+').,)*QE+,:-+_WU+/,D*-+C64(5(*/+,.*+.*M*..*-+)6+(:+)A*+.*C6.)+J*46O+)A*E
A,D*+J**:+56:/(-*.,)(6:/+(:+)A*+,//*//B*:)+6M+)A*+,CC4(5,)(6:F++a6O*D*.8+)A*+.*56BB*:-,)(6:+(/+56:/(-*.*-
)6+56BC4E+O()A+)A*+;UUKF

!C,EJAD@D+C,
?44+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+C.6C*.)(*/+A,D*+J**:+56:/H4)*-+JE+4*))*.8+,+/()*+:6)(5*+O,/+(:/),44*-+6H)/(-*+)A*+/()*+,:-+,
C.*//+:6)(5*+O,/+/*.D*-F

%+6JN*5)(6:/+A,D*+J**:+.*5*(D*-+6:+)A*+M6446O(:Q+Q.6H:-/0
!F+96//+6M+C.(D,5E+M6.+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+.*/(-*:)/+(:+.*,.+Q,.-*:/+,:-+)A.6HQA+O(:-6O/+M,5(:Q+)6O,.-/+)A*
C.6C6/*+.66M+)*..,5*F
"F+;6(/*+,:-+-(/)H.J,:5*+M.6B+.*/(-*:)/+H/(:Q+)A*+C.6C6/*-+.66M+)*..,5*+,:-+GH4(*)+J,456:EF
ZF+@A*+C.6C6/*-+)*..,5*+O(44+J*+6H)+6M+Y**C(:Q+O()A+)A*+5A,.,5)*.+,:-+,CC*,.,:5*+6M+)A*+36:/*.D,)(6:+?.*,F
^F+W*).(B*:),4+(BC,5)+6:+/*5H.()E+6M+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+.*/(-*:)/F

L:+,--()(6:+)6+)A*/*+465,4+56H:5(446./+A,D*+.,(/*-+)A*+M6446O(:Q+56:5*.:/+OA*:+5,44(:Q+(:+)A*+,CC4(5,)(6:0
! L:/),44,)(6:+6M+,+.66M+)*..,5*+\+(M+/)(44+(:+)A*+C.6C6/,4]+O6H4-+(:).H-*+6:+C.(D,5E+M6.+:*(QAJ6H./
! L:/),44,)(6:+6M+)A*+GH4(*)+J,456:E+6H)/(-*+)A*+*P(/)(:Q+K.*:5A+O(:-6O/+O(44+,MM*5)+C.(D,5E+,:-+,4/6+5,H/*

:6(/*+,:-+(:).H/(6:F
! ;*(QAJ6H./+A,D*+C6(:)*-+6H)+)A,)+)A*.*+A,/+J**:+:6+C4,::(:Q+56:/*:)+M6.+)A*+K.*:5A+O(:-6O/+,:-+/6B*

6)A*.+O(:-6O/+(:/*.)*-+,:-+)A,)+)A*+K.*:5A+O(:-6O+/A6H4-+J*+.*B6D*-+,:-+.*C4,5*-+O()A+,:+6.-(:,.E
O(:-6O+)6+C.*D*:)+6D*.466Y(:Q+,:-+:6(/*8+5H..*:)4E+*PC*.(*:5*-F

\11>#&@)Y"%%&'(?
@A*+56BB*:)/+6M+.*/(-*:)/+.*4,)*+)6+C.6J4*B/+)A,)+.*/H4)*-+M.6B+.*/(-*:)/+6M+)A*+M4,)/+,)+;6/F+!%+H/(:Q+)A*
H:,H)A6.(/*-+.66M+)*..,5*/+6:+)A*+.66M/+6M+)A*+*P(/)(:Q+/(:Q4*+/)6.*E+,:-+)O6+/)6.*E+.*,.+*P)*:/(6:/F+@A*
C.6C6/,4+:6O+.*4,)*/+/64*4E+)6+)A*+.*)*:)(6:+6M+)A*+Q4,b*-+-66.+,:-+)A*+(:/),44,)(6:+6M+.,(4(:Q/+)6+M6.B+,+cGH4(*)
J,456:Ec+,)+)A*+M(./)+M466.+4*D*4F+@A(/+O(44+:6)+,446O+.*/(-*:)/+)6+/)*C+6H)+6:)6+)A*+M4,)+.66M*-+/*5)(6:/+6M+)A*
JH(4-(:QF+<A(4*+.*/(-*:)/+O(44+J*+,J4*+)6+6C*:+)A*+MH44+A*(QA)+-66./+)A*.*+O(44+:6)+J*+*,/E+,55*//+)6+)A*+.66M+-H*
)6+)A*+C.*/*:5*+6M+)A*+C.6C6/*-+.,(4(:Q/F+?/+/H5A+)A*+4*D*4+6M+-(/)H.J,:5*+M.6B+.*/(-*:)/+6C*:(:Q+)A*+-66./
O(44+:6)+J*+/(Q:(M(5,:)4E+-(MM*.*:)+M.6B+(M+()+O,/+,+O(:-6OF+L:+.*4,)(6:+)6+)A*+O(:-6O/+6:+)A*+/(-*+*4*D,)(6:+)A*/*
O(:-6O/+,.*+/A6O:+6:+)A*+*P(/)(:Q+,:-+,CC.6D*-+C4,:/+6M+,+C4,::(:Q+,CC4(5,)(6:+,)+)A(/+,--.*//+B,-*+(:
![["+\6H.+.*M+["#$Z==]8+)A*.*+(/+:6+*D(-*:5*+)A,)+)A*E+A,D*+J**:+.*5*:)4E+5A,:Q*-F

(;6@(\E
Q%&'-%&'(?)?>'#&)/@&D>"$?)@&1$?+B
@A*+C.*D(6H/+,CC4(5,)(6:/+O*.*+.*).6/C*5)(D*+,CC4(5,)(6:/+M6.+)A*+.,(4(:Q/+,:-+.66M+)*..,5*/+M6.+)A*+/*56:-
M466.+M4,)+,:-+)A*+M(./)+M466.+M4,)+\/*C,.,)*+,CC4(5,)(6:/+O*.*+/HJB())*-+M6.+*,5A+M4,)]F+@A(/+,CC4(5,)(6:+.*4,)*/+)6
J6)A+M4,)/+,:-+(:D64D*/+)A*+M6446O(:Q+,B*:-B*:)/0

!F+@A*+.66M+)*..,5*+A,/+J**:+.*B6D*-+M.6B+)A*+M(./)+M466.+M4,)+,:-+J**:+.*C4,5*-+O()A+,+GH4(*)+1,456:EF
"F+@A*+,55*//+)6+)A*+.66M+6M+)A*+)O6R/)6.*E+.*,.+*P)*:/(6:+A,/+J**:+.*B6D*-F
ZF+@A*+.,(4(:Q/+A,D*+J**:+.*B6D*-+M.6B+)A*+.66M+6M+)A*+)O6R/)6.*E+.*,.+*P)*:/(6:F

9@>'#>/B&
>P)*:/(6:/+,:-+,4)*.,)(6:/+)6+M4,)/+,.*+,55*C),J4*+C.6D(-*-+)A,)+)A*.*+(/+:6+-*).(B*:),4+(BC,5)+6:+)A*+,B*:()E
6M+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+.*/(-*:)/+,:-+)A*+C.6C6/,4/+C.*/*.D*+)A*+5A,.,5)*.+,:-+,CC*,.,:5*+6M+)A*+JH(4-(:Q+O()A(:+)A*
;6.)A+I(4JH.:+36:/*.D,)(6:+?.*,F

.&?>-&'(>+B)Q%&'>(F)
@A*+C.6C6/*-+cGH4(*)+1,456:Ec+O(44+(:D64D*+)A*+(:/),44,)(6:+6M+J,./+6D*.+)A*+*P(/)(:Q+-66./+6:+)A*+.*,.+*4*D,)(6:
6M+)A*+)O6R/)6.*E+.*,.+*P)*:/(6:+,)+)A*+M(./)+M466.+4*D*4F+@A*+.,(4(:Q/+O(44+J*+M(P*-+)6+)A*+.*,.+O,44+6M+)A*+*P(/)(:Q
)O6R/)6.*E+.*,.+*P)*:/(6:+,:-+O(44+:6)+C.6N*5)+6H)+6.+C.6D(-*+,:E+*P)*.:,4+C4,)M6.BF+@A*+-66./+O(44+,4/6+6C*:

Page 34



(:O,.-/F+@A(/+O(44+:6)+,446O+,:E+MH.)A*.+6D*.466Y(:Q+)A,:+O6H4-+*P(/)+O()A+,+:6.B,4+O(:-6O+(:+)A(/+C6/()(6:+,:-
O(44+:6)+.*/H4)+(:+,+/(Q:(M(5,:)+46//+6M+,B*:()E+M6.+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+655HC(*./F

@A*+C.6C6/*-+M(./)+M466.+.*,.+)*..,5*+A,/+J**:+.*B6D*-+,/+,+.*/H4)+6M+-(.*5)+*:M6.5*B*:)+,5)(6:F+@A*+*P(/)(:Q
-66.+(/+)6+J*+.*B6D*-+,:-+)A*.*+O(44+:6O+J*+:6+-(.*5)+,55*//+6:)6+)A*+.66M+6M+*()A*.+)A*+/(:Q4*+/)6.*E+6.+)A*
)O6R/)6.*E+F++@6+*:/H.*+)A,)+)A(/+(/+)A*+5,/*+,+56:-()(6:+O(44+J*+,)),5A*-+)6+*:/H.*+)A,)+)A*+*P(/)(:Q+.*,.+-66.+(/
.*B6D*-+)A,)+)A*+H/*+6M+)A*+M4,)+.66M/+,.*+.*/).(5)*-+/64*4E+M6.+)A*+CH.C6/*/+6M+B,(:)*:,:5*F

Y<+@+#(&@)+'-)+//&+@+'#&
@A*+*P(/)(:Q+Q4,b*-+-66.+,:-+)A*+C.6C6/*-+.,(4(:Q/+)6+M6.B+)A*+GH4(*)+1,456:E+,.*+J6)A+C6/()(6:*-+6:+)A*+.*,.
*4*D,)(6:+,:-+,.*+:6)+D(/(J4*+M.6B+)A*+/).**)/5*:*F+L:+)A*+/H..6H:-(:Q+,.*,+)A*.*+,.*+,+B(P+6M+-(MM*.*:)
).*,)B*:)/+6:+)A*+.*,.+*4*D,)(6:/+6M+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+C.6C*.)(*/+,:-+6)A*./+O()A(:+)A*+C*.(B*)*.+J465YF+T(D*:+)A(/
,:-+)A*+C6/()(6:+6:+)A*+.*,.+*4*D,)(6:+)A*+C.6C6/*-+O6.Y/+,.*+56:/(-*.*-+)6+C.*/*.D*+)A*+5A,.,5)*.+,:-
,CC*,.,:5*+6M+)A*+C.6C*.)E+O()A(:+)A*+36:/*.D,)(6:+?.*,F

Y"'#B$?>"'
@A*+C.6C6/*-+GH4(*)+1,456:E+(/+56:/(-*.*-+)6+J*+(:+Y**C(:Q+O()A+)A*+5A,.,5)*.+,:-+,CC*,.,:5*+6M+)A*
C.6C*.)E+,:-+O(44+:6)+A,D*+,+-*).(B*:),4+(BC,5)+6:+)A*+,B*:()E+6M+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+.*/(-*:)/F+?556.-(:Q4E+)A*
C.6C6/,4+(/+.*56BB*:-*-+M6.+,CC.6D,4+/HJN*5)+)6+56:-()(6:/+/*)+6H)+J*46OF

(;!C66;,=@D+C,> T.,:)+36:/*:)

(;@EC,'SC('B(@,D+,B

\!] @A*+C.6C6/*-+-*D*46CB*:)+(/+(:+Q*:*.,4+,556.-,:5*+O()A+C64(5(*/+56:),(:*-+(:+)A*0R

1.*:)+_:(),.E+W*D*46CB*:)+U4,:+"$$^
36H:5(4c/+'HCC4*B*:),.E+U4,::(:Q+TH(-,:5*+&+R+?4)*.(:Q+,:-+>P)*:-(:Q+d6H.+a6B*

7*4*D,:)+C64(5(*/+(:+)A*+?-6C)*-+_:(),.E+W*D*46CB*:)+U4,:+,.*+)A6/*+(:+)A*+M6446O(:Q
5A,C)*./0R

1H(4)+>:D(.6:B*:)0+(:+)*.B/+6M+)A*+C.6)*5)(6:+,:-+*:A,:5*B*:)+6M+)A*+*:D(.6:B*:)
a6H/(:Q0+(:+)*.B/+6M+C.6)*5)(:Q+.*/(-*:)(,4+,B*:()(*/+,:-+QH(-(:Q+:*O+-*D*46CB*:)

!C,=+D+C,E](;@EC,E>

\!] @A*+-*D*46CB*:)+)6+OA(5A+)A(/+C*.B(//(6:+.*4,)*/+BH/)+J*+J*QH:+:6)+4,)*.+)A,:+)A*+*PC(.,)(6:
6M+)A.**+E*,./+J*Q(::(:Q+6:+)A*+-,)*+6M+)A(/+C*.B(//(6:F

7*,/6:0++@6+56:M6.B+O()A+)A*+.*VH(.*B*:)/+6M+'*5)(6:+[!+6M+)A*+@6O:+,:-+36H:).E+U4,::(:Q
?5)+![[$F

\"] @A*+-*D*46CB*:)+A*.*JE+C*.B())*-+/A,44+J*+5,..(*-+6H)+(:+,556.-,:5*+O()A+)A*+M6446O(:Q
,CC.6D*-+-.,O(:Q\/]+,:-#6.+-65HB*:)\/]0

!!#"%Z&#!7*D1
!!#"%Z&#"
!!#"%Z&#Z7*D1

7*,/6:0++K6.+)A*+,D6(-,:5*+6M+-6HJ)+,:-+(:+)A*+(:)*.*/)/+6M+C.6C*.+C4,::(:QF

\Z] ;6+,55*//+/A,44+J*+C.6D(-*-+)6+)A*+.66M+6M+)A*+*P)*:/(6:+JE+O,E+6M+O(:-6O8+-66.+6.+/),(.O,E
,:-+ )A*+ .66M/+ 6M+ )A*+ *P(/)(:Q+ /(:Q4*+ /)6.*E+ .*,.+ ,:-+ )O6R/)6.*E+ .*,.+ *P)*:/(6:/+ /A,44+ :6)+ J*
H/*-+,/+,+J,456:E+6.+/())(:Q+6H)+,.*,F

7*,/6:0+@6+C.*/*.D*+)A*+,B*:()E+,:-+C.(D,5E+6M+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+.*/(-*:)(,4+655HC(*./F

\^] @A*+*P(/)(:Q+-66.+6:+)A*+/*56:-+M466.+4*D*4+/A,44+J*+.*B6D*-+,:-+.*C4,5*-+O()A+,+O(:-6O+(:
,556.-,:5*+O()A+)A*+,CC.6D*-+C4,:/+O()A(:+"+B6:)A/+6M+)A*+-,)*+6M+)A(/+C*.B(//(6:+H:4*//

Page 35



6)A*.O(/*+,Q.**-+(:+O.()(:Q+JE+)A*+965,4+U4,::(:Q+?H)A6.()EF

7*,/6:0+@6+*:/H.*+,+/,)(/M,5)6.E+/),:-,.-+6M+,CC*,.,:5*+,:-+)6+*:/H.*+)A,)+)A*+,B*:()E+6M
:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+.*/(-*:)+O(44+J*+C.6)*5)*-F

+,SC(6@D+<;E>

\!] @A*+C.6D(/(6:/+6M+@A*+U,.)E+<,44+*)5F+?5)+![[%+B,E+J*+,CC4(5,J4*+,:-+.*4,)*/+)6+O6.Y+6:+,:
*P(/)(:Q+O,44+/A,.*-+O()A+,:6)A*.+C.6C*.)Ee+JH(4-(:Q+6:+)A*+J6H:-,.E+O()A+,+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q
C.6C*.)Ee+6.+*P5,D,)(:Q+:*,.+,+:*(QAJ6H.(:Q+JH(4-(:QF+?:+*PC4,:,)6.E+J66Y4*)+/*))(:Q+6H)+E6H.
6J4(Q,)(6:/+5,:+J*+6J),(:*-+M.6B+)A*+36BBH:()(*/+,:-+965,4+T6D*.:B*:)+O*J/()*
OOOF56BBH:()(*/FQ6DFHY

?:E+C*./6:+O(/A(:Q+)6+(:/C*5)+)A*+,J6D*+C,C*./+/A6H4-+56:),5)+76J(:+'*-QO(5Y8+@A*+U4,::(:Q+'*.D(5*8+1.*:)
a6H/*8+Z^[+a(QA+76,-8+<*BJ4*E8+S(--4*/*P8+a?[+%1f8+@*4F+;6F+$"$+X[Z= &""[

Page 36



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3456784 9+,& 3 "1 8

!"##$%%&&'(&)"*% +%&#',"- './

01233$34'!"##$%%&&'"3 55'6278'5.95 !2:&',"- !"#$%&"

01233$34'!"##$%%&&'62)

'()*+,--.*//0 "1+2.*(34)56+75,-8+956-568+:;<+<=>

!"#$%&'"(%)*$+,-."/'0"0/./1/23"$+,-.2"4566"7$0'/'(3"89$:3*"65554;4<5

?4(/+@,A+(/+(6-(B,)(C*+56DEF

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



(;!;+<;=> !1+G*H.I,.E8+"$!"

?@(=> JI**6K/+L,.M

0A@,,+,B'@(;@> N(DHI.6+O+N*6/,D+256/ID),)(C*+G5.I@

AC!@D+C,> "1+2.*(34)56+75,-8+956-568+:;<+<=>

0(C0CE@A> 2.*,)(56+5P+,+H,/*@*6)+D*C*D8+*.*B)(56+5P+/(63D*+/)5.*E+/(-*+(6P(DD+*Q)*6/(56+,6-
.*,.+-5.@*.+R(6-5R8+(6/),DD,)(56+5P+/(63D*+P.56)+,6-+.*,.+.55PD(34)/+,6-
.*AD,B*@*6)+5P+,DD+R(6-5R/+,6-+P.56)+-55.+)5+-R*DD(6345I/*F

@00A+!@,D> S>TS:?SU=+VS'=W=:?+2X+9?>

!C,D@!D> Y6-(35+VDI*+;5.M/+9)-

0A@,',CFE>
'**+B56-()(56+"F

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

(;!C66;,=@D+C,
SAA.5C*

;H+ED+,B
?4*+A.5A*.)E+(/+,+)R5+/)5.*E+)*..,B*-+-R*DD(6345I/*+D5B,)*-+56+2.*(34)56+75,-F+Y)+(/+(6+)4*+JI**6/+L,.M
256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+R()4+,--()(56,D+S.)(BD*+1+Z![+>(.*B)(56+.*/).(B)(56/F+Y)+(/+65)+D(/)*-F

0(C0CE@A
'**+,H5C*F

I+EDC(J
?4*.*+,.*+65+AD,66(63+-*B(/(56/+.*D,)(63+)5+)4(/+A.5A*.)E+HI)+@*@H*./+@,E+H*+,R,.*+)4,)+5)4*.+H,/*@*6)
A.5A5/,D/+(6+)4(/+.5,-+4,C*+.*B*6)DE+H**6+3.,6)*-+HE+AD,66(63+B5@@())**F

!!#!\%]+^+!1+2.*(34)56+75,-8+956-568+:;<+<=>+3.,6)*-+"<#!$#"$!!

!$#"\]1+^+%"+2.*(34)56+75,-8+956-568+:;<+<=>+3.,6)*-+!1#$!#"$!!

0CA+!J'!C,E+=;(@D+C,E
,2%$"321'01233$34'0"1$K7'L*2#&M"*N
?4*+:LLG+R,/+AIHD(/4*-+56+"&)4+W,.B4+,6-+.*AD,B*/+LD,66(63+L5D(BE+UI(-,6B*+,6-+LD,66(63+L5D(BE
'),)*@*6)/+R()4+(@@*-(,)*+*PP*B)F++Y)+(/+(6)*6-*-+)5+@,M*+)4*+AD,66(63+/E/)*@+D*//+B5@AD*Q+,6-+@5.*
,BB*//(HD*8+)5+A.5)*B)+)4*+*6C(.56@*6)+,6-+)5+A.5@5)*+/I/),(6,HD*+3.5R)4F+Y)+(6BDI-*/ ,+A.*/I@A)(56+(6+P,C5I.
5P+/I/),(6,HD*+-*C*D5A@*6)+(6+H5)4+AD,6+@,M(63+,6-+-*B(/(56+@,M(63+,6-+()/+AIHD(B,)(56+(/+5P+/(36(P(B,6)
R*(34)F

',C*-+A5D(B(*/+P.5@+)4*+,-5A)*-+_>L+R(DD+4,C*+(6B.*,/(63DE+D*//+R*(34)+I6D*//+)4*E+,.*+(6+B56P5.@()E+R()4+)4*
:LLG+,6-+B,6+H*+-*@56/).,)*-+)5+H*+/)(DD+.*D*C,6)F++25.*+').,)*3E+A5D(B(*/+R(DD+,D/5+6**-+)5+H*+(6+B56P5.@()E
R()4+H5)4+)4*+956-56+LD,6+,6-+)4*+:LLG+,6-+4,C*+B56/(-*.,HD*+R*(34)F

;4*.*+LLU`/8+LL'`/8+9>G+25.*+').,)*3E+,6-+_>L+/,C*-+A5D(B(*/+,.*+.*P*..*-+)5+(6+)4*+.*A5.)+H*D5R+)4*E
4,C*+H**6+B56/(-*.,)(56/+(6+)4*+,//*//@*6)+5P+)4*+,AAD(B,)(56F++a5R*C*.8+)4*+.*B5@@*6-,)(56+(/+B56/(-*.*-
)5+B5@ADE+R()4+)4*+:LLGF

O*&3%'P3$%2*7'=&Q&1")#&3%'0123'5..R

ED(99+^+?4*+bI,D()E+,6-+B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+V5.5I34K/+HI(D)+,6-+6,)I.,D+*6C(.56@*6)+R(DD+H*+A.5)*B)*-+,6-
*64,6B*-8+,6-+A.5A5/,D/+R4(B4+R5ID-+4,C*+,+/(36(P(B,6)+4,.@PID+(@A,B)+56+)4*+*6C(.56@*6)+5.+,@*6()(*/+5P

Page 38



)4*+V5.5I34+R(DD+H*+.*PI/*-F

O;5+^+>*/(36+/45ID-+4,C*+.*3,.-+)5+)4*+D5B,D+B56)*Q)8+@,M(63+,+A5/()(C*+B56).(HI)(56+)5+)4*+B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*
,.*,F+SBB5I6)+/45ID-+H*+),M*6+5P+*Q(/)(63+D,6-P5.@+,6-+6,)I.,D+P*,)I.*/8+)4*+6**-+)5+(@A.5C*+)4*+bI,D()E+5P
*Q(/)(63+I.H,6+/A,B*/8+@,)*.(,D/+,6-+)5R6/B,A*+P*,)I.*/+)4,)+B56).(HI)*+P,C5I.,HDE+)5+)4*+,.*,K/+B4,.,B)*.8+5.
4,C*+,6+I6,BB*A),HD*+C(/I,D+(@A,B)+56+W*).5A5D(),6+XA*6+9,6-F+L.5A5/,D/+/45ID-+65)+B,I/*+4,.@+)5+)4*
B4,.,B)*.+,6-#5.+,AA*,.,6B*+5P+,6+,.*,F+SAAD(B,)(56+5P+)4*/*+B.()*.(,+/45ID-+65)+A.*BDI-*+)4*+/*6/()(C*
(6).5-IB)(56+5P+(665C,)(C*+B56)*@A5.,.E+-*/(36/F

O;/+^+a(34+/),6-,.-+5P+D,6-/B,A(63+.*bI(.*-+,/+,6+(6)*3.,D+*D*@*6)+5P+-*C*D5A@*6)8+(6BDI-(63+,+-*/(36+R4(B4
.*PD*B)/+45R+)4*+,.*,+R(DD+H*+I/*-+,6-+)4*+B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+D5B,D()E+,6-+/I..5I6-(63+HI(D-(63/8++6*R+AD,6)(63+5P
,6+,AA.5A.(,)*+/A*B(*/8+/(c*8+-*6/()E+5P+AD,6)(63+R()4+/*@(^@,)I.*+5.+,-C,6B*-+6I./*.E+/)5BM8+6*R+(6)*3.,DDE
-*/(36*-+/).IB)I.,D+D,6-/B,A(63+56+,AA.5A.(,)*+D,.3*.+/()*/8+H5I6-,.E+).*,)@*6)/+R4(B4+B5@AD*@*6)+)4*
-*C*D5A@*6)+,6-+*64,6B*+)4*+/).**)/B*6*+,6-+/B.**6(63+5P+,BB*//+.5,-/+,6-+5H).I/(C*+-*C*D5A@*6)+P.5@
6*(34H5I.(63+.*/(-*6)(,D+A.5A*.)(*/F

O;S+d+?4*+/).**)+*6C(.56@*6)+/45ID-+H*+*64,6B*-F

O;T+d+2.*,)(C*+,6-+4(34^bI,D()E+-*/(36+/5DI)(56/+ZP5.+*Q)*6/(56/[+/A*B(P(B+)5+/()*K/+/4,A*8+/(c*8+D5B,)(56+,6-
-*C*D5A@*6)+5AA5.)I6()(*/+'B,D*#@,//(63+,6-+4*(34)+/45ID-+H*+,AA.5A.(,)*+)5+)4*(.+/*))(63+,6-#5.+)5R6/B,A*
D5B,)(568+.*/A*B)8+R4(D/)+65)+6*B*//,.(DE+.*AD(B,)(638+)4*+A5/()(C*+D5B,D+-*/(36+B4,.,B)*.(/)(B/+5P+,-e5(6(63
-*C*D5A@*6)+,6-+/,)(/P,B)5.(DE+.*D,)*+)5+)4*@8+*Q4(H()+,+B56/(/)*6)+,6-+R*DD+B56/(-*.*-+,AAD(B,)(56+5P
A.(6B(AD*/+5P+,+B45/*6+/)ED*8+4,C*+,)).,B)(C*+P.56)+*D*C,)(56/+R4(B4+,--.*//+)4*+/).**)+,)+3.5I6-+D*C*D+R()4+R*DD
A.5A5.)(56*-+R(6-5R/+,6-+4,H(),HD*+.55@/+,6-+*6).,6B*/+56+)4*+P.56),3*8+R4*.*C*.+A5//(HD*8+H*+D,(-+5I)+)5
*6/I.*+)4*+HI(D-(63/+,6-+/A,B*/+,.*+5P+,+/B,D*8+-*/(36+,6-+.*D,)(56/4(A+)5+A.5@5)*+)4*+,@*6()E+5P+I/*./
A.5C(-(63+/,)(/P,B)5.E+/I6D(34)8+-,ED(34)8+A.(C,BE+,6-+5I)D55M+P5.+*Q(/)(63+,6-+A.5A5/*-+.*/(-*6)/+,6-+I/*+4(34
bI,D()E+,6-+-I.,HD*+@,)*.(,D/+5P+B5@A,)(HD*+5.+B5@AD*@*6),.E+B5D5I.#)*Q)I.*+)5+)4*+/I..5I6-(63+,.*,F

O;5/+d+SD)*.,)(56/+,6-+*Q)*6/(56/+)5+HI(D-(63/+(6+B56/*.C,)(56+,.*,/+/45ID-8+,/+P,.+,/+(/+A.,B)(B,HD*+.*),(6
)4*+5.(3(6,D+-*/(36+,6-+@,)*.(,D/+5.+H*+/E@A,)4*)(B+)5+)4*+5.(3(6,D+-*/(36+(6+)*.@/+5P+-(@*6/(56/8+)*Q)I.*+,6-
,AA*,.,6B*+4,C(63+.*3,.-+)5+,6E+-*/(36+3I(-,6B*+(//I*-+HE+)4*+AD,66(63+,I)45.()EF++24,.,B)*.(/)(B+P*,)I.*/
/IB4+,/+-55./8+B,65A(*/8+R(6-5R/8+.55P+-*),(D/+,6-+A,.)E+R,DD+IA/),6-/+/45ID-+H*+.*),(6*-F++=Q)*6/(56/+)5
HI(D-(63/+(6+B56/*.C,)(56+,.*,/+/45ID-+65)+,D)*.+)4*+/B,D*+5.+.55PD(6*+5P+)4*+HI(D-(63+-*).(@*6),D+)5+)4*+I6()E+5.
B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+B56/*.C,)(56+,.*,+,6-+H*+B5@AD*@*6),.E+)5+)4*+5.(3(6,D+HI(D-(63+(6+*D*C,)(56,D+P*,)I.*/F

'IAAD*@*6),.E+LD,66(63+UI(-,6B*+:5)*+]0+fSD)*.(63+,6-+*Q)*6-(63+E5I.+45@*g

JI**6`/+L,.M+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+>*/(36+UI(-*

!C,EPAD@D+C,
:*(34H5I./#7*A.*/*6)**/
!!+6*(34H5I.(63+5R6*.#5BBIA(*./+B56/ID)*-8+/()*+65)(B*+AI)+IA+,6-+,-C*.)+AD,B*-+(6+D5B,D+6*R/A,A*.
"h#$%#"$!"F+?5+-,)*+"!+D*))*./+5P+5He*B)(56+,6-+,+/(63D*+D*))*.+5P+/IAA5.)+4,C*+H**6+.*B*(C*-F+W,(6+A5(6)/+5P
B56B*.6+.*D,)*-+)5i

! U*6*.,D+>(/.IA)(568+/IB4+,/+65(/*8+-I/)8+).,PP(B+B,I/*-+HE+R5.M/+)5+A.5A*.)EF
! 7(/M+5P+/IH/(-*6B*+,6-+PD55-(63+B,I/*-+HE+H,/*@*6)+R5.M/F
! XC*.D55M(63+,.(/(63+P.5@+A.5A5/*-+.*,.+-5.@*.+R(6-5RF
! ;5.M/+R5ID-+65)+H*+(6+M**A(63+R()4+)4*+B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,F
! 2I@ID,)(C*+(@A,B)+5P+H,/*@*6)+R5.M/+5BBI..(63+56+2.*(34)56+75,-+-*).(@*6),D+)5+,.*,F

XPP(B*./+.*/A56/*
Y//I*/+5P+65(/*+,6-+-(/)I.H,6B*+,.*+,BM65RD*-3*-+HE+XPP(B*./+^+,6+(6P5.@,)(C*+R(DD+H*+AD,B*-+56+)4(/
A*.@(//(56+,-C(/(63+R45@*C*.+B,..(*/+5I)+)4*+R5.M/+5P+)4*(.+5HD(3,)(56/+)5+B5@ADE+(6+PIDD+R()4+)4*+/),6-,.-/
/*)+5I)+(6 /<$+5P+)4*+256).5D+5P+L5DDI)(56+SB)+!h&1+,6-+)4*+V.()(/4+'),6-,.-+25-*/+5P+A.,B)(B*+]""\0!hh&+L,.)/
!+)5+1+R4(B4+/),)*/+)4,)+256/).IB)(56#.*PI.H(/4@*6)+,6-+-*@5D()(56+R5.M/+,6-+,6B(DD,.E+5A*.,)(56/+R4(B4+,.*
,I-(HD*+,)+)4*+/()*+H5I6-,.E+/4,DD+H*+B,..(*-+5I)+56DE+H*)R**6+)4*+45I./+5P0+W56-,E+)5+G.(-,E++$\0$$+)5+!\0$$8
',)I.-,E+$\0$$+)5+!%0$$+,6-+,)+65+)(@*+56+'I6-,E/+5.+V,6M+a5D(-,E/F+Y6+,--()(56+)4*+>*/(36+SBB*//
/),)*@*6)+/*)/+5I)+)4*+-*C*D5A*.+R(DD+/(36+IA+)5+256/(-*.,)*+256).,B)5./+'B4*@*8+,6-+)4(/+R(DD+H*+B56).5DD*-
)4.5I34+B56-()(56F

Page 39



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3456784 9+,& 4 "1 8

256B*.6/+,H5I)+/IH/(-*6B*+,.*+65)+,+B56/(-*.,)(56+)5+H*+-*,D)+R()4+I6-*.+LD,66(63+SB)/8+.,)4*.+()+(/+,+@,))*.
)5+H*+,--.*//*-+I6-*.+VI(D-(63+7*3ID,)(56/F+S6+(6P5.@,)(C*+R(DD+H*+AD,B*-+56+)4(/+A*.@(//(56+,-C(/(63
,AAD(B,6)/+5P+)4*(.+5HD(3,)(56+)5+B5@ADE+R()4+)4*+L,.)E+;,DD+SB)+!hh<+*)B+(6+PIDDF

Y6+)*.@/+5P+B56B*.6/+)4,)+R5.M/+,.*+65)+(6+M**A(63+R()4+)4*+JI**6/+L,.M+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+,6-+)4*+>*/(36
UI(-*+(6+A,.)(BID,.8+XPP(B*./+65)*+)4,)+)4*+>*/(36+UI(-*+-5*/+65)+.*P*.+)5+H,/*@*6)+*Q)*6/(56/+,6-+R()4+)4,)
(6+@(6-8+)4*+25I6B(D+6**-/+)5+-*,D+R()4+/IB4+,AAD(B,)(56/+56+,+B,/*+HE+B,/*+H,/(/F+GI.)4*.+)5+)4(/+)4*+.*A5.)
H*D5R+/*)/+5I)+)4,)+@*,/I.*/+4,C*+H**6+),M*6+(6+/5+P,.+,/+D,6-/B,A(63+,6-+AD,6)(63+)5+@()(3,)*+)4*+(@A,B)+5P
)4*+D(34)R*DDF+SD/5+)4*+A.5A5/*-+P.56)+3,.-*6+R5ID-+(@A.5C*+/(36(P(B,6)DE+()/+B56).(HI)(56+)5R,.-+)4*+B4,.,B)*.
5P+)4*+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+,6-+/5+(/+B56/(-*.*-+,6+(@A.5C*@*6)F

Y6+)*.@/+5P+)4*+.*,.+-5.@*.8+()+(/+(6+M**A(63+R()4+)4*+JI**6/+L,.M+3I(-,6B*F

Y6+)*.@/+5P+B56B*.6/+.*D,)(63+)5+)4*+BI@ID,)(C*+(@A,B)+5P+H,/*@*6)/+56+)4*+/).**)8+XPP(B*./+65)*+)4,)+)4*
(@A,B)+,/+P,.+,/+)4*+B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+(/+B56B*.6*-+R(DD+H*+@(6(@,D+3(C*6+)4,)+)4*E+,.*
/IH)*..,6*,6+,6-+)4*+D(34)R*DD/+,.*+/(36(P(B,6)DE+/B.**6*-+P.5@+)4*+/).**)F+Y6+)*.@/+5P+)4*(.+(@A,B)+H*E56-
B4,.,B)*.+B56/(-*.,)(56/8+R4(D/)+()+(/+,BM65RD*-3*-+)4,)+A.5D563*-+A*.(5-/+5P+R5.M+B,6+B,I/*+-(/)I.H,6B*+)5
6*(34H5I.(63+A.5A*.)(*/8+()+R5ID-+65)+B56/)()I)*+@,)*.(,D+AD,66(63+3.5I6-/+)5+.*/(/)+,6+,AAD(B,)(56+,6-+)4*
B5I6B(D+/**M/+)5+@()(3,)*+)4*+(@A,B)+)4.5I34+@*,/I.*/+/IB4+,/+)4*+256/(-*.,)*+256).,B)5./+'B4*@*

XPP(B*./+,.*+/E@A,)4*)(B+)5+)4*+B56B*.6/+.,(/*-+,H5I)+(@A,B)+5P+R5.M/+HI)8+,/+*QAD,(6*-+,H5C*8+()+R5ID-+H*
-(PP(BID)+)5+.*PI/*+,6+,AAD(B,)(56+56+)4*/*+3.5I6-/F

'),)I)5.E+256/ID)/

JLS7S+B56/ID)*-+,6-+.*/A56-*-+R()4+5He*B)(56+56+3.5I6-/+5P+-(/)I.H,6B*+)5+6*(34H5I.(63+A.5A*.)(*/+,6-
,-C*./*+,PP*B)+56+/).**)/B,A*+B,I/*-+HE+P.56)+D(34)+R*DDF

(;6@(UE
XPP(B*./+B56/(-*.+)4*.*+)5+H*+)R5+(//I*/+)4,)+6**-+)5+H*+,--.*//*-+(6+)4(/+-*)*.@(6,)(56F+?4*/*+,.*i

Z([+)4*+(@A,B)+56+6*(34H5I.(63+,@*6()E+,6-8
Z([+-*/(36+(6+.*D,)(56+)5+)4*+*Q(/)(63+-R*DD(63+45I/*+,6-+)4*+B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+JI**6/+L,.M+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,

?4*/*+ R(DD+ H*+ ,--.*//*-+ (6+ )I.6+ R4*.*+ 6*B*//,.E+ (6+ .*D,)(56+ )5+ )4*+ -(PP*.*6)+ *D*@*6)/+ 5P+ )4*+ A.5A5/*-
/B4*@*F

@#&3V#&3%:

?4*+,AAD(B,6)+/IH@())*-+.*C(/*-+AD,6/+"h#$%#"$!"+/45R(63i

^+?4*+.*@5C,D+5P+,+/(63D*+P.56)+.55PD(34)+/5+)4,)+P.56)+.55P+/D5A*+B56),(6/+56DE+,+/(63D*+256/*.C,)(56+')ED*
.55PD(34)
^+S--()(56,D+-*),(D+.*D,)(63+)5+)4*+D,6-/B,A(63+).*,)@*6)+(6+)4*+P.56)+3,.-*6
^+.*C(/*-+-*/B.(A)(56+P5.+)4*+H,/*@*6)+@*-(,+.55@F

+3W$11';X%&3:$"3
?4*+-*/(36+(/+,+D*,6+)5+*Q)*6/(56+/A,66(63+)4*+R(-)4+,6-+D*63)4+5P+)4*+/(-*+.*)I.6+,.*,F+Y)/+4*(34)+,)+)4*
*,C*/+,6-+56+)4*+H5I6-,.E+R()4+65+"<+2.*(34)56+75,-+(/+"@+,6-+/D5A*/+IA+)5+%@+,)+()/+4(34*/)+A5(6)+R4*.*+()
@**)/+)4*+PD,6M+*D*C,)(56+5P+)4*+/(-*+.*)I.6F+?4*+.55P+B56),(6/+]+.55PD(34)/F

?4*+A.5A5/*-+/(-*+(6P(DD(63+5P+,6+5I).(33*.+B,6+H*+B56/(-*.*-+)5+H*+B56).,.E+)5+'IAAD*@*6),.E+LD,66(63
UI(-,6B*+Z'LU][+3(C*6+)4,)+()+B,6+5P)*6+.*/ID)+(6+,+D5//+5P+,@*6()E+)5+A.5A*.)(*/+R45+@,E+,D.*,-E+/IPP*.+P.5@
.*/).(B)*-+5I)D55M8+45R*C*.+)4*E+,.*+65)+.*PI/*-+(6+,DD+(6/),6B*/F+Y6+.*/A56/*+)58+,@563/)+5)4*.+)4(63/8+.*B*6)
,AA*,D+-*B(/(56/8+)4*+25I6B(D/+LD,66(63+25@@())**+!]#!"#"$!$+.*/5DC*-+)5+,DD5R+B*.),(6+(6P(DD+*Q)*6/(56/
R4*.*+)4*+/B,D*+,6-+-*/(36+R5ID-+65)+(6P.(63*+6*(34H5I.(63+,@*6()EF+S3.**-+A,.,@*)*./+,.*8+(6P(DD+*Q)*6/(56/
/45ID-+65)+*QB**-+"@+56+)4*+H5I6-,.E+@*,/I.*-+P.5@+)4*+6*(34H5I./+3.5I6-+PD55.+D*C*D8+H*+P(6(/4*-+(6+D(34)
R*(34)+@,)*.(,D/+)5+.*-IB*+)4*+(@A,B)+,6-+4,C*+,+@,Q(@I@+4*(34)+65+4(34*.+)4,6+%@F+?5+,B4(*C*+)4(/8+,+D*,6
)5+(/+5P)*6+)4*+56DE+C(,HD*+,AA.5,B4F

Y6+.*/A*B)+5P+)4(/+A5/()(568+XPP(B*./+P(6-+)4*+A.5A5/*-+*Q)*6/(56+)5+H*+(6+3*6*.,D+B56P5.@()E+(6+)*.@/+5P+/B,D*F
?4*+ 25I6B(D+ R(DD+ B56).5D+ )4.5I34+ B56-()(56+ )4,)+ )4*+ .55PD(34)/+ /*)+ R()4(6+ %@+ 5P+ )4*+ .*,.+ *D*C,)(56+ R,DD+ H*
5H/BI.*+ 3D,c*-+ /5+ ,/+ )5+ /,P*3I,.-+ 6*(34H5I.(63+ ,@*6()EF+ Y6+ )*.@/+ 5P+ ()/+ -*/(368+ ()/+ /B,D*+ *6/I.*/+ ()+ (/

Page 40



/IH/(-(,.E+,/+,+-5@*/)(B+*Q)*6/(56+ )5+ )4*+*Q(/)(63+45I/*8+R4(D/)+ )4*+@,)*.(,D/+A,DD*)+ (/+ (6+ M**A(63+R()4+ )4*
B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+HI(D-(63+,6-+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,F+?4*+.*,.+*D*C,)(56+5P+)4*+*Q)*6/(56+(/+PDI/4+R()4+)4*+.*,.+R,DD
5P+)4*+*Q(/)(63+)R5+/)5.*E+A.5e*B)(56+,6-+)4*E+R(DD+H*+B56/5D(-,)*-+(6)5+,+/(63D*+B54*.*6)+*D*C,)(56+R()4+D,.3*
3D,c*-+-55./+A.5C(-(63+,BB*//+)5+)4*+3,.-*6F+?4(/+(/+,6+,BB*A),HD*+).*,)@*6)F

(&2*'="*#&*
?4*+-5.@*.+(/+/*)+IA+P.5@+)4*+*,C*/+HE+]$$@@8+(/+/*)+-5R6+P.5@+)4*+.(-3*+HE+<$$@@+,6-+(/+A.5A5.)(56*-+/5
)4,)+()+(/+65+R(-*.+)4,6+"#%.-/+)4*+R(-)4+5P+)4*+*Q(/)(63+.55PF+?4*+P*6*/).,)(56+B56/(/)/+5P+A,(6)*-+)(@H*.+/,/4
P.,@*/+R4(D/)+)4*+.55P+@,)*.(,D/+,.*+-*/B.(H*-+,/+/D,)*F+?4(/+P5.@+,6-+,*/)4*)(B+,BB5.-+R()4+)4*+.*bI(.*@*6)/
(6+)4*+JI**6/+L,.M+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+>*/(36+UI(-*+/5+,.*+,BB*A),HD*F

(""W1$4Y%:ZW*"3%'V""*
S+/(63D*+.55PD(34)+(/+A.5A5/*-+56+)4*+P.56)+,6-+.*,.+*D*C,)(56F+?4*E+,.*+256/*.C,)(56+/)ED*+.55PD(34)/+,6-+)4*(.
/(c*+,6-+/()(63+,BB5.-+R()4+)4*+JI**6/+L,.M+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+>*/(36+UI(-,6B*F+S+B56-()(56+R(DD+H*+AD,B*-
56+)4*+-*B(/(56+65)(B*+)5+*6/I.*+.55PD(34)/+,.*+256/*.C,)(56+')ED*F+Y6+)*.@/+5P+)4*+P.56)+-55.+)4*+B45/*6+)EA*
(/+,BB*A),HD*F

O2:&#&3%
S/+W*@H*./+@,E+H*+,R,.*8+)4*.*+(/+BI..*6)DE+65+,-5A)*-8+5.+*@*.3(638+A5D(BE+5.+3I(-,6B*+)4,)+-(/B5I.,3*/
)4*+-*C*D5A@*6)+5P+H,/*@*6)/8+,/+,+@,))*.+5P+A.(6B(A,DF++'IB4+-*C*D5A@*6)/+@I/)8+)4*.*P5.*8+H*+,//*//*-
56+)4*(.+(6-(C(-I,D+@*.()/8+,6-+)4*(.+*PP*B)+56+)4*+B4,.,B)*.+,6-+,AA*,.,6B*+5P+)4*+B56/*.C,)(56+,.*,+6**-/+)5
H*+B56/(-*.*-+,/+)4*+@,(6+(//I*F+

?4*+A.5A5/,D+(/+)5+B.*,)*+,+H,/*@*6)+D*C*D+R()4+,+P.56)+D(34)+R*DD+,6-+.*,.+D(34)+R*DDF+?4*+H,/*@*6)+P5DD5R/+)4*
P5.@+5P+)4*+*Q(/)(63+HI(D-(63+,6-+,--()(56,DDE+)4*+*6C*D5A*+5P+)4*++A.5A5/*-+/(-*+(6P(DD+*Q)*6/(56F+?4*+A.5A5/*-
I/*+5P+)4*+/A,B*+,/+/45R6+56+)4*+/IH@())*-+AD,6/+,.*+,/+P5DD5R/i+"+Q+H*-.55@/8+@*-(,+.55@8+H,)4.55@+,6-
/*.C(B*/+.55@F

?4*+)R5+H*-.55@/+,.*+A5/()(56*-+,)+*()4*.+*6-+5P+)4*+H,/*@*6)+*Q)*6/(56+/5+,.*+/*.C*-+HE+)4*+P.56)+,6-+.*,.
D(34)+ R*DD/+ .*/A*B)(C*DEF+ ?4*+ @*-(,+ .55@+ -5*/+ 65)+ H*6*P()+ P.5@+ ,+ /5I.B*+ 5P+ 6,)I.,D+ D(34)8+ ,D)45I34+ ()+ (/
I6-*./)55-+ P.5@+ )4*+AD,6/+ )4,)+ ()+ (/+,6+,6B(DD,.E+/A,B*+R4(B4+ (/+65)+ (6)*6-*-+ )5+ PI6B)(56+,/+ )4*+@,(6+ D(C(63
/A,B*+R4(B4+(/+56+3.5I6-+PD55.F

S/+ ,+ -5@*/)(B+ *Q)*6/(56+ )4,)+ A.5C(-*/+ ,--()(56,D+ ,6B(DD,.E+ /A,B*+ P5.+ )4*+ -R*DD(63+ 45I/*8+ )4*+ A.(6B(AD*+ (/
,BB*A),HD*F+Y6+)*.@/+5P+)4*+/B,D*+5P+)4*+*Q)*6/(568+()+P5DD5R/+)4*+*6C*D5A*+5P+)4*+*Q(/)(63+HI(D-(63+,6-+,D/5+(/
/()*-+I6-*.6*,)4+)4*+A.5A5/*-+(6P(DD+*Q)*6/(56F+?4(/+(/+65)+B56/(-*.*-+*QB*//(C*+,/+,+-5@*/)(B+*Q)*6/(56F

Y@A,B)+56+B4,.,B)*.+5P+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,
W*@H*./+ R(DD+ H*+ ,R,.*+ 5P+ )4*+ /*6/()(C()E+ R()4+ R4(B4+ XPP(B*./+ ).*,)+ H,/*@*6)+ *Q)*6/(56/+ (6+ )*.@/+ 5P+ )4*
*@A4,/(/+AD,B*-+56+@*,/I.*/+ )5+@()(3,)*+ )4*+ (@A,B)+56+ )4*+*/),HD(/4*-+/).**)+B4,.,B)*.F+ Y6+AI./I()+5P+ )4(/
.*C(/*-+AD,6/+R*.*+.*bI*/)*-+)5+/45R+45R+)4(/+R5ID-+H*+,B4(*C*-F

?4*+ .*C(/*-+AD,6/+/45R+ )4*+ P.56)+ D(34)+R*DD+A.5e*B)(63+!@+ P.5@+ )4*+ P.56)+5P+ )4*+H,E+R(6-5R+R()4(6+ )4*+ P.56)
3,.-*6+R4(B4+(/+,+@,Q(@I@+5P+%@+-**A+,6-+"F"]@+,)+)4*+H,E+R(6-5RF+?4*+*Q(/)(63+)(@H*.+/,/4+3.5I6-+PD55.
P.56)+ H,E+R(6-5R+ (/+ .*AD(B,)*-+ (6+ )4*+ A.5A5/*-+ H,/*@*6)+R(6-5R8+R4(B4+R5ID-+ (6+ ,6E+ *C*6)+ 65)+ H*+ *,/(DE
C(*R*-+ P.5@+ /).**)+ D*C*DF+ S+R,DM,HD*+ 3.(DD*+ 5C*.+ )4*+ P.56)+ D(34)+R*DD+ (/+ A.5A5/*-8+ /*)+ PDI/4+R()4+ )4*+ *Q(/)(63
3.5I6-+ D*C*D+,6-+P5DD5R(63+)4*+A.5P(D*+5P+ )4*+H,E+R(6-5R+,)+)4*+P.56)F+XPP(B*./+P(6-+)4,)+ )4*/*+,/A*B)/+,.*+ (6
M**A(63+R()4+)4*+A.5A*.)E+,6-+,D/5+,/+/*)+5I)+H*D5R8+)4*+P.56)+3,.-*6+*PP*B)(C*DE+/B.**6/+()+P.5@+)4*+/).**)F

?4*+P.56)+3,.-*68+R4(B4+BI..*6)DE+-5*/+65)+B5@ADE+R()4+)4*+JI**6/+L,.M+>*/(36+UI(-*+5.+L5D(BE+V=&+HE
6,)I.*+5P+)4*+*Q)*6)+5P+4,.-+/I.P,B(638+R5ID-+H*+*64,6B*-+HE+6*R+/5P)+D,6-/B,A(63+/B4*@*+,6-+R(DD+,D/5
@()(3,)*+)4*+C(/I,D+(@A,B)+5P+)4*+D(34)+R*DD+,6-+3.(DD*F+?4*+D,6-/B,A(63+/B4*@*+/*)/+5I)+,AA.5A.(,)*+/A*B(*/
,6-+4*(34)+/A*B(P(B,)(56/+R4(B4+,(@+)5+/B.**6+)4*+3.(DD*+P.5@+)4*+/).**)+,6-+(6+)4*+B56)*Q)+5P+)4*+B56/).,(6*-
P.56)+3,.-*6+/A,B*8+/,)(/PE+)4*+25I6B(D/+,/A(.,)(56+P5.+]$j+/5P)+D,6-/B,A(63F

Y)+(/+,BM65RD*-3*-+)4,)+)4*+P.56)+3,.-*6+4*.*+(/+65)+D,.3*8+HI)+()+(/+/(@(D,.+)5+5)4*.+A.5A*.)(*/+R4*.*+P.56)
D(34)R*DD/+4,C*+H**6+,AA.5C*-+H5)4+HE+XPP(B*./+,6-+,)+LD,66(63+25@@())**+Z*30+/(@(D,.+/B4*@*/+,)+:5F%"
,6-+!1+2.*(34)56+75,-[F+Y)+(/+(6*C(),HD*+3(C*6+)4*+.*/).(B)*-+/()*+4*.*+)4,)+)4*+A5)*6)(,D+(@A,B)+5P+,+D(34)R*DD
R(DD8+.*D,)(C*DE+/A*,M(638+(6B.*,/*+,/+B5@A,.*-+)5+,+D,.3*.+AD5)8+HI)+,/+*QAD,(6*-+,H5C*8+()+(/+B56/(-*.*-+)4,)8
56+H,D,6B*8+,+.,63*+5P+@*,/I.*/+4,C*+H**6+A.5A5/*-+)4,)+/IBB*//PIDDE+@()(3,)*+,6E+C(/I,D+(@A,B)F

?4*+D(34)+R*DD+A.5e*B)/+!@+P.5@+)4*+.*,.+*D*C,)(56+5P+)4*+A.5A5/*-+*Q)*6/(56+,6-+(/+4,.-+IA+,3,(6/)+)4*
H5I6-,.E+5P+6I@H*.+""+2.*(34)56+SC*6I*F+Y)+(/+PDI/4+R()4+)4*+3.5I6-+D*C*D+/5+(/+65)+C(/(HD*+P.5@+)4*

Page 41



6*(34H5I./+/(-*+^+4*6B*+()+(/+5P+65+B56B*.6+R()4+.*3,.-+)5+(@A,B)+56+6*(34H5I.(63+,@*6()EF+SD/5+)4*+@,)*.(,D
).*,)@*6)+,.*+(6+M**A(63+R()4+)4*+A.5A*.)EF

Y@A,B)+)5R,.-+6*(34H5I.(63+,@*6()E
?4*+H,/*@*6)+D*C*D+R5ID-+65)+B.*,)*+,+6*R+-R*DD(638+,6E+65(/*+(@A,B)+56B*+B5@AD*)*+R5ID-+H*+@(6(@,D+,6-
,)+ ,+ -5@*/)(B+ /B,D*F+SD/5+ HE+ C(.)I*+ 5P+ ()/+ /IH)*..,6*,6+ B4,.,B)*.8+ ()+ -5*/+ 65)+ 4,C*+ ,6+ 5C*.H*,.(63+ (@A,B)
)5R,.-+)4*+C(/(HD*+.*/(-*6)(,D+/B,D*+5P+)4*+HI(D-(63+()/*DP+65.+)5R,.-+)4*+6*(34H5I.(63+A.5A*.)(*/8+,/+B5ID-+H*
,//5B(,)*-+R()4+,6+*Q)*6/(56+5P+)4*+/,@*+-*A)4+R*.*+()+)5+H*+A.5C(-*-+,)+3.5I6-+PD55.+D*C*DF

!"3K1[:$"3>
?4*+/(-*+(6P(DD+*Q)*6/(56+,6-+.*,.+-5.@*.+,.*+B56/(-*.*-+)5+H*+,BB*A),HD*+56+3.5I6-/+.*D,)(63+)5+-*/(36+,6-
(@A,B)+)5R,.-+6*(34H5.(63+,@*6()EF+Y6+)*.@/+5P+)4*+H,/*@*6)8+,D)45I34+)4*+B56B*.6/+5P+.*/(-*6)/+,/+P,.+,/
)4*+B56/).IB)(56+5P+H,/*@*6)/+,.*+I6-*./)55-+,/+*QAD,(6*-+,H5C*8+)4*/*+B56B*.6/+P,DD+5I)/(-*+)4*+.*@()+5P
AD,66(63+B56).5DF+?4*.*P5.*8+R4*.*+H,/*@*6)/+,.*+65)+5.(3(6,D+P*,)I.*/8+)4*+,AA.5A.(,)*+)*/)+(/+R4*)4*.+)4*E
B,6+H*+-*/(36*-+/5+,/+)5+65)+5C*.+-5@(6,)*+)4*+P.56)+3,.-*6+5.+HI(D-(63+,6-+,DD5R+5)4*.+*64,6B*@*6)/+)5+)4*
A.5A*.)E+P.56),3*+R4*.*+)4*/*+,.*+,AA.5A.(,)*F+Y6+AI./I()+5P+)4(/8+()+(/+B56/(-*.*-+)4,)+)4*+A.5A5/,D+@,(6),(6/
)4*+(6)*3.()E+5P+)4*+P.56),3*+,6-+/5+(/+B56/(-*.*-+)5+B5@ADE+R()4+A5D(B(*/+V="+,6-+V=&+5P+)4*+_>L8+'LU]+,6-
)4*+JI**6/+L,.M+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+>*/(36+UI(-*F+SAA.5C,D+(/+)4*.*P5.*+.*B5@@*6-*-F

(;!C66;,=@D+C,> U.,6)+256/*6)

(;@EC,'LC('B(@,D+,B

Z![ ?4*+A.5A5/*-+-*C*D5A@*6)+(/+(6+3*6*.,D+,BB5.-,6B*+R()4+A5D(B(*/+B56),(6*-+(6+)4*0^

V.*6)+_6(),.E+>*C*D5A@*6)+LD,6+"$$1

25I6B(DK/+'IAAD*@*6),.E+LD,66(63+UI(-,6B*+]+^+SD)*.(63+,6-+=Q)*6-(63+k5I.+a5@*
JI**6/+L,.M+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,+>*/(36+UI(-*

7*D*C,6)+A5D(B(*/+(6+)4*+S-5A)*-+_6(),.E+>*C*D5A@*6)+LD,6+,.*+)45/*+(6+)4*+P5DD5R(63
B4,A)*./0^

VI(D)+=6C(.56@*6)0+(6+)*.@/+5P+)4*+A.5)*B)(56+,6-+*64,6B*@*6)+5P+)4*+*6C(.56@*6)
a5I/(630+(6+)*.@/+5P+A.5)*B)(63+.*/(-*6)(,D+,@*6()(*/+,6-+3I(-(63+6*R+-*C*D5A@*6)

!C,=+D+C,EZ(;@EC,E>

Z![ ?4*+-*C*D5A@*6)+)5+R4(B4+)4(/+A*.@(//(56+.*D,)*/+@I/)+H*+H*3I6+65)+D,)*.+)4,6+)4*+*QA(.,)(56
5P+)4.**+E*,./+H*3(66(63+56+)4*+-,)*+5P+)4(/+A*.@(//(56F

7*,/560++?5+B56P5.@+R()4+)4*+.*bI(.*@*6)/+5P+'*B)(56+h!+5P+)4*+?5R6+,6-+25I6).E+LD,66(63
SB)+!hh$F

Z"[ ?4*+-*C*D5A@*6)+4*.*HE+A*.@())*-+/4,DD+H*+B,..(*-+5I)+(6+,BB5.-,6B*+R()4+)4*+P5DD5R(63
,AA.5C*-+-.,R(63Z/[+,6-#5.+-5BI@*6)Z/[0

""%"+^+!8+""%%8+""%1+.*C+!8+""%]F

7*,/560++G5.+)4*+,C5(-,6B*+5P+-5IH)+,6-+(6+)4*+(6)*.*/)/+5P+A.5A*.+AD,66(63F

Z%[ LD,66(63+A*.@(//(56+(/+3.,6)*-+P5.+I/*+5P+)4*+H,/*@*6) (6B(-*6),D+)5+)4*+*Q(/)(63
-R*DD(6345I/*+,/+,/+/45R6+56+AD,6+65+""%1F+?4*+H,/*@*6)+R(DD+65)+H*+I/*-+,/ , /*DP
B56),(6*-+.*/(-*6)(,D+I6()F+S6E+B4,63*8+5.+(6)*6/(P(B,)(56+5P+I/*+5P+)4*+H,/*@*6)+R(DD+.*bI(.*
AD,66(63+A*.@(//(56F

7*,/560 ?5+*6/I.*+)4*+H,/*@*6)+(/+65)+/IHe*B)+)5+I6.*3ID,)*-+(6)*6/(P(B,)(56+5.+B4,63*+)4,)
B5ID-+.*/ID)+(6+,6+I6/,)(/P,B)5.E+D*C*D+5P+,@*6()E+P5.+PI)I.*+5BBIA(*./F

Page 42



!"#$%&'()*%+,&- !"#.&/0
.&12)3456784 9+,& 7 "1 8

Z1[ ?4*+D,6-/B,A*+R5.M/+,6-+AD,6)(63+/45R6+56+)4*+,AA.5C*-+AD,6/+/4,DD+H*+B,..(*-+5I)0^

Z,[+A.(5.+)5+)4*+5BBIA,)(56+5P+)4*+H,/*@*6)+*Q)*6/(56i

S6E+AD,6)(63+)4,)+(/+A,.)+5P+)4*+,AA.5C*-+/B4*@*+)4,)+R()4(6+,+A*.(5-+5P 1:;& E*,./+,P)*.+AD,6)(63
(/+ .*@5C*-8+-(*/+5.+H*B5@*/+/*.(5I/DE+-,@,3*-+5.+-(/*,/*-8+/4,DD+ H*+ .*AD,B*-+ (6+ )4*+6*Q)
AD,6)(63+/*,/56+,6-+,DD+AD,6)(63+/4,DD+H*+.*AD,B*-+R()4+5)4*./+5P+,+/(@(D,.+/(c*+,6-+/A*B(*/+,6-
(6+ )4*+ /,@*+ A5/()(568+ I6D*//+ )4*+ 95B,D+ LD,66(63+ SI)45.()E+ P(./)+ 3(C*/+ R.())*6+ B56/*6)+ )5+ ,6E
C,.(,)(56F

7*,/560++?5+*6/I.*+,+/,)(/P,B)5.E+,AA*,.,6B*+,6-+/*))(63+P5.+)4*+-*C*D5A@*6)+,6-+)5+*6/I.*
)4,)+)4*+A.5A5/*-+-*C*D5A@*6)+*64,6B*/+)4*+C(/I,D+,@*6()E+5P+)4*+,.*,F

Z][ ?4*+.55PD(34)/+56+)4*+,AA.5C*-+/(63D*+/)5.*E+(6P(DD+*Q)*6/(56+R()4(6+%@+5P+)4*+.*,.+*D*C,)(56+R,DD
5P+)4*+@,(6+-R*DD(6345I/*+/4,DD+H*+5H/BI.*+3D,c*-+,6-+656+5A*6(63F

7*,/560+?5+/,P*3I,.-+6*(34H5I.(63+,@*6()E+P.5@+D(34)+,6-+65(/*+A5DDI)(56F

Z<[ :5+-*C*D5A@*6)+/4,DD+H*+B,..(*-+5I)+I6)(D+R4,)+)(@*+,/+)4*+A*./56+B,..E(63+5I)+)4*+R5.M/+(/+,
@*@H*.+5P+)4*+256/(-*.,)*+256/).IB)5./+'B4*@*+,6-+()/+B5-*+5P+A.,B)(B*8+,6-+)4*+-*),(D/+5P
)4*+@*@H*./4(A+,6-+B56),B)+-*),(D/+,.*+BD*,.DE+-(/AD,E*-+56+)4*+/()*+/5+)4,)+)4*E+B,6+H*+*,/(DE
.*,-+HE+@*@H*./+5P+)4*+AIHD(BF

7*,/560+?5+D(@()+)4*+(@A,B)+5P+B56/).IB)(56+IA56+)4*+D*C*D/+5P+,@*6()E+)4,)+6*(34H5I.(63
5BBIA(*./+/45ID-+.*,/56,HDE+*QA*B)+)5+*6e5EF

Z&[ ?4*+A.5A5/*-+.55P^D(34)/+/4,DD+H*+lB56/*.C,)(56^/)ED*l+,6-+/4,DD+H*+-*),(D*-+/5+,/+)5+H*+PDI/4
R()4+)4*+.55P+B5C*.(63F

7*,/560++Y6+)4*+(6)*.*/)+5P+C(/I,D+,@*6()E+,6-+B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+JI**6/+L,.M+256/*.C,)(56
S.*,F

Z\[ >*),(D/+5P+@,)*.(,D/+P5.+*Q)*.6,D+R5.M+,/+/A*B(P(*-+H*D5R8+(6BDI-(63+/,@AD*/8+/4,DD+H*+/IH@())*-
)5+,6-+,AA.5C*-+(6+R.()(63+HE+)4*+95B,D+LD,66(63+SI)45.()E+H*P5.*+,6E+R5.M+(/+B5@@*6B*-8
(6BDI-(630

Z,[+>*),(D/+5P+)4*+A.5A5/*-+3.(DD*F

?4*+-*C*D5A@*6)+@I/)+H*+B,..(*-+5I)+(6+,BB5.-,6B*+R()4+)4*+,AA.5C*-+-*),(D/F

7*,/560+?5+/,P*3I,.-+)4*+B4,.,B)*.+5P+)4*+256/*.C,)(56+S.*,F

+,LC(6@D+<;E>

Z![ ;45*C*.+B,..(*/+5I)+)4*+R5.M/+(/+.*@(6-*-+5P+)4*(.+5HD(3,)(56+)5+B5@ADE+(6+PIDD+R()4+/<$+5P+)4*
256).5D+5P+L5DDI)(56+SB)+!h&1+,6-+)4*+V.()(/4+'),6-,.-+25-*/+5P+A.,B)(B*+]""\0!hh&+L,.)/+!+)5
1+R4(B4+/),)*/+)4,)+256/).IB)(56#.*PI.H(/4@*6)+,6-+-*@5D()(56+R5.M/+,6-+,6B(DD,.E+5A*.,)(56/
R4(B4+,.*+,I-(HD*+,)+)4*+/()*+H5I6-,.E+/4,DD+H*+B,..(*-+5I)+56DE+H*)R**6+)4*+45I./+5P0+W56-,E
)5+G.(-,E++$\0$$+)5+!\0$$8+',)I.-,E+$\0$$+)5+!%0$$+,6-+,)+65+)(@*+56+'I6-,E/+5.+V,6M
a5D(-,E/F

Z"[ ?4*+A.5C(/(56/+5P+?4*+L,.)E+;,DD+*)BF+SB)+!hh<+@,E+H*+,AAD(B,HD*+,6-+.*D,)*/+)5+R5.M+56+,6
*Q(/)(63+R,DD+/4,.*-+R()4+,65)4*.+A.5A*.)Ei+HI(D-(63+56+)4*+H5I6-,.E+R()4+,+6*(34H5I.(63
A.5A*.)Ei+5.+*QB,C,)(63+6*,.+,+6*(34H5I.(63+HI(D-(63F+S6+*QAD,6,)5.E+H55MD*)+/*))(63+5I)+E5I.
5HD(3,)(56/+B,6+H*+5H),(6*-+P.5@+)4*+25@@I6()(*/+,6-+95B,D+U5C*.6@*6)+R*H/()*
RRRFB5@@I6()(*/F35CFIM

S6E+A*./56+R(/4(63+)5+(6/A*B)+)4*+,H5C*+A,A*./+/45ID-+B56),B)+',@I*D+U*./)*(68+?4*+LD,66(63+'*.C(B*8
V.*6)+a5I/*8+%1h+a(34+75,-8+;*@HD*E8+W(--D*/*Q8+aSh+<Vm8+?*DF+:5F+$"$+\h%& ]%<\

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM 5/01 

 

Deed of Variation to the Section 106 legal agreement for full planning 
permission reference 00/2832 relating to affordable housing provision at Regal 
Court, Malvern Road, London, NW6 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Planning Committee grant approval of the proposed Heads of Terms for the 
deed of variation and delegate authority to the Head of Area Planning to agree the 
exact terms thereof on advice of the Director of Legal and Procurement. 

SITE DESCRIPTION  

This is the property known as Regal Court, a terrace of three-storey properties to the 
south-west of the junction of Malvern Road and Carlton Vale in the South Kilburn 
Regeneration Area. It currently provides 27 self-contained flats. 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
When planning permission was granted for the 27 units in 2001 it was subject to a 
legal agreement controlling, amongst other things, the tenure of the flats. The 
owners of the building have now undertaken a review of the accommodation and 
following this review they have now approached the Council with a view to 
renegotiate the Heads of Terms of the 2001 agreement, specifically as far as it 
relates to affordable housing provisions.  
 
By way of background, when the 27 flats were granted consent the legal agreement 
required that 21 units be leased to a “social housing body” for a term of 10 years and 
that the remaining 6 flats be sold to a similar body for a terms of 999 years or on a 
freehold basis. These 6 units consist of 1 one and 5 two bed flats and for clarity, they 
are pepper-potted throughout the building.  
 
In accordance with the legal agreement, all 27 flats were let to Shepherds Bush 
Housing Association for a period of 10 years. All tenancies are assured short-hold 
and the lease is due to expire in April 2013.  
 
The owners of the building have now considered the obligation to retain the 6 units 
as affordable housing in perpetuity and have discussed options with Officers. 
Members will be aware that a reasonable proportion of affordable housing is sought 
in all schemes, but in this case it is considered that the legal agreement should be 
varied so as to no longer require these 6 units to be retained as affordable housing 
on the basis that a financial contribution to go towards affordable housing in South 
Kilburn is made in lieu. 

Page 47



 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Brent Unitary Development Plan 2004 
 
STR11 Which seeks to protect and enhance the quality and character of the 

Boroughs built and natural environment and resist proposals that have a 
harmful impact on the environment and amenities. 

STR14 New development will be expected to make a positive contribution to 
improving the quality of the urban environment. 

STR19 New housing developments should provide adequate amenity, reduce need 
for car travel and improvement to public infrastructure. 

BE2 Townscape: Local Context & Character 
BE6 Public Realm: Landscape Design 
BE7 Public Realm: Streetscape 
BE9 Architectural Quality 
H9 Dwelling Mix 
H12 Residential Quality – Layout Considerations 
TRN23 Parking Standards – Residential Development 
PS14 Parking Standards 
 
Core Strategy  
CP 9 – South Kilburn Growth Area  
CP21 - Balanced Housing Stock  
 
Mayor's London Plan 2011 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 17: Design Guide for New 
Development 
Supplementary Planning Document: S106 Planning Obligations 
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING ASSESSMENT 
 
As explained above, the legal agreement only requires the provision of 6 units 
pepper-potted through the scheme, which is now not considered to be the favoured 
option for social housing providers, certainly in management terms. In addition, the 
units are not built to Scheme Development Standards and are also relatively small, 
with internal floor areas of approx 38 square metres for the one bed and 53 square 
metres for the 2 bed units. The six units were offered to Shepherds Bush HA when 
the short life lease ends, but they are not prepared to pursue their interest and no 
other RSL has come forward.  

As a result, Officers have concluded that rather than insist on the retention of the 
scattered sub-standard units within the building it would be appropriate to obtain a 

Page 48



financial sum that could be used to provide good quality units elsewhere in South 
Kilburn. Officers have agreed on a figure of £480,000 that the owners would pay now 
(as explained above the lease will continue to April 2013). The sum of £480,000 is a 
share of the extra profit that the developer may gain after build costs and other 
overheads are taken into consideration and has been an approach used elsewhere 
in the Borough. 

It is considered that the approach, and the total sum, is reasonable. One way of 
using the £480,000 would be to use the payment as ‘grant’ (at £40k a property) 
which could help to buy the Council at least 12 new well-sized affordable rent units 
or 5 brand new units (at £95k a property), whilst the existing affordable short-term 
occupants would staying with Shepherds Bush HA until April 2013. The HCA gives a 
grant of approx. £30k per unit and this allows an RSL, if they charge affordable rents, 
to build an affordable unit. The RSL pays for most of the build through capitalising 
the rent and taking a loan against it and there is nothing to stop Brent doing the 
same with any RSL, reflecting what the HCA does. Officers are of the view that if we 
put in our payment, this should incentivise an RSL to build and charge at target 
rents, with a grant of £95k covering a large proportion of the capital costs. 

The variation of the S106 only relates to this particular point and there are no further 
changes to the scheme proposed at this time. However, for clarity, the original 
Committee report to Members in 2001 is repeated below: 

 
ORIGINAL PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT 00/2831 

 

“PROPOSED 

In March 2000, an application (99/2224) was approved which proposed the 
demolition of the existing rear additions to the building, the erection of smaller 
projections to replace these larger extensions and the conversion of the building into 
a total of 21 flats (19 two-bed, and 2 one-bed units).  Each of the seven identifiable 
buildings, in visual terms, would provide flats on three floors.  This application 
involved the removal of the existing ground floor shopfronts, and their replacement 
with detailing to reflect that currently evident on the upper-floor front elevation of the 
building. 
 
A subsequent application (00/1757) proposed the erection of an additional storey on 
the building, in the form of a mansard roof, and the creation of six extra residential 
units in this floorspace.  This application intended that the whole of the building be 
taken by a Housing Association.  For Members' information, the original consent for 
21 units on this site granted in March 2000, did not have any element of affordable 
housing. 
 

Page 49



This current proposal takes elements of both previous schemes, in that it seeks 
consent for the physical enlargement of the building in the form of an additional 
storey, along with the use of the extended building for a total of 27 residential units, 
with 6 of the units providing permanent affordable housing.  The number of 
affordable units has effectively arisen from the additional flats, over and above the 
original consent for 21 units.  The applicant has been in discussions with the 
Council's Housing Service during the lifetime of this application and it is now 
intended that all 27 of the units will be occupied as affordable housing for a period 
not less than 10 years from the date of any permission being implemented.  At the 
end of this period, it is intended that the 6 units will continue as affordable housing, 
whilst the remainder will revert to general housing. 
 
The Housing Service have expressed their full support for the application and the 
Shepherds Bush Housing Association have been chosen to work with them in 
developing this scheme. 
 

HISTORY 

99/2224 - Conversion of building into 21 self-contained flats. Granted 15/03/00. 
 
For Members' information, at the time of this decision, it was considered that there 
was no requirement for any affordable housing provision on the site, on the basis 
that as the development effectively amounted to the conversion of each of the 7 
individual units, it would be difficult to insist on any such provision. 
 
00/1757 - Erection of an additional floor above existing premises containing 6 self-
contained flats.  Permission granted subject to a Section 106 legal agreement at 
Planning Sub-Committee of 21/11/00.  Agreement was not signed and consent 
consequently not issued. 
 

00/2831 - Demolition of rear additions and erection of replacement extensions and 
new mansard roof; conversion of existing building to provide 21 flats (19 two-bed and 
2 one-bed) for general housing and provision of 6 flats (1 one-bed and 5 two-bed) in 
new additional storey for occupation by Housing Association. Granted at Planning 
Committee 12 June 2001. Planning permission issued 6 September 2001. 
 
REMARKS 
Members may be aware of the recent planning history of the site.  An unauthorised 
hostel use (E97/0819) was considered at a Public Inquiry and the appeal dismissed.  
The hostel use, which was considered to cause significant problems for the locality, 
has now ceased.  Subsequently, two proposals to create 21 self-contained general 
market, and 27 affordable flats on the site, the first has full planning consent and the 
later agreed in principle, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement, was considered 

Page 50



at the Planning Sub-Committee in November 2000.  The planning history of the site 
is a material consideration in the assessment of this current scheme. 
  
The background to this application is somewhat complicated, in that it takes 
elements of early decisions in principle, but now has Brent Housing Service 
involvement, who have been negotiating with the applicant to secure nomination 
rights to the Council.  This application is now subject to a legal agreement in order to 
control the use to which the building will be put. 
 
ERECTION OF ADDITIONAL STOREY 
It has been accepted in application 00/1757 that the provision of an additional storey 
on this building and the creation of an additional 6 dwelling units in this additional 
floorspace, is acceptable, subject to a Section 106 agreement to affordable use.  The 
proposed alterations are acceptable in terms of their impact on the building and the 
established streetscene.  There was no objection in the past, in design terms, to the 
removal of the rear projections and their replacement with smaller extensions.  In the 
circumstances, the physical changes to the building are considered to be acceptable. 
  
HIGHWAY ISSUES 
In terms of the parking requirement of the proposed development, it remains 
important to consider the proposal in comparison to the previously approved 
residential developments, as well as the original use of the building.  Previously, it 
was considered that the proposed 21 residential units did not require any additional 
off-street parking provision, with the standards for the converted and the pre-
converted buildings both requiring a total of 10.5 spaces.   
 
In this particular case, whilst the circumstances are somewhat unusual, it is now 
proposed that the building be used for a total of 27 affordable units for the next 10 
years.  This would be controlled by means of a legal agreement and the Council's 
standards allow for the relaxing of parking requirements where the accommodation 
is for affordable purposes.  Consequently, the requirements for these 27 affordable 
units are actually less than for the 21 units previously approved.  Whilst no off-street 
parking is possible here, there is no additional requirement for the proposed works, 
certainly over the next 10 years. 
 
As a result, what highway concerns there are, would only come into play when, 
potentially, 21 of these 27 residential units become market housing at the end of the 
period.  It is obviously a difficult task to envisage what the planning framework will be 
so far in the future, but were standards to remain unchanged from those used 
currently, the proposed scheme would require a total of 12.0 parking spaces.  This 
would represent an increase of 1.5 spaces over and above the current requirement, 
and has to be a material consideration in the assessment of this proposal.   
 

Page 51



The discussion is inevitably balanced but the Director of Transportation does not 
object to the planning application, on the grounds that the proposed parking shortfall 
would be minimal and that, in any event, it is unlikely that the planning policy 
framework will require increased parking provision in 10 years' time when the issue 
of potential parking increase would next be considered.  The site has very good 
accessibility to public transport services, and whilst there is no controlled parking 
zone (CPZ) in force here at present, it is likely that the area will be the subject of a 
CPZ (accepting that it would need to be the subject of the necessary consultation) in 
the next batch of designations, which are likely to be at the end of this year. 
 
As previously, the view is taken that a financial contribution should be paid here 
towards on-street parking controls, or non-car modes of transport, in the locality.  
This contribution would only need to relate to the additional 6 units over and above 
the original 21 units approved by 99/2224. 
 
STANDARD OF ACCOMMODATION 
The proposed building has not changed since the most recent application was 
considered by Committee in November 2000.  It is evident, therefore, that this 
application continues to propose a somewhat intensive use of the site, with a total of 
27 units arranged over a total of four floors.  However, the proposed works comply 
fully with the internal space and stacking standards set out in SPG17 and are, 
therefore, acceptable.  Those flats at ground floor level will be able to benefit from 
small patio areas to the rear, whilst there are opportunities to create some balcony 
areas at first-floor level on the roof of these ground-floor additions, as well as 
balconies at upper floors.  As a result, future residents will be able to benefit from 
such facilities on all levels, whilst measures have been incorporated into the scheme 
in order to ensure no significant loss of amenity (via overlooking) between the 
different units within the development. 
 
CONCLUSIONS 
It is considered that the scheme has a number of benefits, including the provision of 
affordable homes and bringing this building back into an acceptable use.  The 
Council's Housing Service have expressed significant support for the proposal and 
have negotiated with the applicants in order to generate the current somewhat 
unusual arrangements.  In addition, the proposal provides for an element of amenity 
space for occupiers of the new flats, either by courtyard gardens, patios on the roof 
of extensions, or balconies. 
The application effectively defers the consideration of the parking impact of the 
proposal until a later date.  Any possible shortfall (which would only be 1.5 parking 
spaces, using 2001 standards) would need to be considered in terms of the future 
CPZ, as well as planning policy, which is unlikely to require increased parking 
provision. 
 

Page 52



This recommendation is subject to the signing of a satisfactory Section 106 
Agreement.  The Heads of Terms need to ensure that the scheme under 
consideration is the scheme actually implemented on site.  Consequently, there is a 
need to ensure simultaneous signature of Agreement and relevant contracts to 
ensure the development is available and effectively managed for affordable housing.  
The Council would not wish to see certain of the units being occupied whilst physical 
works remained uncompleted.” 
 
SUMMARY 

Your Officers consider that the proposed amendments to the Section 106 legal 
agreement, as far as it relates to the provision of affordable housing on the site, are 
acceptable and that the changes can be dealt with under Section 106(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended. The provision of a reasonable 
proportion of affordable housing on all sites remains the key aspiration of the 
Planning Authority, but on the basis of the assessment set out above, in terms of the 
quality of the existing accommodation and the benefits that an in lieu payment could 
provide for the wider South Kilburn area, Officers are content to consider the 
variation favourably. On this basis, it is recommended that authority be delegated to 
the Head of Area Planning to agree the exact terms of the deed of variation with the 
Director of Legal and Procurement. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

London Plan 2011 

Brent LDF Core Strategy 2010 

Brent UDP 2004 

South Kilburn SPD 2005 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Any person wishing to inspect the above papers should contact Andy Bates, 
Planning & Development, Brent House, 349 High Road, Wembley, HA9 6BZ (0208 
937 5228). 

 

 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 

 
Planning Committee 

22 May 2012 

Report from the Director of 
Regeneration & Major Projects 

   
Wards affected: All 

  

Planning and Enforcement Appeal Monitoring  

 
 

1.0 Summary 

                      1.1 This report expands on the routine monthly reporting of appeals 
submitted and decisions received where the Inspector’s decisions letters 
for those appeals that are allowed are included in full for Member’s 
information. This report is intended to provide clearer information on 
performance as well as highlighting some issues that may be raised by 
the number of appeals received and their outcomes.   

                      1.2 It is also important that appeal decisions are monitored as this can 
influence the future direction of policy and decision making, particularly in 
terms of future LDF development management policies.  Appeal 
decisions also represent an important external scrutiny of the content and 
application of Brent’s planning policies.  

           2.0 Recommendations 

                      2.1 That the Planning Committee notes the information and issues set out in 
the report and indicate any particular issues that could be examined in 
more detail in future monitoring.  

           3.0 Background 

                      3.1 Brent’s planning appeal performance has historically compared well with 
other authorities in terms of the number that are dismissed (overall 
approx 80% compared with a national figure of approx 66%).  However, 
Brent has also had a slightly higher appeal rate than other authorities 
(6+% compared to <5%) which may have been a reflection of both a 
generally lower planning approval rate in the past of some (approx 70% 
of applications submitted compared with a nation figure of approx 80%).  

Agenda Item 8

Page 55



 
 

 
 

 Previous analysis has linked this to Brent’s detailed planning guidance as 
well as the desire by owners of generally higher value properties to seek 
to maximise the scope for development.  

      3.2          The number of appeals against Enforcement Notices remains much 
higher than most authorities as a direct result of the level of activity that 
Brent undertakes.  However, the appeal outcomes have also remained 
high (80+% dismissed). 

  3.3          In previous years over 50% of all Notices are appealed and there has 
been a very direct link between the number of notices served and the 
number of appeals that this has generates.  However, more recent 
analysis may be suggesting that this causal relationship is changing with 
a lower proportion of appeals being generated.  

 Current Overview 

3.4 The number of planning appeals in Brent which are upheld by the 
Inspectorate has increased over the past year, despite Brent now 
approving a higher number of planning applications at the outset (approx 
80%). While national figures are not available yet to give a clear 
comparison with other authorities, this may suggest a number of issues; 

• The need to update Brent’s development management policies 

Brent’s UDP was adopted in 2004 and the publication of the National 
Planning Policy Framework highlights the need to urgently progress the 
updating of planning policies.  

• A trend towards Planning Inspectors being more permissive 

This appears to predate the general thrust of the NPPF and has led to 
authorities, including Brent, increasingly having to log formal concerns 
about some decisions under the Inspectorate’s Quality Assurance 
scheme. It has even led to authorities having to consider formally 
challenging some of the odder decisions. 

• The need to look at staff training and processes   

Staff are generally increasing in their experience but there have been 
changes to the handling of some types of appeals (eg Fast Track 
householder electronic appeals) which can add to other performance 
pressures within this largely demand led area of work.     

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



 
 

 
 

2011/12 Appeal Statistics 

Planning Appeals 

 Upheld % Dismissed % 
April-June 11 34 21 66 

July-Sept 14 39 22 61 

Oct-Dec 11 33 22 67 

Jan-March 12 44 15 56 

 

Enforcement  Appeals 

  Upheld % Dismissed % 
April-June 16 16 84 84 

July-Sept 13 16 66 84 

Oct-Dec 10 18 45 82 

Jan-March 2 8 23 92 

 

Planning Appeal Types by Outcome 

3.6            Brent is more successful with the more frequent types of appeals 
received eg extensions to houses or flats (approx 50% of appeals 
received and 70% dismissed), converting houses or subdividing flats 
(approx 15% rec’d/85% dismissed) and the creation of individual new 
infill houses (10% rec’d/90% dismissed).  

3.7 The next appeal type by volume are news blocks of flats (10% rec’d/60% 
dismissed), works to front gardens (10% rec’d/30% dismissed) and 
extensions to business premises (6% rec’d/80% dismissed) 

3.8 A new issue that has arisen relates to outbuildings where Brent has been 
trying to contain the problems associated with the impact and use of 
large buildings in rear gardens.  4 of the 6 appeals received we upheld 
and all 3 of the CLUD appeals we granted too.  This represents one of 
the more significant factors in the change in the overall performance on 
appeals over previous years. It also indicates both a change in 
Inspectorate decision making and the continued strong demand for very 
large structures to be built in rear gardens.  

3.9 Commercial changes of use represent less than 10% of appeals received 
but the only statistically significant figure is that all 4 appeals for changes 
of use to A3/A5 were dismissed.   

 Conclusions 

3.5 We need to continue to monitor overall trends and performance but, in 
the short term, the priority seems to be to review the approach to 
outbuildings and works to front gardens.  However, both these areas 
reflect issues which have given rise to concern for local residents and 
Councillors.  Indeed, in terms of outbuildings, there is currently a 

Page 57



 
 

 
 

Government initiative in response to growing alarm about illegal 
residential use. This situation is also reflected in the high proportion of 
Enforcement Notices and appeals which relate to this issue and in which 
we tend to be successful.   The implied policy of a soft initial approach to 
outbuildings and than a harder response to later proven misuse 
demonstrates how difficult it can be to use planning controls in a 
preventative way.   

6.0 Diversity Implications 

6.1 The use of the planning service in terms of planning applications and 
enforcement is monitored and appears to broadly reflect the Borough’s 
demographics.  

7.0 Staffing/Accommodation Implications 

7.1 There are no staffing or accommodation implications arising directly from 
this report. 

8.0 Environmental Implications 

8.1 Many of the issues discussed above have a range of potential 
environmental implications.  These would need to be further assessed in 
the production of LDF Development Management Policies. 

9.0 Background Papers 

Brent Core Strategy July 2010 
Unitary Development Plan 2004 – Saved Policies 

Contact Officers 
Any person wishing to inspect the above papers should contact; 
Stephen Weeks, Head of Area Planning, Planning & Development 020 8937 5238  
 

Andy  Donald, Director of Regeneration & Major 
Projects 

 

Page 58



 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



V:\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\PLANNING appeals RECEIVED between 2 dates.rpt

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

Received PLANNING Appeals between 1-Apr-2012 30-Apr-2012

Planning Committee: 22 May, 2012

and

Item 4/01

Application Number:

Location:

11/1668

Proposal:
Flat 2, 8 Brondesbury Road, London, NW6 6AS

Application Type FULS78Team: Southern Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission09/04/2012

The conversion of flat 2 into two self contained flats (1 x two bed and 1 x one bed) and the erection of a
 single storey rear extension

Application Number:

Location:

11/1870

Proposal:
9 COLLEGE MANSIONS, Winchester Avenue, Kilburn, London, NW6 7TY

Application Type FULS78Team: Southern Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission18/04/2012

Redevelopment of the site including demolition of the existing B1 industrial structure, change of use to 
C3 – residential and construction of a new three storey building, containing six numbers one, two and 
three bedroom apartments with communal amenity space.

Application Number:

Location:

11/2641

Proposal:
549 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 9EL

Application Type FULS78Team: Northern Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission10/04/2012

Retrospective application for the change of use of premises from retail (Use Class A1) to cafe (Use 
Class A3)

Application Number:

Location:

11/3053

Proposal:
393 North Circular Road, Stonebridge, London, NW10 0HS

Application Type FULS78Team: Northern Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission05/04/2012

Demolition of existing side extension and shed to dwellinghouse and erection of single storey rear 
extension and a new attached (side) two storey one bedroom dwellinghouse with associated external 
amenity space, bin storage area and two car parking spaces at the rear accessed off Scout Approach

Application Number:

Location:

11/3077

Proposal:
39 Pebworth Road, Harrow, HA1 3UD

Application Type FULS78Team: Western Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission17/04/2012

First floor side extension and rear extension to dwellinghouse

Application Number:

Location:

11/3360

Proposal:
49 Brook Road, London, NW2 7BN

Application Type FULS78Team: Northern Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission13/04/2012

Erection of a single and two storey side extension to dwellinghouse

Application Number:

Location:

12/0082

Proposal:
Flats A1, A2 & A3, 279 Willesden Lane, Willesden, London, NW2 5JA

Application Type FULS78Team: Southern Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission17/04/2012

Conversion of ground floor currently arranged as 3 self contained bedsits to 2 self contained flats

Agenda Item 9

Page 61



V:\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\PLANNING appeals RECEIVED between 2 dates.rpt

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

Received PLANNING Appeals between 1-Apr-2012 30-Apr-2012

Planning Committee: 22 May, 2012

and

Item 4/01

Application Number:

Location:

12/0125

Proposal:
87 & 89Kilburn High Road, London, NW6 6JE

Application Type FULS78Team: Southern Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission02/04/2012

The change of use from Retail (A1) to Adult Gaming Centre (Sui Generis)

Application Number:

Location:

12/0176

Proposal:
14D Wrottesley Road, London, NW10 5YL

Application Type FULS78Team: Southern Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission19/04/2012

Removal of existing hip to gable roof extension and rear dormer, and erection of side and rear dormer 
windows.

Application Number:

Location:

12/0267

Proposal:
Ground Floor Flat, 1A Alric Avenue, London, NW10 8RB

Application Type FULS78Team: Western Team

Appeal Received: Appeal Against: Refusal of planning permission17/04/2012

Proposed partial change of use of the ground floor from shop (Use Class A1) to a studio flat (Use Class
 C3)

Page 62



V:\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\ENFORCEMENT appeals RECEIVED between 2 dates.rpt

Planning Committee: 22 May, 2012

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

1-Apr-2012 and 30-Apr-2012Received ENFORCEMENT Appeals between

Item 4/01

Application Number:

Location:

E/08/0160

6 Brentfield Close, London, NW10 0QJ
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Western Team

Appeal Started: 24/04/2012

Without planning permission, the erection of a self-contained dwelling in the rear garden of premises.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/08/0491

231 Chamberlayne Road, London, NW10 3NX
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Southern Team

Appeal Started: 30/04/2012

The erection of a single storey extension to the rear of the premises.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/10/0651

2 Baker Road, London, NW10 8UA
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Southern Team

Appeal Started: 05/04/2012

Without planning permission, the change of use of the premises from a single family dwellinghouse to 
five self-contained flats and one non self-contained flat

("The unauthorised change of use")

The erection of a single storey extension to rear of the premises and the erection of a rear dormer 
window

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0003

91 Goldsmith Lane, London, NW9 9AR
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Northern Team

Appeal Started: 11/04/2012

Without planning permission, the installation of uPVC windows to the front of the dwellinghouse.

("The unauthorised development")

Page 63



V:\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\ENFORCEMENT appeals RECEIVED between 2 dates.rpt

Planning Committee: 22 May, 2012

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

1-Apr-2012 and 30-Apr-2012Received ENFORCEMENT Appeals between

Item 4/01

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0320

Land rear of 270-288, Neasden Lane, London
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Northern Team

Appeal Started: 23/04/2012

Without planning permission, the change of use of the premises from a car park to a mixed use as car 
park and storage yard.

("The unauthorised change of use")

The installation of two containers and a fencing to the premises.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0533

144 Bathurst Gardens, London, NW10 5HX
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Southern Team

Appeal Started: 13/04/2012

The erection of a rear dormer window roof extension and a dormer window extension on top of two 
storey rear projection, incorporating two side bricked walls with copping stones on roof.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0544

32 High Road, London, NW10 2QD
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Southern Team

Appeal Started: 26/04/2012

Without planning permission, the installation of a replacement shopfront, and the erection of a single 
storey timber-framed structure and canopy to the rear of the premises to form a seating area in 
connection with the existing restaurant.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0670

51 Chartley Avenue, London, NW2 7QY
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Northern Team

Appeal Started: 30/04/2012

Without planning permission, the erection of a part single and part two storey rear extension and the 
erection of a building in the rear garden of the premises.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0692

30 Prout Grove, London, NW10 1PT
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Northern Team

Appeal Started: 12/04/2012

Without planning permission, the change of use of the premises into two self-contained residential 
units, involving the conversion of the former garage and side extension as a self-contained flat.

("The unauthorised change of use")

Page 64



V:\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\ENFORCEMENT appeals RECEIVED between 2 dates.rpt

Planning Committee: 22 May, 2012

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

1-Apr-2012 and 30-Apr-2012Received ENFORCEMENT Appeals between

Item 4/01

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0708

12 St James Gardens, Wembley, HA0 4LJ
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Western Team

Appeal Started: 12/04/2012

Without planning permission, the erection of an L-shaped building in the rear garden of premises, the 
erection of a smaller building in the rear garden of premises and the erection of a single storey rear 
extension onto the back of an existing extension to dwellinghouse.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0725

8 Chestnut Court, Wembley, HA0 2LT
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Western Team

Appeal Started: 03/04/2012

Without planning permission, the erection of a building with attached canopy within garden area of 
premises.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0728

11 Park View, Wembley, HA9 6JY
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Western Team

Appeal Started: 16/04/2012

Without planning permission, the erection of a front porch extension and front canopy extension over 
front bay window at front of dwellinghouse.

("The unauthorised development")

Application Number:

Location:

E/11/0858

103A-E Chatsworth Road, London, NW2 4BH
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Southern Team

Appeal Started: 12/04/2012

The change of use of the premises from two self-contained flats to five self-contained flats.

("The unauthorised change of use")

Application Number:

Location:

E/12/0004

3 Briar Road, Harrow, HA3 0DP
Description:

Enforcement AppealAppeal Against: Team: Northern Team

Appeal Started: 03/04/2012

Without planning permission, the removal of a front boundary wall and the installation of a hard 
surface to the front garden of the premises.

("The unauthorised development")

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



V:\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\PLANNING appeal DECISIONS between 2 dates.rpt

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

Decisions on PLANNING Appeals between 1-Apr-2012 30-Apr-2012and

Item 4/02

Planning Committee: 22-May-2012

Application Number: Team:

Location:

11/1092 Northern Team

All Units, Oriental City, Edgware Road, Kingsbury, London, NW9

Proposal:

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Appeal Decision Date: 26/04/2012

PINSRefNo X/11/2161184

Certificate of Lawfulness for 49.9% of the existing floorspace of the retail units implemented under 
planning permission 90/1727 can be used for unrestricted purposes within Use Class A1

Application Number: Team:

Location:

11/2363 Western Team

44 Blenheim Gardens, Wembley, HA9 7NP

Proposal:

Appeal Decision: Appeal part dismissed / part allowed Appeal Decision Date: 05/04/2012

PINSRefNo D/12/2169794

Retrospective application for conversion of garage into habitable room and erection of front boundary 
walls, pillars, railings and gates to dwellinghouse.

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



V:\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\ENFORCEMENT Appeal DECISIONS between 2 dates.rpt

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

1-Apr-2012 and 30-Apr-2012

Planning Committee: 22 May, 2012

Item 4/02

Decisions on ENFORCEMENT Appeals between

Application Number: Team:

Location:

Proposal:

Flats 1-3, 64 Tanfield Avenue, London, NW2 7RT

Northern TeamE/10/0576

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Appeal Decision Date: 17/04/2012

PINSRefNo C/11/2165241

The change of use of the premises to three self-contained flats.

("The unauthorised change of use")

Application Number: Team:

Location:

Proposal:

25 Mount Pleasant, Wembley, HA0 1UA

Western TeamE/11/0463

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Appeal Decision Date: 30/04/2012

PINSRefNo C/11/2167386/2167387

Without planning permission, the erection of a building in the rear garden of the premises.

("The unauthorised development")

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



\\Bhh2nt40\arp\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\5. Selected decisions PLANNING appeals between 2 dates.rpt

Planning Committee: 22 May, 2012
1-Apr-2012 and 30-Apr-2012

PLANNING SELECTED appeal DECISIONS between  

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT                      Item 4/03

Introduction
In order to keep Members fully informed of Planning Appeal decisions, copies of Inspector's decision 
letters concerning those applications that have been allowed or partly allowed on appeal, are attached to 
the agenda.  These include the following:

Our reference:

Location:

11/2363

44 Blenheim Gardens, Wembley, HA9 7NP

Proposal:

Appeal Decision: Appeal part dismissed / part allowed Appeal Decision Date: 05/04/2012
Team: Western Team

Retrospective application for conversion of garage into habitable room and erection of front boundary 
walls, pillars, railings and gates to dwellinghouse.

Background Information

Any persons wishing to inspect  an appeal decision not set out in full on the agenda should check the 
application details on our website or contact the Technical Support Team, Planning and Development, 
Brent House, 349 High Road, Wembley, HA9 6BZ.  Telephone 020 8937 5210 or email 

Chris Walker, Assistant Director - Planning and Development

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



V:\APT's\AA_reports\Reports In Use\Appeals\SELECTED ENFORCEMENT appeal DECISIONS between 2 dates.rpt

1-Apr-2012 and 30-Apr-2012

ENFORCEMENT SELECTED appeal DECISIONS between  

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT                      
Item 4/03

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



��

�

�
�����������	�
�����	

�����������	�������
�����
�

�
�
�
�

�

����������	
	���
�����
����������
����������������


�����	���	��
	�����������

�����
�����������	�����
�����������������������������������	�	�
����� �����!����������

���	
	�������"�#����	��$%&$�

�
����������"����'�#&#%'�'&$'$&()*)+�
++�,�����	��!�����
-�.��
����/�)�*0��
�� ������������������������������
�����
�������
������� 
����!�"������	�#����$$��

�	�����������������
�	������������	���������
���
�� �������������������%!������&������#�������	����������������
��
������ 
������
������

'
��
��(
�
�	��
��(������
�� �������������
��)�������*+*,�������+�������%�������,�������������%!��
���������������

*�&

��%���������
�� ������
��
�������������������������
�
����
��
��	���	�����
���%���%����

������

������
��
����
���%
�����!������,��������,�������	������	�����
�

������������������

��� ������
��
����������%�������������������-���
���������������������
����
��
���� 
�����.��/�����
��&
�����������������
�������������

���	
	���

��� ��������������
�������������������
�����������
��
����
���%
�����!������,��������,�
������	������	�������������
���
�������
���������������������������������
����������
���������
������
�
����
��
��	���	�����
���%���%����

��������
���������������	�
��������
�����	�������������
����������������������
���������������
�,�)���
����*+*,�������+�������%������������������������%����������������
��������
����
�����
�����������
��������
��
����������%!������������

��	���

��
�

��� ��������������������������������������������
��������
��
�����������������
��
�����������������������������
�������
������������������������
����	���!������!��

���
��
�

�����������	
��������	���

*�� ��������������������
�������0����������
��������������
������������������0��0
����
�����������������	�����������
�������������������
���
������

���������	�
��1
���!�
��������
���������������(��������2���������������
����%!��
��
%
�����!������,�������
��������
�����%!�
�	�����
��������������
��!��
�����%���
�����������	���������
������������������,��������������	������������#����
��
/��������
��)����������� ����������

Page 75



#������/�����
���#""��3�3��/������+$�$4�
�

�

�

��

4�� ����%
�����!�����,��������,�������	������	��������
����	��5�����!��������!�����
��������
�����������
�����	�����&�
���������,�������
���
������
��������������������
������������
�����	�%
�����!�������������������
�������������������
����
��
�
����%���
���
������
�����!���#����������,�����%
�����!�����,��������,�������	������
	�����������
���
��������	�����

���!���
������������������(��������2�������
��������������

3�� 6
�����������
�,�-��
����������������%
�����!�����,��������,�������	������	����
�����!�����������������������������������
�������
�����������#��
����	�!,������
��������
��������
�
�����
���������������
����
�������(7������(7�$�
������
��
�����'
��
��(
�
�	��
��(�����8�����!�/�
��
������"���,��
���!� "���
������
��
�����'
����(
�
�	��
��(����� 
���������	!��������� 
�����.����
�����
������������!�"������	�2��������&��%���3��������9�
��	
�	�����������.��

+�� "������	���������
������	��������
����9�������	������������	
������������
��
��������
��	���	��	
�������������������
��	���	.�����������������
����!�
���3�
#����������:)����+�*34�;���������
�	��-���
���
���������������

��������,�-�
�����������������������%������������������ 
�����
�����%�����
�������������	�
��������
���������
�����������������	���	�����������
���!��
������������	�
��

������������������
���������	���	����
��%���	����������
��������
������
��	�
���
��
����
�����

��� ����	���	������%����%��������������!,����������
��

�����������
�������
���
���
���
����#������ 
�������������,����5�����
��0�������������	������

�����
������������������	��
���������������
����!���6�������
��,�-�����������������������
����������
��
������
��

�����������������	���	���

��
������
���
����
���

��

���
�������,�	�
�������
�����!�
������������
��������������(��������2�������
���������������#��
����	�!,�-��
�������������������������
��������
��
������
�
����
���
�����������������
�����������������
��%

���

���������������

��� ���� 
��������	����������������	���
������%
�����!���������������������
�����
�
�
��������
�������	�������	��������������������
�����	�
���
���������
���!�

���������������
����!������� 
�����.��������������!�"������	�2�����&��%���*�
�������9�����	���	���������	��������
.�:�"2*;����������������������������
��
�
���������������,����
����������
�����������������������!�

�������������
�����	��,����������������
�����������	���%���	���4��������������������
������
���������������������%���	���4����������
��������
����!�%
�����!��������
�������
���������������

$�� ���������������
���4��������������������
�����	��
������������
�������,�����
������
�����������
�%��������	����
����
���
���!�����������	����������-��
������
�,������������������������������
��������������������
���
������
%�������
����
6�
�������-���������!�
����,��
��
��,�����%�������
���
��%
������
��������
������	�����������������������������
����������������	���
�������
�������������
����	����%��������������
����
��������	�������������%

�������6�������
��,�-�
�����������������������	�����������
�
���!�����
����������
���%
�����!�
������
���������
����!������������������������������������%����%������������
%���������

���%����!��
���
�
��������
�����	���
������
��	������������
��
�������	���!��

����-����	���
�������%

������
��,�-�������������������
����������
�����	���
������
���
���!��������5�����!������%!�������	���������������������������
�������
�����!�������	��������!���
����������
�����
��
������%
�����!�����,�������������

Page 76



#������/�����
���#""��3�3��/������+$�$4�
�

�

�

*�

������	���������������������
��,�����
�	������������������	�������
�������������
�����������������	��	�����������
�����%!��"2*,�-��
����������������
��
��
������������������
����
���
����������������

������������

��������������

����-���������	��!�������
�,�-���������������������%
�����!�����,��������,�������	��
����	������

��������

����������!��
�����������������������������!,���
���
��
%����������%1����
������������!�������������������������������������
�������
���
��������
������
�����
��%���������
���%!�����%!��������������������
����
��
��������
���������������
��������
��
�������
��
�,��
��
��,�
�����	������
��	������������������������%������������
������������������������������
������
�
����������

�������!��<�������
�����������
����
��%
�����!�������������
��%������	���	�����
%!��������������,�%���������1
���!�
����������������
�
�������������������������	�
�
���<����=������-���
��%��������������
��
������������
�����<���������������	�
��
������&
�����,�4������4��(��������2����������������
�������
����!����&
��
���7����'���,�����������
��!�����������<�����
�������������������������
6�������
��,�-��
��
����
���������������������	���������������%�����������
���������!��
���,����!�
��!������
�����!��
��������%
�������%
�����!�
����������%��
�������

��	
����	��

�*��#������	���	���
�
����
����������%
�����!�����,��������,�������	������	��������
��!������!��������������������
����!������������,�-�����%����
���������������
������
��������������������� 
�����������
����		��������!��
�����
�����������
����
�����������������������������	�
������������	���	���
�
����
������
�����������
���
�������������
�!�����������,��������	���������
������%��	��������
�������
�����������
�����
����!��

���������	
���
�

-&�"7 �>)�

� � � �

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Extract of Planning Code of Practice
	3 Green Man, High Street, London, NW10 4TS (Ref. 11/0876)
	4 Green Man, High Street, London, NW10 4TS (Ref. 11/0877)
	5 16B & 16C Callcott Road, London, NW6 7EA (Ref.12/0065)
	6 Creighton Road, London, London NW6 6ED (Ref.12/0372)
	7 Regal Court, Malvern Road, London, NW6
	Malvern Road Committee

	8 Planning and Enforcement Appeal Monitoring
	9 Planning Appeals 1 - 30 April 2012
	2. Received ENFORCEMENT appeals
	3. Decided PLANNING appeals
	4. Decided ENFORCEMENT Appeal
	5. Selected decisions PLANNING appeals
	6. Selected decisions ENFORCEMENT appeals
	7. Copies of selected appeals


